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THEHBRXBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BHEAEH K BEEETRENL)

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

WA
EF

EF=

reEm (EE)(H23)

REFE(H73)

EBITDA(#77#3)

EBITDAGFI R (f17#3)
RRRIREEERF (EE) (F:23)
FFIE(F53)
FHEEBBRRE(H:23%4)
FHARR B R R B SR RE (M F3R5)

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (loss) (Note 3)

Operating margin (Note 3)

EBITDA (Note 3)

EBITDA margin (Note 3)

Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3)

Net profit margin (Note 3)

Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
(Note 3 and 5)

R4 RETEERRTER
BEAS (H#3)

BERB(NE3)

BERR(HE3)

#FE

FEHRAREHZ(R)(ME1)
BN & (R 80 (Hi£3)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3)

Total assets (Note 3)

Total liabilities (Note 3)

Inventories

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3)

BB (EE) — EXCE)

Earnings (loss) per share — Basic (HK cents)

BRRECEM) Dividend per share (HK cents)
B L& Dividend payout ratio
mHRBRNEE (FiR) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
m{ERRE Market capitalization
FRFITEE Stores as at year end
BEEE Direct-operated stores
CMEEGWE2) Franchised stores (Note 2)
ZIRPITTARZ Total stores worldwide
Hiat - Notes:
1. FREBAZFER S EMATFTIAFER A 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number

m—EEBaEAE  MESFRREB(2016F K
ARTEFEE) « BB (CO1TERNRFE) RE=E
N A R I i)

2018 R Z AR 2 MF I R ARM B BH RS
HRIZE16EEEMIEL AR

REFEBRMEREENER AR MR EERER

P& BR A P45 15 15 Vi 8] Bk DA B 70 e B R A X B ACSR
IERE A T ID R

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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of days in the year

2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, Kuwait and
Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietnam (prior to year 2017), and third-party
franchisees

3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16
Leases are not reflected in the years in and prior to 2018

4. Profit after income taxes for the year divided by average of opening and
closing balance of total assets

5. Profit after income taxes for the year attributable to shareholders of the

Company divided by average of opening and closing balance of equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company
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THEHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
3,873 3,799 3,380 3,122 4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545
2,263 2,146 1,930 1,736 2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214
58.4% 56.5% 57.1% 55.6% 58.7% 59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0%
503 425 263 (105) 397 625 689 568 556 542
13.0% 11.2% 7.8% -3.4% 8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8%
1,015 913 811 555 1,183 821 874 748 743 760
26.2% 24.0% 24.0% 17.8% 24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7%
345 268 190 (112) 230 480 500 434 426 408
8.9% 7.1% 5.6% -3.6% 4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4%
9.9% 8.0% 5.2% -2.3% 6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0%
15.3% 11.4% 7.8% -4.4% 8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8%
905 948 875 1,104 994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915
639 890 960 916 714 1,465 1,626 1,410 1,405 1,401
3,856 4,008 4,208 4,383 5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857
1,544 1,486 1,645 1,752 2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773
474 612 606 434 548 552 524 447 491 514
108 135 1563 115 100 89 87 78 78 80
1.6 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1
21.60 17.00 12.00 (7.10) 14.60 30.50 31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00

30.50 23.50 16.50 10.00 14.60 33.50 35.00 27.50 27.00 25.00
141.3% 138.2% 137.5% i ANA 100.0% 109.8% 110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2%
1,613,417 1,579,817 1,578,937 1,577,631 1,578,501 1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913
4,259 2,733 2,353 1,798 3,709 5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400

1,055 1,083 1,134 1,209 1,274 1,323 1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451
767 791 922 976 1,101 1,103 1,065 1,033 986 1,001

1,822 1,874 2,056 2,185 2,375 2,426 2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452
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Mark Alan LOYND

Non-Executive Directors

TSANG On Yip, Patrick
LEE Chi Hin, Jacob

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Barry John BUTTIFANT
WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mark Alan LOYND

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman)
WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Chairman)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyer
Reed Smith Richards Butler LLP

PRC lawyer
GaoXinDe Law Firm

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton, Pembroke, HM11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank Ltd.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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THE CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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Despite high inflation, rising interest rates, and subdued
consumer sentiment, your company achieved a net profit of
HK$345 million, an increase of 28.7% from last year. In line with
the Group’s Dividend Policy published on November 8, 2018, the
Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of 13.5 HK
cents per share, bringing the total dividend for the year to 30.5
HK cents per share, an increase of 29.8%.

We have adopted a long-term grand strategy comprising four
legs.

First, we recognized that we needed to diversify markets to
mitigate geo-economical risks. About three decades ago,
we ventured into the Middle East, Southeast Asia, East Asia
and beyond. While most of these initiatives have paid off with
a significant presence in these markets, some failed, but in
return we gained invaluable insight into international business
development. The strategy’s success has helped the company’s
profitability during these difficult times. As we advance, we will
earnestly pursue franchising in emerging markets.

Second, the company firmly believes that “cash is king” in the
volatile retail industry. We have followed a lean working capital
strategy, evidenced by strict cost and inventory controls. During
the past year, we systematically and significantly reduced our
inventory levels and increased our variable cost ratio. These
efforts have freed up cash for our shareholders and necessitated
management to focus on product innovation, pricing integrity,
process reengineering, and marketing investments.

Third, our growth strategy is realistic and not opportunistic. It
entails the motto “sticking to your knitting”. Our expertise is
product quality and customer service. We should not give up on
them, but continue to improve them. Brand upgrades should be
gradual, not sudden; the latter would confuse our customers.
New brands come and go like fads; long-lasting brands are those
that continue to deliver their brand promises to customers. A
fickle, greedy and opportunistic brand is not sustainable and
would only disappoint customers and destroy shareholder value.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #
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TEHRESE
THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Last, but not least, our fourth strategy is about corporate
governance and social responsibility. Your company recognizes
its stakeholders and observes the best corporate governance
possible. We treat our staff and suppliers as equal partners. While
not perfect, we both talk and walk it.

As you know, the years ahead are filled with unprecedented
uncertainties and, therefore, unforeseen challenges. The Group’s
grand strategy can handle them.

Our three theatres of Greater China, the Gulf Cooperation Council
and Southeast Asia all offer long-term promise. Greater China
is temporarily facing difficulties, which could mean reshaping
market conditions. Our tactic there is adaptation. Basic
economics tells us that all things are about supply and demand.
Strategic thinkers observe the “3Cs” of consumer, competition
and company. Marketing theory teaches us the interacting “4Ps”
of product, price, place and promotion, which vary according
to the operating environment, rather than unchanged. Many
marketers are inflexible, but we aren’t.

As we look ahead, | sincerely thank our dedicated staff, loyal
business partners, and supportive shareholders for their
unwavering trust in the company. | should also thank the
directors for their wise counsel.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

Unless otherwise stated, the following commentaries refer to the
year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison for the years ended December
31, 2023, and 2022.

OVERVIEW

u The Group is an international apparel retailer with
owned, franchised, and licensed brands. We offer high-
quality, value-for-money, and easy-to-wear apparel and
accessories through a network of approximately 1,800
points-of-sale or 1,816,000 sq. ft. of retail floor space. The
Group’s merchandise is also available through an extensive
network of proprietary e-shops and third-party platforms.

u Group revenue increased by 3.8% based on constant
dollars, but only 1.9% to HK$3,873 million (2022: HK$3,799
million) when translated to Hong Kong dollars. The first-
half growth was 5% as the COVID-19 adversity only began
to dissipate in the second quarter of 2022. The gradual
sales recovery continued in the second half of 2022, thus
dwarfing the 2023 second-half relative growth rate.

u Group gross margin improved by 1.9 percentage points.
The retail gross margin was 60.6% (2022: 59.5%).

u Operating expense-to-revenue ratio was maintained at
47.2%, reflecting the Group’s continued cost control after
COVID-19.

u Net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders was
HK$345 million (2022: HK$268 million), an increase of
28.7%.

u The Company’s Board of Directors recommended a final
dividend of 13.5 HK cents per share (2022: 15.0 HK cents
per share) to reach a total dividend of 30.5 HK cents per
share for the year (2022: 23.5 HK cents), representing an
increase of 29.8%. The final dividend payable, if approved,
will amount to approximately HK$218 million.

u Inventory turnover on cost declined by 27 days to 108
days. Further reduction is possible as we continue to focus
on pricing power instead of volume sales. Inventories at
year-end were HK$474 million (2022: HK$612 million). The
franchising model adopted for international expansion also
economizes the Group’s use of funds.

u The cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, were
HK$905 million on December 31, 2023 (2022: HK$948
million). Capital expenditure during the year was HK$87
million (2022: HK$66 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REEE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
R AXEEREXESE Table 1: Group results of operations
1N EBA
Bol Bot BE
(U BEETAEN)  (In HKS million) 2023 % to revenue 2022 % to revenue Change
AEEHA Group revenug' 3,873 100.0% 3,799 100.0% 1.9%
E7 Gross profit 2,263 58.4% 2,146 56.5% 5.5%
HEm ARz - #8  Other income and other gains, net 68 1.8% 72 1.9% (5.6%)
REER Operating expense (1,828) (47.2%) (1,799) (47.2%) 2.0%
s fl Operating profit 503 13.0% 425 11.2% 18.4%
FElE—FIAZARNEN  Share of profit of a joint venture 45 1.2% 36 0.9% 25.0%
HEER Finance expense (40) (1.0%) (25) (0.6%) 60.0%
FTigt Income taxes (119) (3.1%) (107) (2.8%) 11.2%
JEE SR R Profit after income tax attributable

BRETEHE R A to non-controlling interests (44) (1.2%) (61) (1.6%) (27.9%)
IR EER TS % Profit after income tax attributable

i A to shareholders 345 8.9% 268 7.1% 28.7%
AEEREHER: Group same-store sales? 2,819 2,638 6.9%
2B E s Global brand sales® 4,746 4,620 2.7%
2R mEERS Global brand gross profit® 2,964 2,878 3.0%
EXRFLREITEST  Cash and bank balances,

HE net of bank loans at year-end 905 948 (4.5%)
FREE Inventories at year-end 474 612 (22.5%)
FEYKARERE  Inventory turnover on cost, days* 108 135 (27)
FRMMEE Stores at year-end 1,822 1,874 (52)

1 [REERAEEHEA - BEEEEZTEHE 1 “Group revenue” comprises consolidated revenue from direct-operated
B ORERMBRE B - stores’ retail sales, licensing and wholesale to franchisees.

2 [AEBREHERE BESEHERE  BETREKRA 2 “Group same-store sales” means retail revenue save for revenue derived
REFHMKLIEHPIEARAEEREMEHRmY from the retail sales of newly-opened and terminated stores and stores
RRARBB L M EEREI0% 2 PIENZTEH temporarily closed for more than 10% of operating days of comparable
B RETEXRE - periods for renovation or other purposes. These are at constant exchange

rates.

3 [2EMIEHEERE /T IBEESRRELE M 3 “Global brand sales/gross profit” comprises all Giordano retail sales/gross

BEMAERNRIZMMZMAZTEHERTF - profit from direct-operated stores, franchised stores and stores operated
HETEERE - by a joint venture. These are at constant exchange rates.

4 [FEHERAREABIIETEFEFRFEZFERNA 4 “Inventory turnover on cost” is calculated by dividing inventories at year-end
HERAFUZFERE - by the cost of sales multiplied by the number of days in the year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # # & m B B R A 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WARER

NEE U AR 1.9% % 38.7318 4 7T (2022
F 3709 F L) B TERFEHEER
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$E156.9% IR - RENEM20234F » AEE
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BEERER T IFIREER - WBBD AR
BIREEEAA - LWIEAFBEER - KEEL
35% & fh R B8 B P B K FE ASMNGY TR o

FIEZERENHEHHRBIEER - BEM
MEBERL2.6% ' ZTHEHEMEMNET% -
MBFEHFRNEE FF35% - R FEBEXE
7.1% @ JHRAFBIARREMFERE -

HEBESHE TK17.7% @ JI AR E2022 F K #
TTREEZE  UXFHEBEMNEHE2019E
MRS REBERENHEE - ERARNBER
MIZFEEFARE - FINAR AR & FE
KEMSMAREASEERAELHTENE
Jf%j{ °

Revenue and gross profit

Group revenue grew by 1.9% to HK$3,873 million (2022:
HK$3,799 million), or 3.8% at constant dollars. Comparable
retail store sales recorded a 6.9% growth as the Group has been
cautious in opening new directly-operated stores while closing
non-performing ones. In a turbulent 2023, it was prudent to tread
responsibly. The Group opted for price increases supported by
accurate marketing campaigns, coupled with reduced sourcing
costs with distributed sourcing to improve margins. About 35%
of the Group’s merchandise was from factories outside Mainland
China.

All retail channels reported positive sales growth. Offline sales
increased by 4.7% despite a 2.6% reduction in the number of
stores, while sales per square foot rose by 3.5%. Online sales
improved by 7.1%, driven by continued growth in Mainland
China.

Wholesales declined by 17.7%, as large shipments were made
in late 2022 to support international franchisees’ post-COVID-19
sales. While the established franchised markets continued their
recovery, newly-opened franchised and licensed markets have
started meaningful contributions to the Group’s revenue.

x2: WA Table 2: Revenue analysis
B 1) -]
(UBEETAEN)  (In HKS million) 2023 Contribution 2022 Contribution Change
G EES Greater China 1,727 44.6% 1,720 45.3% 0.4%
R RN Southeast Asia and Australia 1,471 38.0% 1,444 38.0% 1.9%
BEMAEBERA!E  Gulf Cooperation
%88 Council 675 17.4% 635 16.7% 6.3%
BH5E 2 2AK%E  Group revenue by
WA market 3,873 100.0% 3,799 100.0% 1.9%
BT E Offline 2,980 77.0% 2,846 74.9% 4.7%
R Online 470 12.1% 439 11.6% 7.1%
TE Retail 3,450 89.1% 3,285 86.5% 5.0%
BEREINIER Licensing and overseas
franchisees 283 7.3% 335 8.8% (15.5%)
i KREINEER Mainland China franchisees 140 3.6% 179 4.7% (21.8%)
RERMBRE2HE  Licensing and wholesale to
franchisees 423 10.9% 514 13.5% (17.7%)
BEEES2AEE  Group revenue by
WA channel 3,873 100.0% 3,799 100.0% 1.9%

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR MENEERA  AEEEFRE N0
BAE DB ES8.4%  MEEEF X A60.6%

Due to continued brand upgrades, the Group’s gross margin
improved by 1.9 percentage points to 58.4%, and the retail

(20224 : 59.5% ) o I EFEFKE gross margin was 60.6% (2022: 59.5%). Our gross profit rose by
55% TEHRKRMBEAFEREBLBL 5.5%, mainly driven by the increased selling prices of our new
EEEmMTM - merchandise and fewer discounts on evergreen products.
x®3: EFMDH Table 3: Gross profit analysis
2022 EXREYE  2023F
R ERRE EE Currency EF]
2022 Product Selling #E Hft  translation 2023
(UEEZETAEN)  (In HKS million) gross profit costs prices  Volume Miscellaneous  difference gross profit
RED RN Southeast Asia and Australia 863 (4) 39 2 (6) (1) 883
BEMARERAE  Gulf Cooperation
LE® Council 398 27 (55) 59 - - 429
PN Mainland China 314 7 4 12 (1) (16) 320
B RRP Hong Kong and Macau 204 (5) 71 16 (1) - 285
=) Taiwan 284 (4) 43 (30) (3) (13) 217
misHa Market mix - 9 (16) 7 - - -
BERSY Retail and distribution 2,083 30 86 66 (1) (40) 2194
9N /BT Wholesale to overseas
H % franchisees/subsidiaries 83 69
KEE Group 2,146 2,263

HWAREMiss - FHE

Eﬁﬂﬂw\&ﬁﬁﬂl& BRBNER - ELE
R BB - MEREE K
)\O

ReBHARKE RN

KBRS ALLRKRETE - B47.2% ° A
EEEB KL HTE.03EA T (20224F : 4.25
BATT)  HFHLR18.4% °

CERAEEERYRE HERKREZF
B

RIBBRB G EREICRARTE - AEBE(E
REEE  WE  HENRBELESIEEAN
B -

MEEH

BE & A A4,0008 %870 (20224 : 2,5008 7%
) RMEEBENREENERS °
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Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains include government assistance,
exchange differences, royalties, licensing fees, interest, and
rental income.

Operating expense and operating profit

Operating expense-to-revenue ratio was virtually unchanged at
47.2%. The Group recorded an operating profit of HK$503 million
(2022: HK$425 million), a growth of 18.4% YOY.

Net impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment

There was no material impairment provision or reversal for the
right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment, based on
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36.

Finance expense

The finance expense was HK$40 million (2022: HK$25 million),
reflecting higher imputed interest on lease liabilities.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B R AG BR T 1§ B R 7

AR IR R E(L R FT1S 18 05 %IJ(%%J%{E/@
A1) B3.45EHB T (20224 1 2.681B8TT) »
AR B8.9% (20224 : 7.1%) ©

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company (“PATS”) was HK$345 million (2022: HK$268 million),
at a net margin of 8.9% (2022: 7.1%).

x4 REREMLEFNEE Table 4: Changes in PATS
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million)
20224 f% R FE (L& F 2022 PATS 268
r B A Mainland China 62
BB RIRM Hong Kong and Macau 49
BEMNARNREIELZES Gulf Cooperation Council 18
FER South Korea 10
= Taiwan 9
R AR SORM Southeast Asia and Australia (20)
¥EINNERR B AR 2 8 Wholesale to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries (38)
BEER - REER  EBRK Headquarter expenses, finance expense, income
FEf ) M 2 taxes and non-controlling interests (7
PR BRFE {35 R 42 B Changes in PATS 83
REEERGEE 22023F R RELGF 2023 PATS, at constant exchange rates 351
B EERE Currency translation difference (6)
2023 IR R FE AL & F 2023 PATS 345
B MARKET ANALYSIS

LXT SRUEHE Mﬁif

ELL ’ alHﬁZ.)T_I:TD =
WERFTEE 2 -

o 2

MEREAETR
» DASBR R B 75

RS RMECZHRAEHMNER (BR)

The following comments are in local currencies, or, if in Hong
Kong dollars, are at constant exchange rates to remove
distortions from the translation of financial statements.

Greater China

Table 5: Greater China profit (loss) before income taxes

T ON [ON
BI Bot
(U FEFTAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to #E
HEFEFRE constant exchange rates) 2023 revenue 2022 revenue Change
A Revenue 1,537 100.0% 1,420 100.0% 8.2%
eyl Gross profit 911 59.3% 802 56.5% 13.6%
H A YA R iz - Other income and other
et} gains, net 15 1.0% 16 1.1% (6.3%)
BB Operating expense (813) (52.9%) (823) (568.0%) (1.2%)
A (ER) Operating profit (loss) 113 7.4% (5) (0.4%) N/A
HEEHR Finance expense (6) (0.4%) 4) (0.3%) 50.0%
BRFT1SH1 B A Profit (loss) before income
(E18) taxes 107 7.0% 9) (0.7%) N/A

12 AR EBER A T
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Hong Kong and Macau

The growth momentum in Hong Kong and Macau continued,
attributable to the increased gross margin supported by frequent
advertising and effective staff incentive schemes. Its revenue
benefited from the mild increase in tourist arrivals, but suffered
from the so-called “northbound spending”. Evening footfall has
been dropping conspicuously.

Mainland China

Despite the volatile economy, our business swung from a
substantial loss to a modest profit for the whole year, driven by
increased online sales and reduced operating costs through the
closure of loss-making direct-operated stores. The number of
franchised stores started to grow in the second half of the year
after the lingering COVID-19 pandemic.

Taiwan

Taiwan’s profit improved, but the quarterly performances
fluctuated. Selling price increases helped mitigate the revenue
drop.

Table 6: Greater China revenue and store count

EXMHHEA
Stores at year-end
WA MEE EER ay
Revenue Franchised Direct operated Total
(L BERTREN (In HK$ million, translated at #E

FEFEXHE constant exchange rates) 2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
hEIARE Mainland China 697 668  4.3% 343 394 143 158 486 552
e Taiwan 460 466 (1.3%) - - 168 182 168 182
BB AP Hong Kong and Macau 380 286 32.9% - - 41 42 41 42
fay Total 1,537 1,420  8.2% 343 394 352 382 695 776

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #
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Southeast Asia and Australia

Table 7: Southeast Asia and Australia profit before
income taxes

EA fEIA
Batt ERase
(U FEFTAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at % to % to =)
B FIEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2023 revenue 2022 revenue Change
WA Revenue 1,487 100.0% 1,444 100.0% 3.0%
EA Gross profit 894 60.1% 863 59.8% 3.6%
HA YA Rz - Other income and other
2| gains, net 19 1.3% 11 0.8% 72.7%
KEEH Operating expense (637) (42.8%) (578) (40.0%) 10.2%
i A Operating profit 276 18.6% 296 20.6% (6.8%)
BHEER Finance expense (21) (1.4%) (16) (1.1%) 31.3%
BRETS R A% F Profit before income taxes 255 17.2% 280 19.5% (8.9%)

ENfEF=R A R EFE

o 5 H H &

BMEMER FOoRAREFEHER - A
o AREOMETRARIKEXOEST -
BB EBRBBRTFRE

*8: REMIERBEMNZWARPITAET

The growth momentum in Indonesia and Thailand was sustained.
The sales in other markets were stagnant partly due to the
high base in the previous year. Nevertheless, we expect the
performance, as a whole, to be stable, boosted by solid brand
images and tourism.

Table 8: Southeast Asia and Australia revenue and
store count

WA FERMTHE
Revenue Stores at year-end
(U BEFTAEN - (In HK$ million, translated at B E)

B FIEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2023 2022 Change 2023 2022
ffe Indonesia 755 696 8.5% 238 233
=H Thailand 270 234 15.4% 156 156
N Singapore 190 207 (8.2%) 30 29
HIRA R Malaysia 170 189 (10.1%) 88 86
e Vietnam 76 90 (15.6%) 44 54
BN Australia 21 20 5.0% 6 6
R Cambodia 5 8 (37.5%) 3 3
My Total 1,487 1,444 3.0% 565 567

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER
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The Gulf Cooperation Council

Table 9: The Gulf Cooperation Council profit before
income taxes and store count

EA fEIA
BIl Aot
(U FEFTAEN - (In HKS million, translated at % to % to =)
B FIEFRRE constant exchange rates) 2023 revenue 2022 revenue Change
WA Revenue 676  100.0% 635  100.0% 6.5%
ESN Gross profit 429 63.5% 398 62.7% 7.8%
HA YA Rz - Other income and gains, net
FEE 5 0.7% - - N/A
KEBR Operating expense (304) (45.0%) (286) (45.0%) 6.3%
i A Operating profit 130 19.2% 112 17.6% 16.1%
MmEER Finance expense (13) (1.9%) (5) (0.8%) 160.0%
BR PS4 A& A Profit before income taxes 117 17.3% 107 16.9% 9.3%
IR JE Franchised stores 40 38 2
B Direct-operated stores 138 134 4
FARPITEE Stores at year-end 178 172 6

BEMABEBEREFERZBEGN2023FNEE
BAMEN  £2aNEE - TAFENHNR
WAL ZHEEAEE - RETREFHEBIZ
K - BAKER S A - RS &M AE
REFREeREXBBBI0F Rl TRE
KA TS EEMER o

FR(— BV EEEREE2HER
48.5%EHEMNEE N T)

®10: MEZEBEFBRNRFATHEE

The sales in the GCC improved in 2023 with significant operating
profit. Brand image enhancement drove the growth attributable
to the influential local marketing campaigns. The economic
outlook in the region is bright. Established over 30 years ago, our
presence there attracts potential franchisees from neighbouring
markets.

South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

Table 10: South Korea’s share of net profit and store
count

T ON A

Bott BA
% to % to BE
(ABEEEREN) (In Korean Won million) 2023 revenue 2022 revenue Change
LN Revenue 169,703 100.0% 190,438 100.0% (10.9%)
E Gross profit 88,873 52.4% 102,039 53.6% (12.9%)
el Net profit 15,709 9.3% 12,292 6.5% 27.8%
FEAE @ | Share of net profit 7,619 5,962 27.8%
FARMAMEE Stores at year-end 120 143 (23)

FRFFE LI - B OERSBARAISS T iR 8
HEN  ARENHEERRRE - @B - B
RERVRKANEZIE A BY R IBTEFIA o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

South Korea’s sales performance was disappointing due to the
weakened spending power caused by interest rate hikes, export
reductions, and inflation. That said, stringent cost control helped
stabilize the profit.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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Overseas (outside Greater China) franchisees

=11 B MEF 2 mET Table 11: Overseas franchised store count

2023 2022
REde Southeast Asia 190 175
BN South Korea* 120 143
R South Asia 69 40
FEM Africa 24 19
HAMh s Other markets 21 20
B Total 424 397

. FEEEE48.5%Em R ENF] - IR
LE e B

FRESURMANFALEMGHERY -
AR B AN RIEFT R A IR IR SRR
REEVIRR ALK o

EAASEHRERRE . IR AEERF
MFTIE27ESNNERSE - TR EFHENS -

BY #& AR R

ABESRUBKEER

MR2023F12 A31H » W& KIB1THEF(FIKRIE
1TER%E) B9.05EB L (20224 : 9.4818/8
JC) °

IRITE N A3,0008 8 7L (20224F : 1,2008
BIL) c AEBZEBRLR(RRITEELS
HERRB I ERTE) B1.3%(20224F -
0.5%) - REEMRE L X HF1.6(20225F :
1.8) " LR BB E17.3518 %8 7T (2022 4F :
19.77187% ) R B & (E10.9618 8 7t (2022
F 10.87EEBL)FTHE -

MR- BBERRE

BRI A8,7008 7% 7T (20224 : 6,6008 78
) TEAREFEALR - - BEEBBESRN
BRI EEMIRE  UWEAREER -

AERRERALHERR

AR LR R R E K 820124 2015
FUESEMNBERAFRBEEER - R
B HETT F E R B R S I 78 /3 0 2023 4 B B 4F
EEZREHEERE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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*

The Group owns a 48.5% equity interest in the South Korean joint venture,
also the Group'’s franchisee.

The well-developed franchised markets, such as the Philippines,
remained strong. Footprint expansion has accelerated in the
newly developed South Asian and African markets.

As part of the Group’s crucial expansion strategy, it added
27 overseas franchised stores in the year, mainly in emerging
markets.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

On December 31, 2023, the cash and bank balances, net of bank
loans, were HK$905 million (2022: $948 million).

The bank borrowings amounted to HK$30 million (2022: HK$12
million). The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total bank
borrowings over total equity, was 1.3% (2022: 0.5%). The
Group’s current ratio was 1.6 (2022: 1.8) based on current
assets of HK$1,735 million (2022: HK$1,977 million) and current
liabilities of HK$1,096 million (2022: HK$1,087 million).

Property, plant, and equipment

Capital expenditure was HK$87 million (2022: HK$66 million),
mainly for store upgrades. Management will continue to devote
resources to our shop ambiance to strengthen our brand image.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liability arose from acquiring our
GCC operations in 2012 and 2015. We have conducted annual
impairment tests and concluded that no impairment on goodwill
was necessary for the 2023 financial year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #
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FE

AEBFEA4.74EETT(20224F : 6.12188
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Interest in a joint venture

The carrying value of the 48.5% interest in the South Korea joint
venture, accounted for by the equity method, increased by 1.0%
to HK$494 million.

Inventories

Group inventories were HK$474 million (2022: HK$612 million).
Inventory turnover on cost decreased by 27 days to 108 days
(2022: 135 days), attributed to stringent purchase control.

To prevent excessive “off-balance sheet” inventories, the Group
tracks the inventories at suppliers and franchisees. Our system

inventories were also reduced.

Table 12: System inventories

M12H31H
At December 31

(XBEEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

AEEHMEZTE Inventories owned by the Group 474 612
WEAS 5% EENEREE A Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea

BEZEFE joint venture 182 202

REARENENFEZFE Inventories held by franchisees in

Mainland China 38 53

HER 2 RS m Finished goods at suppliers 15 26

IANEEHBELTE Inventories not owned by the Group 235 281

AFEHRE Total system inventories 709 893
FE U 0 FE 15 BR FX Trade receivables and payables

FEULBE FUm i H 8L A52K (20224 : 47K) °
FEMERFUNE H BB T HFE45K (20224 -
43K) °

=

201811 A8H » AR RIEAAL B BUER ([ 1%
BB - REBKEEREBRNRERHE
IREEEFGIRE - RERBBER - A28F—
BEBRHERBHBHARNKMNEBERE - =2RK
BeRAKEEFHERE ARKEFTEUR
EELESEREMAMNTE
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The turnover days for trade receivables were 52 days (2022: 47
days). The turnover days for trade payables were steady at 45
days (2022: 43 days).

Dividends

The Company adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus
cash to its shareholders through dividend payouts. In line with
the Dividend Policy, the Company has been paying a substantial
portion of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, which may vary
depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements, and
working capital considerations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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Considering the economic outlook, the Group’s financial position,
future expansion plans, and other factors, the Board of Directors
recommended a final dividend of 13.5 HK cents per share (2022:
15.0 HK cents per share). With the interim dividend of 17.0 HK
cents per share (2022: 8.5 HK cents per share) paid on Friday,
September 15, 2023, the full-year dividend will amount to 30.5
HK cents per share (2022: 23.5 HK cents per share), or an
increase of 29.8%. Subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be payable on Friday, June 14, 2024 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Monday, June 3, 2024.

OUTLOOK

In 2023, though the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
dissipated after the relaxation of most movement control
measures, the business environment was still volatile because
of intensifying geopolitical conflicts, interest rate hikes and high
inflation. The Group has remained agile and resilient in addressing
the challenges and achieved a net profit of HK$345 million (2022:
HK$268 million).

A challenging 2024 calls for prudence and caution. Our
geographically-diversified strategy, cost control and lean balance
sheet discipline will be essential to mitigate these business risks.
In this situation, “cash is king” is even more relevant. A favourable
business environment will return, and our patience will pay off
by grasping the opportunities and leveraging our solid balance
sheet.

The Company will continue to execute our strategy to gradually
enhance its brand equity through pricing, product innovation,
store upgrades and marketing investment.

The Group will expand in developing economies through
franchising and licensing. For instance, in 2023, we made
encouraging progress in India, where we hit 50 points-of-sale
at the year’s end. We expect the expansion momentum will
continue. To this end, the Group will sharpen its skills in selecting
the right markets and building mutually-beneficial relationships
with all franchisees, thus ensuring that this expansion strategy is
sustainable.

On e-commerce, the Group continues partnering with local and
robust third-party platforms. For Mainland China and our Korean
joint venture, online sales profits are satisfactory, and their
contributions are now about 55% and 40% of their total sales,
respectively. Most of our other markets’ online sales are also
experiencing growth and sustainable profits.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Human Resources

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had approximately 6,500
employees (December 31, 2022: 6,200). The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages and generous, goal-
oriented incentives targeted to different levels of staff. We
provide senior managers with performance-based/discretionary
bonus schemes and share options to reward and retain a high-
calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in sales
and customer service, management, planning, and leadership
development to maintain a skilled and motivated workforce. The
Group facilitates the younger executives to take up management
roles. On December 31, 2023, the average age of the Group’s
management team was 49 (2022: 48).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive),
aged 71, is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is
also chairman of the Management Committee and Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He joined the Group in 1987, became the Chief
Executive on February 8, 1994, and was elected Chairman of the
Board of the Company on August 10 in the same year. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 52), which is listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. LAU was previously an adjunct professor of the
College of Business at City University of Hong Kong (“CityU”), an
external member of the School of Business Advisory Committee
of Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”), the chairman of the
Advisory Committee on Management and marketing at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
from PolyU, a MBA degree from the University of Calgary in
Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of
Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management and accounting
experience in both the private and public sectors in Canada
before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 47, joined the
Group in January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June
20, 2014 and April 1, 2015, respectively. He is a member of the
Management Committee of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries and a joint venture of the Group. Dr. CHAN is
responsible for the Group’s operations to meet budget and other
financial goals, as well as establishing goals, allocating resources
and assessing policies to drive the Group’s performance. Dr.
CHAN has over 22 years of experience in the apparel retailing and
marketing business.

Dr. CHAN is a fellow member of Certified Practicing Accountant
Australia and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in
London. He holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
and Bachelor of Science in Textile from PolyU and a Master
of Arts in Global Business Management and a Master of Laws
in Arbitration and Dispute Resolution from CityU, a Master of
Accountancy and a Master of Science (MSc) in Data Analytics
and Business Economics from HKBU.
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 45, has
been with the Group since September 2013 and was appointed
as an Executive Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is
currently the General Counsel, Company Secretary and Group
Human Resources Director of the Company. He oversees legal,
regulatory, compliance, corporate governance, human resources
and talent development affairs of the Group. Mr. LOYND is also
chairman of the Risk Management Committee and a member of
the Management Committee of the Company as well as director
and company secretary of various subsidiaries and a joint venture
of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is also responsible for the
development of new overseas markets as well as brand and
product development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the
United Kingdom. He is a professional member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management, where he also sits
on the Employment-Related Hong Kong Legislation and Issues
Committee, and a member of the Chartered Professionals in
Human Resources of British Columbia and Yukon.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth
University in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in
Arbitration and Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction)
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from CityU. He
possesses over 22 years of experience in handling regulatory
and compliance matters for listed companies, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law affairs, as
well as labour and maritime law issues.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

21



22

EEREREEABR[EMN

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BLELE  BBS(HHITEF) 525 ' I
2022F 12 A1 HELZRTAENITTES - KIRA
SEEMPIE T RELAREIZERER A RE
AELEBRAR([EARELEDITHER I
BEERARFETEREAKREGER)BRAA
ZEE  BELERBIBREATGHEEB25FK
B HR2003FE E2012F (B ESERITE
BT EIEFELE  TEMETEWRZS
BARMIHER °

BEERETRAREBEBHIAMER LT AA
B AAEGEHREBAMAABR AR (RMDA
1097)BIEERIITES BABKEEAR
NEI (M REE : 722) R BRI EAMR A A (A%
BRIR 18 HITEE « U ERPIBRIZMR
ARAB (MDA 880) RFAIEZEB AR
NA)(BRDREE : 659)FEHITES - BEE S
R2015F 6 A 22022F5 A IEESZ O EB AR
NE) (AR REE : 94) K 2012F 11 A E20224F
SAEAGRABRREBRER A (BRMHMAN -
923)IEMITES

BrRERBARBEELEHRARDFEIMA
NEFE FAARBESETBRATES &S
ExXBmegalTFE FEFIITRREREZE
SR ENEFERZESZENEEBTELS
FAM o

BARERAXBEAOT ML EART ML ES

P& BE2 T2 -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, BBS (Non-Executive Director),
aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on
December 1, 2022. He is the chief executive officer and a director
of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE ”), the flagship
private investment holding company of Dato’ Dr Cheng Yu
Tung’s family and a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. TSANG has over
25 years of international capital markets experience, and was
previously managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital
Markets at Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he
worked from 2003 to 2012.

Mr. TSANG currently holds directorships in five companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; namely, vice-
chairman and executive director of i-Cable Communications
Limited (stock code: 1097), executive director of UMP Healthcare
Holdings Limited (stock code: 722) and Melbourne Enterprises
Limited (stock code: 158), and non-executive director of SUM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 880) and NWS Holdings Limited
(stock code: 659). Mr. TSANG was a non-executive director
of Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94) from June 2015
to May 2022 and a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) from
November 2012 to August 2022.

Mr. TSANG is the founder and a director of CTFE Social Solutions
Limited, a governor of Chow Tai Fook Charity Foundation Limited,
a vice-chairman of Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, a
member of the Election Committee and Youth Development
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
and an advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr. TSANG obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics
from Columbia College of Columbia University in New York, USA.
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Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob (Non-Executive Director), aged 41, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022. He
is currently a senior vice president of CTFE with responsibilities
for making strategic and private equity investments globally.
Mr. LEE joined CTFE in March 2013 and has over 15 years
of professional experience in corporate finance, investment,
international capital markets and asset management.

He previously worked at the investment banking department of
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and
Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong. Mr. LEE holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting and Finance from The London
School of Economics and Political Science in London, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor, United States of America.
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. LEE is
currently a non-executive director of Integrated Waste Solutions
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) and New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166), both the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LEE is also active in public services, currently serving as a
member of the Hospital Governing Committee of Tin Shui Wai
Hospital and a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel
under the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (/Independent Non-executive
Director), aged 79, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of both the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Dr. BUTTIFANT was re-appointed as a managing director of KLC
Transactions Limited in January 2017, and was also appointed as
a managing director of Baker Tilly KLC Recovery Limited (formerly
named as KLC Corporate Advisroy and Recovery Limited) from
the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management
Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He has been awarded an Honorary
Doctorate of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by
Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in February 2013.
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
both the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Professor HUANG received his PhD from the
University of Groningen (The Netherlands), Master of Arts from
Lancaster University (England), and Honours Diploma from
Lingnan University (Hong Kong). He is the Chair Professor of
Department of Management, Marketing, and Information Systems
of HKBU. Currently, he also serves as the Associate Dean of the
School of Business (Research & Impact), the Programme Director
of Doctor of Business Administration and the Director of Centre
for Human Resources Strategy and Development of HKBU.

Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the
Centre for Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University.
He has also been appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics since 2012. He
is Deputy Editor of the Management and Organization Review,
and a member of editorial board for Academy of Management
Journal and Human Relations. Professor HUANG’s research
interests include leadership, power, proactive and abnormal work
behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-cultural psychology
and management issues in China. He has published more
than 60 papers in international journals including Academy of
Management Journal, Journal of Applied Psychology, Journal
of International Business Studies, Journal of Management,
Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational Behavior, Human
Relations and so forth.
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Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (/ndependent Non-executive
Director), aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on March 7, 2019. She is also a member of
both the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Dr Alison Elizabeth Lloyd is the Associate Provost (Institutional
Data and Research) at The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology from May 20283. She previously served as the
Associate Vice President (Institutional Research and Strategic
Planning) at HKBU from May 2020 to May 2023, spearheading
evidence-based decision-making using analytics and business
intelligence to support key activities.

She was a director of International Affairs of PolyU, Dr.
LLOYD oversaw the strategic development and coordination
of international partnerships, international recruitment,
mobility opportunities, and institutional relations. As Director
of Institutional Research and Planning of PolyU, she steered
strategic planning, performance monitoring, university rankings,
business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management
consultancy in HongKong. Her previously consulting
engagements cover strategy, business process review and
improvement, performance management frameworks and
change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD
serves on a number of advisory boards and steering committees
pertaining to international higher education.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

‘World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since its
inception, and aside from being the brand’s slogan, it is also
a spirit that transcends the Group’s operations. Not only do
we strive to provide relevant, essential and timeless fashion for
all, and develop apparel for everyone regardless of ethnicity,
nationality or culture, we also pride ourselves on the diversity of
our people and our active support of charitable organizations
and causes, from disaster relief to long-term support, both in the
communities that we operate in and those that we have yet to.
In this connection, Giordano has continued to focus on ‘doing
well by doing good’ in order to make a positive impact in the
communities where we do business, paying particular attention to
stakeholder relations, community involvement and support.

Our vision is to be the biggest world brand in Apparel Retailing
and our mission is to make people feel good and look great. We
achieve this through the Group’s corporate values which are
Quality, Knowledge, Innovation, Simplicity and Service (Q.KISS);
that is, we focus on doing things right, updating expertise and
sharing knowledge, thinking out of the box, taking a “/ess is
more” approach and exceeding our customers’ expectations.
These concepts provide the backbone of our philosophy and
shape our strategies.

Furthermore, we deliver responsible products and exceptional
service to our customers in a fair and transparent manner.
We also invest in our employees’ development and foster an
inclusive and supportive working environment, and we implement
a framework to develop strong governance and effective risk
management systems and robust controls.

Giordano has a fluid and continuous strategic planning process
to identify and assess the opportunities and challenges that the
Group might face and to develop a course of action for the Group
to generate sustainable long-term value for the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”). Led by the Chairman and
Chief Executive, Dr. Peter Lau, the Management Committee and
senior management across all regions work closely to ensure
rapid and flowing information exchange to identify opportunities
and challenges.
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The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure that prompt and proactive measures will be
taken to respond to the changes and meet market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.

More information about Giordano’s purpose, vision, values and
corporate culture is set out in this report, the Business Review
section of this annual report, as well as the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report annexed to this annual report.

Corporate Governance

The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework.
The Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential towards upholding
the interests of all stakeholders and maximizing shareholder
value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance.
It is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
has adopted the principles of good corporate governance (the
“Principles”) and the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code of the
Company. The Company remains resolute in its application of
the Principles to the corporate governance of the Group. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance policies
to ensure that they remain updated and in compliance with the
requirements with the Listing Rules. In particular, the Company
adopted new Terms of Reference for the Remuneration
Committee on January 1, 2023, revised the shareholders
communication policy on March 9, 2023 and December 31, 2023
and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy on November 2, 2023.

During the year, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code
Provisions B.2.2 and C.2.1, which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.
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BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards
of the Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-
appointments of Directors, dividends and accounting policies.
The Directors, individually and collectively, are committed to
act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders. The Board also delegates certain powers and
functions to various board committees as detailed in the section
titled “Board Committees” of this report and the ESG report
annexed to the annual report. Save for the power reserved by
the Board or delegated to Board committees, the strategies and
plans as decided by the Board are implemented by Management.
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the
day-to-day operation of the Group.

The Board has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The current
composition of the Board has a strong independence element
and provides sufficient balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives in leading the Company to achieve its goal. The
independent non-executive Directors also provide independent
judgment in the Board’s overall decision-making process. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board independence mechanism for the year ended December
31, 2023 and considered it to be effective.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out below or it may delegate the
responsibility to a committee or committees:

° Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations on changes and updates;

o Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report;

o Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of
disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy
and materiality of inside information and determining the
form and content of any required disclosure; and

° Determining the nature and extent of significant risks
(including the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risks) that the Group are willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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Composition

At as December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience
and provide effective guidance and an outside perspective on
major decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their
duties, the Directors have free and direct access to both the
Company'’s internal and external auditors and procedures are in
place to allow the Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise,
skills and experience that each Director brings individually, the
Group believes that the Board is appropriately structured to
provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board will regularly
review its composition to maintain a proper balance and
diversity of expertise, skills and experience to ensure continued
effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s businesses.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 25
of this annual report.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. Details on the gender
ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be found in the
section titled “Gender Diversity of Workforce” of this report and
the ESG Report on pages ESG.1 to ESG.68 of this annual report.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis and the policy was last reviewed on November 2,
2023.

In accordance with the Principles, the Board has established
three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees.
During the year of 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are set out below.
The composition of the Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are disclosed in the relevant sections of
this report.
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Notes:

C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M Member of the relevant Board Committees

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other required to be
disclosed under the CG Code. Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick, a
non-executive Director, serves as the chief executive officer and
a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”), the
flagship private investment holding company of Dato’ Dr Cheng
Yu Tung’s family and a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited, a substantial Shareholder; and Mr LEE Chi Hin, Jacob,
a non-executive Director, serves as a senior vice president of
CTFE.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their
roles and responsibilities. The relevant Directors will be asked to
abstain from voting on matters as appropriate if and when any
conflicts of interests arise.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of perspectives (including, but not
limited to diversity in accordance with the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy) when assessing potential candidates for the
Board.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws adopted on May 19,
2023 (the “New Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board
(either to fill casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board) is subject to retirement and re-election by
Shareholders at the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) following their appointment. At each AGM, one-third
(or the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) of the
Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) will
retire from office by rotation, and every Director (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director), including those appointed
for a specific term, is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision B.2.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term
of three years and will continue in office thereafter subject to
termination by not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
by either the Non-executive Director or the Company. In addition,
all Non-executive Directors are required to retire from office by
rotation and are subject to re-election by Shareholders at the
AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the Bye-Laws
and Code Provision B.2.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key
factors to the successful implementation of business plans of the
Group. The Board believes that it is beneficial to the Group that
there is continuity in the role of the Chairman and, therefore, the
Board is of the view that the Chairman should be exempt from
this arrangement at the present time.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the composition of the Board at all
times complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Although one of our Independent Non-executive Directors;
namely, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, has served as our Board
members since March 3, 1995 (i.e. for more than nine years)
and that may be relevant to the determination of independence,
it is well-recognized that an individual’s independence cannot
be determined solely on the basis of their length of service. In
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee take into
account the character and judgement demonstrated by the
Directors’ commitment and contribution to the Board during their
years of service and other relevant factors.

We believe that, despite his length of service, Dr. BUTTIFANT has
continued to provide invaluable expertise, experience, continuity
and stability to the Board. His term of service to the Company
has not affected his exercise of independent judgement, and the
Company has benefited from his contribution and the valuable
insights derived from his in-depth knowledge of the Company
and from his work and experience outside of the Company.
Dr. BUTTIFANT has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years.

All Independent Non-executive Directors had provided their
confirmation of independence to the Company in accordance
with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board is of
the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Code Provision B.2.3 provides that if an independent non-
executive director serves more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders.

To comply with Code Provision B.2.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired
voluntarily and was re-elected as Director at the AGM held on
May 20, 2022. Dr. BUTTIFANT shall also retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM in accordance with Bye-Laws 84(1) and 84(2)
of the Bye-Laws. He is being eligible but does not offer himself for
re-election.
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Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional
meetings are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings
are scheduled in advance to facilitate the fullest possible
attendance.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the
Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
business that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at
least 14 days before meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Furthermore, all
Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is also
the Group’s General Counsel, for advice and services to ensure
that board procedures and applicable laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days (or where meetings are called at short notice, as
soon as practicable) before the Board or committee meetings
to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft minutes of
the Board and committee meetings are circulated to all Directors
or committee members for approvals and finalized minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection by all
Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board
meeting may participate electronically by conference call or
via alternate arrangements in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Board approval may
also be obtained by way of circulation of a resolution in writing
on urgent matters when convening a Board meeting is not
practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory materials will
be provided to the Directors at the same time when a resolution
in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, four Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operational updates of the
Group, and to discuss the Group’s strategies, policies and
budgets going forward, as well as other business. In addition, six
sets of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and the AGM during the year ended December 31, 2023 are as
follows:

e BhZEg R%ZEE  FMZES e
g8 ] ] g8 BEXE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM

HTEZE Executive Directors
BIEER L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(FEZTHAEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4 TEANA 2/3 2/2 11
REEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 THEBN/A TEAN/A TEAN/A 1/1
EENEE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 4/4 TEANA TERN/A TERN/A 11
FHTES Non-executive Directors
CRERE Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick 4/4 THEAN/A TEAN/A TERN/A 11
TEEEE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob 4/4 TERAN/A TEAN/A TERAN/A 1/1
BIkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FHENEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 3/4 3/3 3/3 2/2 1
e Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 3/4 3/3 3/3 2/2 11
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDf&E L Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 4/4 3/3 3/3 NEBN/A 11
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A TNKERBEATESHE TEHEA® ©
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EERMATEERATE LT AREENBE
MEE-
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company provides a comprehensive induction
package to each newly appointed Director to ensure that they
are sufficiently aware of their responsibilities and obligations as
directors of a company listed in Hong Kong.
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The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group’s business
and the Company Secretary reports from time-to-time on the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regimes to the
Directors and provides them with reading materials relating to
the latest development of regulatory requirements relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities.

HERBEER
BMEEESE ESREZESR
B & # & B -

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EEHA Name of Directors updates  directors’ duties
HITESE Executive Directors
ZIEEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v X
(FEFITHAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
PREEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v v
BEXSTHE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND v v
FHITES Non-executive Directors
B ERE Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick v v
FEHFEE Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob v X
BIYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ZHRALEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v v
=IBHX Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v X
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD#& £  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v X
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in line with the CG Code.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and
deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive in Dr. LAU provides the Group with strong leadership,
allowing for more effective planning and execution of long term
business strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances
in place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main
elements of this structure include:

° Having five Non-executive Directors out of eight of the
Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

° Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have
free and direct access to both the Company’s internal and
external auditors and independent professional advice
where necessary; and

° Having “whistle-blowing” and “anti-corruption” mechanisms
in place. Details of the “whistle-blowing” and “anti-
corruption” mechanisms are further discussed under the
section “Risk Management and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to
rigorously supervise the Group’s management and effectively
control key issues relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The
Board continually reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether any changes
are necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process and discussing with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit. It is also
responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them
to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited
(the “HKEX”).

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review
financial reporting and risk management and internal control
matters. The chairman of the Risk Management Committee
(who is also an executive Director and the Company Secretary),
the Associate Director of Group Internal Audit (“IA”), the Head
of the Group’s Finance function together with the IA Advisor,
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited (“SHINEWING”) collectively,
the (“IA Team”), and representatives of the external auditor of the
Company are expected to attend the meetings. At the discretion
of the Audit Committee, other members of management may also
be invited to attend its meetings.
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In 2023, the Audit Committee held three meetings. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee, alongside the external auditor,
reviewed the audit strategy summary, the final results for the
year ended December 31, 2022 and the interim results for the
six months ended June 30, 2023. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the activities of the IA team and its internal audit
report, and discussed with the Board the report’s findings
and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure
its effectiveness, paying particular attention to the adequacy
of resources, the qualifications and experience of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting staff, as well as their training
programs and budget. During the year, the Audit Committee
also adopted a Non-Assurance Services Concurrence Policy
on engagement of external auditor for non-audit services. The
external auditor may provide non-audit services to the Group as
permitted under the policy provided that the external auditor’s
independence of audit work shall not be impaired.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year, all of which were fully exempt from reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising
four Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-
executive Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter,
the Chairman of the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and
to identify individuals qualified to become Board members. It is
also responsible for assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and, where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the HKEX.
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In 2023, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to review
the board diversity policy and the nomination policy, to review
the structure, size, composition, skills and diversity matrix of the
Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors to the Board,
to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, to accept the renewal of the service agreement of the
Chairman and Chief Executive and to consider the appointment
of senior management.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time-to-time in determining the optimal composition
of the Board. In view of this, a board diversity policy was
adopted by the Board in 2013, the Nomination Committee
has set measurable objectives based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board. The board diversity policy
focuses on the following areas:-

() increasing diversity at the Board level, which is considered
an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage;

(i)  differences in the skills, regional and industry experiences,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors;

(i) determining the optimum composition of the Board,
which, where and when possible, should be balanced
appropriately; and

(iv) appointments of directors being made on the basis of merit,
in the context of the skills and experience that the Board as
a whole requires in order to be effective.

The Nomination Committee at least annually reviews the Board

Diversity Policy and the policy was last reviewed on November 2,
2023.
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The current Board composition reflects a balanced mix
of age, educational background, professional knowledge,
industry experience and length of service to the Board which
is appropriate for the needs of the business of the Group. The
diversity mix of the Board as at December 31, 2023 and up to the
date of this report is summarized below:

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Board consists of eight members, three of whom are executive
directors, two are non-executive directors and three are
independent non-executive directors who have served on the
Board for a period ranging from 1.25 to 30 years. The Board is
composed of professionals with retail, real estate, investment,
accounting, finance, general management, academic and legal
backgrounds. Of the eight Directors, four members were aged
between 40-49, two members were aged between 50-59, and
two members were aged between 70-79.

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Company has one female director. The Company is committed
to increasing the female representation on the Board gradually
over time. When considering new members for the Board,
appointments will be made by considerations of objective criteria
and due regard will be made to achieving and maintaining an
appropriate balance in diversity, including in terms of gender, on
the Board. Whilst the Board is conscious of achieving gender
diversity on the Board when considering potential candidates,
all appointments will be made on the basis of merit, taking into
account the needs of the Group at the relevant time and the
availability of suitable candidates.

Gender Diversity of Workforce

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had 6,500 employees,
approximately 69.18% of whom were female. As at December
31, 2023, the Senior Management of the Group comprised
approximately 45.00% female members, being the Head of
Product Development, Merchandising & Buying and general
managers in various markets. The Board regularly assesses the
Group’s diversity profile of all levels of employees and considers
the diversity policy to attract, retain and motivate employees from
the widest possible pool of available talent. The Board considers
that the gender ratio of the workforce of the Group, including
the Senior Management, is appropriate for the operations of the
Group and will strive to maintain this ratio.
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Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect
from January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination
Committee adopted a director nomination policy with updates
on November 3, 2022, which sets out the selection criteria
and nomination procedures and process when considering
candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria as
follows:

o Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board composition in line with the
Company'’s strategic objectives;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members on merit and in accordance with the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability
of a candidate pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination
policy and Board diversity policy, and the independence of
an individual for the position of independent non-executive
director; and

o Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
from time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors,
and is chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu), an
Independent Non-executive Director.
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The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the
two models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure relating to
remuneration and compensation for all Directors and senior
management, (ii) determining, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management and (iii) making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for reviewing and/
or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. When the remuneration package of an
individual Director is under review, the Director in question is
required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
revised on January 1, 2023 in accordance with the amendments
to Listing Rules relating to share schemes and the updated terms
of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review and approve the remuneration of the Chairman and Chief
Executive and to review and approve the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management.
No member of the Remuneration Committee was involved in
deciding their own remuneration. During the year, there were
no material matters relating to the share option scheme of the
Company which required review or approval by the Remuneration
Committee.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting,
retaining and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the
Company works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and
aligned with the Company’s objectives and performance. The
Company takes into consideration a number of relevant factors
in determining its remuneration policy, including the salaries paid
by comparable companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
employment conditions in the Group, market practices and the
financial and non-financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the
fees paid by comparable companies, time commitment, the
responsibilities and likely workload of the relevant Directors and
other employment conditions in the Company to ensure that the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors are appropriately remunerated for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees,
(including the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors), is composed of fixed compensation, cash
performance bonuses, variable cash incentives, long-term
incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary,
allowances and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and
allowances are set and reviewed annually for each position,
taking into consideration the Company’s remuneration policy, the
Company’s and the individual’s performance as well as market
conditions and practices. Benefits are regularly reviewed and
determined, given the global reach of the Group’s business,
largely on the basis of local standards and practices.

Employees may also be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus
based on their performance at the Group, business unit and
individual levels. The bonuses awarded to the Chairman and
Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and senior management
are reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee
(provided that any member of the Remuneration Committee
shall not participate in review and approval of his own bonus).
In addition, the Company operates sales and business-related
incentive schemes to motivate certain staff such as front-line
sales associates to achieve specific sales or other business
targets of the Company.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) expired on June 9, 2021. However, the options
granted before the expiry date under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms of issue. The details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
together with information on options exercised and outstanding in
respect of the Directors and employees as at December 31, 2023
under the scheme, are set out in the “Share Option Information”
section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are

set out in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 128 to
130 of this annual report.
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OTHER COMMITTEES

The Company has established other committees to support the
Board and the Board Committees in their governance roles and
responsibilities.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the
review of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee.
Further details on the composition of the Risk Management
Committee and the work carried out by the Risk Management
Committee are set out under the section of “Risk Management
and Internal Control” below. The principal duties of the Risk
Management Committee include oversight and advising on risk
exposure of the Group, assessment of the risk profile and risk
management capabilities of the Group, development and review
of the efficacy of the Group’s internal financial controls, internal
controls and risk management systems, ensuring contingency/
crisis plans and procedures are in place, amongst other things.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Management
Committee. The Management Committee is fully accountable to
the Board and comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive and
the Executive Directors together with one senior management
representative. The terms of reference of the Management
Committee are available on the website of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective control of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, particularly in respect of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an ongoing
basis.
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Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; control over capital expenditure; maintain proper
and accurate accounting records and enhance the reliability of
financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and effectiveness
of operations and compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational
systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework
includes the following major components:

° An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

o Systems and procedures of financial control, risk
management and internal control to identify and measure
risks and conduct bi-annual risk assessment to monitor the
progress of risk mitigation;

o Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting
systems for performance measurement, including regular
variance analysis against budgets and plans, and setting
key business performance targets with appropriate
measures to rectify deficiencies;

° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review
and approval of significant contracts, major capital and
recurrent expenditures;

° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow anonymously and
confidentially report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct (including that of the Directors and senior
management), to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for
further action; and
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° An “anti-corruption” mechanism in place to promote
and support compliance with anti-corruption laws and
regulations and provide guidelines to the employees
about their responsibilities to prevent fraud, to help the
Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any
suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group has a zero-tolerance approach
to all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and
those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of
the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

As at December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this report,
the Risk Management Committee comprises four members,
including the Head of Group’s Compliance function, the Head
of the Group’s Internal Audit function, the Head of the Group’s
Finance function and a senior management representative.
During the year, the Company has engaged SHINEWING, an
external professional firm, as our Internal Audit Advisor to assist
the internal audit function of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee reviews all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, in accordance with the
Code Provisions on risk management and internal control
systems of the CG Code, and reports to the Board twice a year.
The Risk Management Committee is fully accountable to the
Board for providing assurance on managing and monitoring the
systems of risk management and internal controls.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated
and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as their training programmes
and budget for the accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting, and reported to the Board that in all
material respects the systems of risk management and internal
control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing
basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
IA team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and
internal controls of the Group.
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The IA team has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the
Group’s key activities, risk management, control and governance
processes and the keys tasks of |A team include:

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the
units and subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

o Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

o Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and
other Group policy violations; and

o Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

Adopting a risk-based approach, the |IA Team implements the
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and Management,
which is based on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes
independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in
the form of an internal audit report to Management. The IA team
reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on major
findings, corrective actions and responses from Management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access the |IA team
without reference from the Chairman or Management.

During the year, the IA Team issued the internal audit reports to
the Audit Committee and Management, which covered significant
business processes and activities of the Group. It worked with
Management to establish action plans to address any identified
control weaknesses. During the review, there was no material
internal control weaknesses identified, but the IA Team continues
to be vigilant in monitoring the internal control processes of
the Group. Post-audit reviews were performed to ensure those
agreed actions have been implemented as intended.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, and has been
updated from time-to-time. Having made specific enquiries with
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions in respect of their securities
transactions (if any) throughout the year ended December 31,
2023.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs
the securities transactions of those employees who may possess
or have access to inside information. The said code covers areas
such as prohibitions and conduct in the dealing of the Company’s
securities, avoidance of conflict of interests and confidentiality of
the Company’s information, etc. All the specified employees are
reminded of the compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees every six months.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for each financial period to ensure that
they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group, its financial performance and cash flows for that period.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and that where judgment has been applied
and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 66
to 72 of this annual report.
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The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary
since September 2013. He is also an executive Director, the
General Counsel and an employee of the Group. Mr. LOYND is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and
Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in 2023.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, a special resolution was passed at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on May 19, 2023 to
approve the adoption of the new Bye-Laws of the Company (the
“New Bye-Laws”) to, inter alia, (i) in line with the Core Shareholder
Protection Standards set out in Appendix A1 of the Listing
Rules, (ii) reflect certain updates in relation to the applicable
laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules, (iii) provide for flexibility
in the method for holding of general meetings of the Company
whereby, in addition to the traditional physical meeting, general
meetings may be held virtually by electronic means or in a hybrid
format and (iv) to make other consequential and housekeeping
amendments. The New Bye-Laws is available on the websites of
the Company and HKEX.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning Shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations.
The Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open
dialogue with the investment community through company visits,
conference calls, information sessions and participation in major
investor conferences to communicate clearly the Company’s
business strategies, developments and prospects. About 8
meetings with institutional investors and research analysts were
held in 2023.

The Company has a wide and diverse Shareholder base of
institutional and retail investors. To ensure all Shareholders have
equal and timely access to important company information,
the Company proactively utilizes the internet and other forms
of electronic communication to deliver information in a timely
and transparent manner. To strike a balance between keeping
Shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance on the one
hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results on
the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial
results. Instead, the Company publishes operations updates
for the first three and nine month periods on the websites of
the Company and HKEX. Annual and interim reports, Stock
Exchange filings, press releases and other materials are also
accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a Shareholders Communication
Policy and reviews this policy annually to ensure its effectiveness
to enhance Shareholders’ relationship with the Company and
to comply with the relevant rules and corporate governance
code. Such policy aims at providing the Shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

51



52

TEERRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WBCRABABORATA - ARREELA T Z1E
B A R R RE TR ERA

() BBREFEAMBREZXRIAEMT R
IREMFR  PHARERBRZAFB
AR o A AIBAINAEARR 74
ERBEBR GBI ER - REIAE
SKULER A B 38 A & BNl AR

(i) MBHE - FHERLEEGRTIER
ZA/NI ST

(i) BEBXAEMELZAM - REIER
RARBHABOEMEE - X DFIRE
B 5 Pt M AR X R A8 A T B

vy EEEgXEBMEEMBEZT2EKREE
Maeg ERERKREE SRRV

oMEEM

v) BREEAFARGR/IBRRERAERKRER
H—EFE REEASREEABHR
KERANMZRER K

(viy T i i@ B :E (852) 2746 4668 - H &H
(852) 2370 8864 - % ix & F B 4 =
investorrelations@giordano.com 2k Ef &
ZARARTERANFELEME - WAF
RHEH °

FTBEENIESREBAEEZEABHERE
BEARE  WEHFESRBE - BiRESER
PR E RN EETEHE - TN EFE
FH T REBRINEE - o RIF2023F 389
HN&2023F 12 A31HEHE# - KEEREA
ZIEBERBCER2BBRTEHERMERE - &
EeEH RERENABRERAFECHEER
M BABR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

As set out in the Shareholders Communication Policy, the
Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

()  Corporate Communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are provided to Shareholders in both
English and Chinese by sending or otherwise making
available to the Shareholders using electronic means.
Corporate Communications are also available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX. Shareholders can
also request to receive the corporate communications in
printed form.

(i) financial highlights, press releases and results presentations
are also posted on the Company’s website;

(i)  periodic announcements, corporate information and any
changes to the Bye-Laws of the Company are made
through the Stock Exchange and published on the
respective websites of the HKEX and the Company;

(iv) participation by the Board members and the Director
of Group Finance in investors’ conferences to meet
Shareholders/investors, media and financial analyst;

(v) AGMs and/or general meetings provide a forum for the
Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

(vi) enquiries may be raised with the Company by telephone
at (852) 2746 4668, by facsimile at (852) 2370 8864, by
e-mail at investorrelations@giordano.com or by post to the
Company'’s principal place of business for the time being.

All Directors and key senior management members use their
best efforts to attend the Shareholder meetings and, during
their attendance, they are actively engaged in dialogue, with the
Shareholders who wish to exchange views with them. During the
year, the Board has examined and reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy and updated the same on March 9,
2023 and December 31, 2023 respectively. Having considered
the implementation and effectiveness of multiple channels of
communication and engagement in place, the Board is satisfied
that the Shareholders Communication Policy has been properly
implemented during the year and is effective.
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The Board welcomes Shareholders’ views on matters affecting
the Group, and encourages their attendance at Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they may have with
the Board or Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an
especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at least
21 clear days’ prior notice. To ensure clear communication,
each substantially separate issue is proposed under a separate
resolution.

Investors and Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may
do so by contacting our Investor Relations Department whose
contact details are listed on page 176 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision F.1.1, the Company has adopted a
policy with regard to the declaration of dividends on November
8, 2018. Such policy aims to allow Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the Shareholders
through the payment of dividends, which is subject to the
Company’s capacity to pay from accumulated and future
earnings, cash availability and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from
time-to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends (if any).

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are
dependent upon, among other matters, the dividends received
from the Company’s subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend
on such subsidiaries’ distributable profits, operating results,
financial condition, capital expenditure plans and other factors.
The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.
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The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company,
where applicable. Even if the Board decides to recommend and
pay dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors of and affecting the Group.

The Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s approach on the
financial and cash flow requirements of the Group prevailing at
the time of its adoption. The Board will review the policy from
time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
or at the registered office of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition pursuant to Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to
be called can be sent to the Company’s registered office and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong as set out in the
“Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at a
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth
(1/20) of the total voting rights of the Company having, on
the date of the requisition, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b) notless than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by all the
requisitionists concerned, together with a statement with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong,
in the case of a requisition requiring a notice of a resolution,
not less than six weeks before the meeting and, in the case
of any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting. The Company will take appropriate action and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned will be
responsible for any expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of
the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Hong Kong, March 12, 2024

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

55



56

EEEHES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEMAREARAEFBHZ2023F12A31H 1k
FEZEBZAHYBRE -

FEXEK
AARA—HEEERAR - AEEZEE
¥ ABKETE MD t8Giordano & Giordano
Junior ~ Giordano Ladies ~ BSXA R H M B A
RIREREZ R - BEZSEREUTRTS
DEAHERE BB AEEBEREER R
B YA FTERNRE AR

o E & #
KREBHE2023F12 A31 H IEFEAME &
b 2 RIB DWW R ERHIFES ©

EBEE

FRASEEBNERINANFRFESEESE
19EM ERE 2Rl RO IZEEIA - R
SEEEMEZRR &K THEARZHMULE R
KERWAREBHEE - NI EREMFEIL
HEFR NALEBMBREELERE  WERSE
HAEEBEFENENEN - AEBNEKRE
ZFRISENAFHREISEN [EEE ZHl
M IARE « MR EE R R RIRIBEMN
TERBRVBEEEHNFETSEEF168E
R [ERE 2wl kDT | ZEER o ANA R H
FEFMHEFR2EI N ANEERNIRBEBR X
RENENHRAFREESG.1 BEEESG.68
BMIRE - 2 RERAWE -

A EEDBARE

EREEO—BH -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s,
women’s and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands. Although targeting different market
segments, the brands all strive to deliver excellent quality, value
and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by
brand for the year ended December 31, 2023 is set out in Note 5
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 19 of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group can be found throughout this annual report, particularly
in Note 3 to the financial statements. No important event affecting
the Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under
review. The outlook of the Group’s business is discussed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section on page 18 of
this annual report. Certain financial key performance indicators
which complement and supplement our financial disclosures
are set out on pages 73 to 168 as well as in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders and discussions on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance are included
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
ESG.1 to ESG.68 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the
Group. The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal and company secretarial department.

The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as well as their subsidiary
legislation, codes and guidelines are the principal sources of
our compliance obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also
apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong
and elsewhere, we rely on the assistance of external law firms
and professional advisers to manage our legal and compliance
risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in
laws and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also
regularly remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023
and the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 73 to 168 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 17.0 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 15, 2023.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 13.5 HK cents
per share for the year ended December 31, 2023. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
AGM, the final dividend will be payable on June 14, 2024 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on June 3, 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2023, the retained profits of the Company
together with the contributed surplus available for distribution
amounted to HK$673 million (2022: HK$423 million).
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2023 are set out in Note 40 to the financial
statements.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed
under Share Option Information section in this annual report, no
equity- linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 29%
Five largest suppliers combined 55%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$21,000 (2022: HK$235,000).

BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans for the year are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick
Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-Laws,
Mr. Mark Alan LOYND, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Dr. Alison
Elizabeth LLOYD shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM.
Mr. Mark Alan LOYND and Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD, being
eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election while Dr. Barry
John BUTTIFANT, being eligible but does not offer himself for
re-election at the AGM.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed under Directors and Senior Management
Profiles section on pages 20 and 25 to this annual report, there
is no other change in the Directors’ biographical details which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the
Listing Rules since the report date of 2023 Interim Report of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM do not have any service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
respective close associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

RAEXRRGRAEBRD ZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FrisEBEREA
Number of ordinary shares held
PTETERESR
(BB HE) BARKRE DL
fBA R (Hat15%2) (Ht53)
(KizF1) Derivative Approximate
BEEHE Personal interests &5t percentage of
Name of Directors interests (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
2B 27,518,000 - 27,518,000 1.71%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
[R5z 45 756,000 7,700,000 8,456,000 0.52%
CHAN Ka Wai
EEX - 9,064,000 9,064,000 0.56%
Mark Alan LOYND
HaE - Notes:

(1) BZEEZIEHBEFIEAERHAAFENE (1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial

owners.

(2)  PTAETAEZZHERD IR GFRAZERE  (2)  Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to

FAETRTEEZERE  BHEHEINAFHR

F169H5Z2F1758 -

on pages 169 to 175 of this annual report.

the share option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out

(B) & R2023F 12 H31 HA X El 2 #Fi7HK% (3  Basedon 1,613,416,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December

1,613,416,518fK51 & -
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the material related party transactions are disclosed in
Note 36 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on
pages 169 to 175 to this annual report, at no time during the year
under review was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
businesses.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at December 31, 2023, the following persons
(other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

BAOFRE D
(Hizt2)

g ERYE Approximate

Number of percentage of
TERREEB 54 ordinary  shareholding
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held (Note 2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) REHEE 2 388,180,000 24.05%
Limited(#Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) REHEE 2 s 388,180,000 24.05%
Limited#anote 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (##Note 1) Sy B 7 #E 7 388,180,000 24.05%
Interest of controlled corporation
AAREER)ARAR([EAXREER]) XEHEER 2 #Em 388,180,000 24.05%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTFH")(stNare 1)
ARBRIBABRAR(TEAARBRIEAL XEHEE 2 #m 388,180,000 24.05%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(“CTFN”)(/WE}*NME 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited EnEA A 388,180,000 24.05%

(“Sino Wealth”)

Hizt -

(1)

@)

R2023%F 12H31H -+ Sino Wealth#% %388, 180,000
BAERAGR G - EHEAXELEAZEER @ M
BIX ECEEA R B K381 RREH - Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited X% Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1l) Limited & Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited 3 fll # & #748.98% X 46.65% &
25 [ Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8l 1% B A
TR FF 5 #981.03% # 7 » Ft Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited + Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 11) Limited Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited ~ B AFEFERR K JEA 48 (L FEA #4273 Sino
Wealth AT #5745 22 el R 17 # B 1 2 ©

& R 2023 F 12 H 31 H A a2 %77 KRG
1,613,416,518fK51 &

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

Beneficial owner

Notes:

(1)

@)

As at December 31, 2023, 388,180,000 shares of the Company were held
by Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled
by CTFH. Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1) Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65%
interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held an
approximately 81.03% interest in CTFH and accordingly each of Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1l) Limited,
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTFH and CTFN is deemed to have an
interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

Based on 1,613,416,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December
31, 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details
of the movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 169 to 175 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interests. Information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 55 of this annual
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated
and promoted on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. Please refer to Note 2 to the financial statements
for details of the retirement benefits provided to employees of the
Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market standards. Particulars of the emoluments of
Directors on a named basis for the year are set out in Note 10 to
the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-
appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the
Company and to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed for approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 12, 2024
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B R Ak

To the Members of
Giordano International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 73 to 168, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
impairment assessment of goodwill.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BREITSE
Key Audit Matter

BN ESOMEEEEETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB R EFE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BRHEHYBREZN 24 BHE) - S5 HEFH
Wiatog) R EZ & at KA it it 4a(i) -
Refer to note 24 "Goodwill”, Accounting Policies
note 2(j) and Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements in note 4(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements

FITREHEERBRNBELASMNERT -
RERBBEA UG EM B ARREEE B XK
(AT DM ABRREEEZEEGERK]) - it
HomBewoMezReEFE AU TEE 1R
SEEBT])  ETHERENH -

Goodwill of HK$541 million on the consolidated
balance sheet arose from the acquisitions of the
Giordano Gulf Cooperation Council businesses
(the “Gulf Cooperation Council Business”), which
has been allocated to a group of cash generating
units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing.

AN ARRAFEESXEBReEEE AN
el eETFHEUNEREREMBEREARE
B WHERARBEREHENAKTE -

The assessments of the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs for the Gulf Cooperation Council
Business were based on the cash flow projections
prepared by management, using fair value less
costs of disposal calculations.

B ZEHRERRAMERE R EEENS
B ARRAIFRE B G EBHARKREEMIENE
24 -

We focused on these balances because the
valuation models involve significant judgements
made by management about the future results of
the Gulf Cooperation Council Business.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BAEAT A ERE R E A EERSARANGER AR GERENE
EUMRFHEGERE W EERARETSHRENSNAELETL
B RAR BMENELEREREEZATNBEETHER - ATEE
BRERMEHIRIZHMNA -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the process by which
the models were drawn up and compared the underlying inputs to the
latest Board approved budget. We also compared historical actual
results to those budgeted to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process.

BMZFE@IAEPRANERRRERA - FAIE
We have focused on the key assumptions and inputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

. FANERARTIRE - WRERBARMITERERKFEN AL
BRNEARARHZ SR T ETAE
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

. TR FEHEEREXERGELFETNERERE  ARBELERAE
RREEMNARREEZESEBRHENZ OIS - HFHES
EFEASEREMEN EBRRENBEETEARBENERA
BRAC IR RTEAETT 7 LLER ©

the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key drivers
of the valuation of the Gulf Cooperation Council Business. We
compared management’s assumptions of these against external
retail industry outlook reports and country specific economic
growth forecasts from different sources.

BT HEEEYHERAPARAFERINGEAEEHHREE
FETTANRESENHRE -

We evaluated management’s sensitivity of a reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions adopted in the valuation models to the
recoverable amounts of the group of CGUs.

BPIRBERMBHRSENFAFRMRETENRERSKE
We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures relating to the impairment
assessment in the context of applicable financial reporting standards.

ERRBZERE  BARKEREBNREMEREANHBNRRERSF
B FF o

We found that management’s judgements and assumptions used in
the impairment assessment were supportable, based on the available
evidence obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Ka Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2024
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CRGEIR RS
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE2023F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(B & TSN - (In HK$ million, Kt

HKEEBTRENMN) except earnings per share) Note 2023 2022
WA Revenue 5 3,873 3,799
SHE B Cost of sales 7 (1,610) (1,653)
EF Gross profit 2,263 2,146
HEiW A R EMmWE - F Other income and other gains, net 6 68 72
DIHER Distribution expense 7 (1,630) (1,594)
THEA Administrative expense 7 (198) (199)
18 a A Operating profit 7 503 425
BMEEH Finance expense 8 (40) (25)
EIE—EEaE R 7 aT Share of profit of a joint venture 20 45 36
¥ TS8R Al 7 Profit before income taxes 5 508 436
FTiS %1 Income taxes 11 (119) (107)
REERAEHRERF Profit after income taxes for the year 389 329
PEqh - Attributable to:

P N/N L 2 Shareholders of the Company 345 268

FEFE I Non-controlling interests 44 61

389 329

AABIREEMGZ Earnings per share attributable to

B & F shareholders of the Company 12

EARCGEN) Basic (HK cents) 21.6 17.0

BE CE) Diluted (HK cents) 21.4 16.9
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EEERaE R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B ZE2023F 12 A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2023
Het
(U BFEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2023 2022
KEERBHEBER Profit after income taxes for the year 389 329
Hpima s - Other comprehensive income:
TeEHHHEEEREKEZEE - Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
REMEEAWSIE AR ERIE  Fair value change on financial asset at fair value
ZEREEAAEE through other comprehensive income 19 2 1)
N B AT IEIE SIS E Exchange adjustments on translation of
E2REEHFE overseas subsidiaries which are attributed to
the non-controlling interests - (15)
A EHHEEEZEEZIER ¢ Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
BIHINB AT - —FHEER Exchange adjustments on translation of
o ARz BREE overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture and
branches (10) (63)
REEHGERE Total comprehensive income for the year 377 250
FEAE - Attributable to:
ViN/NETD ) Shareholders of the Company 333 204
FEVE Il 1 M 2 Non-controlling interests 44 46
377 250
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EHEERREXR
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

Kt

(UXGEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
REEE Current assets
Re MRTTET Cash and bank balances 14 935 960
JE U B 5 K B A JiE L R Trade and other receivables 16 319 390
58 Inventories 17 474 612
M BN RIA Rental prepayments 18 3 4
REGEEANEREZ Financial asset at fair value

SRLEE through profit or loss 15 - 6
AT Bl Fr 45 A 3K Income tax recoverable 4 5
B EEHALE Total current assets 1,735 1,977
IRBEE Non-current assets
REMEGEWZSIE AL ERE Financial asset at fair value through other

L EREE comprehensive income 19 1 3
REZERARBEEREREZ Financial asset at fair value through

SREE profit or loss 15 28 28
He Rk E AR K Deposits and other receivable 16 74 73
—EEaE R ER Interest in a joint venture 20 494 490
A Investment properties 21 16 18
ME - RN Property, plant and equipment 22 166 133
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 23 762 690
EES Gooduwill 24 541 541
EEFRIEE E Deferred tax assets 32 39 55
FRBEELTE Total non-current assets 2,121 2,031
EEHBTE Total assets 3,856 4,008
EERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
RBAE Current liabilities
|ITENK Bank loans 29 30 12
JEATBR B R ELAth FE T 3K Trade and other payables 30 552 555
HE&E Lease liabilities 23 329 326
BEAHHREEE Put option liabilities 31 81 81
JERTPTISHR Income tax payables 104 113
REEEARE Total current liabilities 1,096 1,087
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EHEEREER(E)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

Hat

(A BEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2023 2022
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 23 337 287
FRIEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 111 112
ERBABEE Total non-current liabilities 448 399
BERE Total liabilities 1,544 1,486
B R Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 25 81 79
R Reserves 28 1,890 2,001
BRI S Proposed dividends 13 218 237
7NN 323 Equity attributable to

FE1G = shareholders of the Company 2,189 2,317
FEFE SR A Non-controlling interests 26 123 205
ERBE Total equity 2,312 2,522
ERRkEBHEE Total equity and liabilities 3,856 4,008
BRABEE Net current assets 639 890
EEABERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,760 2,921
PREZE BEY
CHAN Ka Wai Mark Alan LOYND
E3 EF
Director Director
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EHRERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HZE2023F 12 A31ALLEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2023
HiaF

(X BEETRENL) (In HK$ million) Note 2023 2022
BEEK . Operating activities:
& TS50 Al i ) Profit before income taxes 508 436
E Adjustments for:
JE1E —FR & & 2 7)E A Share of profit of a joint venture 20 (45) (36)
REREEAREREZ Fair value loss (gain) on financial asset at

TREEZARE fair value through profit or loss

B8 (W) 6 6 (6)
& TE T R IE Amortization of rental prepayments 18 1 1
FEHBA Interest income 6 (23) (12)
M - WERRER Depreciation of property, plant and

"EEITE equipment and investment properties 7,21, 22 53 47
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7, 23 412 393
HEWE  BREREHEZ Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

FEE equipment 6 1 -
FREEEZREBE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 - 3
EREEE 2 RERD Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 23 - 2)
PRETFERE (BERBR )KL Net provision (reversal of provision) for

T & M 3 % 58 obsolete stock and stock written off 7 3 (4)
EW R BB EEEE Change in loss allowance for trade receivables 16 (4) )
BEER Finance expense 8 40 o5
bEE 3 R 2 Exchange difference - (24)
BEAS - NEBERFEREE Operating cash inflow before changes in

Al Z EEIBERA working capital, interest and income taxes 952 819
FE 2R () Decrease (increase) in inventories 135 )
FEUCBR 2 N B fh FE U FR 2 R Decrease in trade and other receivables 24 54
FENBRAR R EM BRI (Decrease) increase in trade and other

OB ) 3& N payables (18) 40
KEEBMEE RS Cash generated from operations 1,093 911
EASHLE Interest paid (40) (25)
EREEFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (2) -
BAEINRIE Overseas tax paid (109) (76)
REER CEHESRAEEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 942 810

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHRERER(E)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

HE2023F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

HaF
(KXBEBETREL) (In HK$ million) Note 2023 2022
BREEK . Investing activities:
BEWE  WELRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 22 (87) (66)
HEWE  BRNEHEZ Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
Fri5 k18 and equipment - 1
e kHEMmEWT 2 (3E1)  (Increase) decrease in deposits and other
Vo receivables (4) 8
e TN FRIA 2 IE N Increase in rental prepayments 18 - )
$R17E BATE SR 2 3B N Increase in bank time deposits 14 (115) 61)
2 HF & Interest received 23 12
Bl—EaERalkE Dividends received from a joint venture 20 28 32
REEB 2RSSR FE Net cash outflow from investing activities (155) (76)
BEEK . Financing activities:
e RHMEWR Y (3%1)  (Increase) decrease in deposits and other
Vo receivable (1) 1
FREEECHENK Leases payment for right-of-use assets - 3)
MEBBI ARSI 2FE  Payment for principal elements of lease
liabilities 35 (400) (402)
BEITIRANFTISFIE Proceeds from issue of shares 47 3
£ Bl Share repurchase - 3)
HE—RHNBARZ Proceeds from disposal of partial interest in a
ot 2 FTS50A subsidiary 2 _
WigE—FRIMB AR Z Payment for acquisition of additional interest
FEHMERS Y 2k in a subsidiary (3) -
B IR S S AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (75) @)
ERIRE Dividends paid (514) (292)
IR ITER Addition of bank loans 35 123 44
EBEBEITER Repayment of bank loans 35 (105) (199)
MEXE2HREREFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (926) (853)
ReERASEEZAD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (139) (119)
FUNHRESRBESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 860 1,004
HERBELZSHEINMEERSE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
k-7 on cash and cash equivalents (1) (25)
FRASTRHESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 720 860
BEeREEEEERZON ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re RRITET Cash and bank balances 14 935 960
B ERER=(EALAL3E Less: Bank deposits with maturity over three
ZHBITER months, from date of deposit (215) (100)

720 860

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHREZEH X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2023F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

ARARRELRS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

i
(HBEE#TAEL) Share
(In HKS milion) capital

N
Contributed
surplus

EARERE
Capital
redemption
reserve

REMEARE
BAMEREZ
EREERR
Financial asset Fist
BRERE at fair value %
RtEE Share ERGfE EfpffE  through other KSR Non- ERllE
Share options Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained A%t controlling Total
premium reserve reserve reserves  income reserve profits Total interests equity

20231 A1A
At January 1, 2023 79

383

983 2 (84) 118 ®) 819 2317 205 259

RERRAER &R
Profit after income taxes for the year -
Attralis
Other comprehensive income:
-REMFANERAAEREL
SREAEMENED
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income -
-BIMBAR  —HAERARAARAE
ZERHE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches -

iy

- - (10) - - - (10) - (10)

aFakE
Total comprehensive income -

- - (10) - ) 5 333 “ an

REMGFARERA ERE SRHERNILE
Disposal of financial asset at fair value through

other comprehensive income -
HRERS
Transactions with shareholders:
REHEg
Transfer among reserves -
Bzl
Share option scheme

-RirRERERE T RS

Share issue upon exercise of share options 2

R ERRE
Dividends to non-controlling interests -
WE-HRELAR EMER
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary -
HE-ENBRA I ER
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary -
2ERERE (Wit 13p)
2022 final dividend (Note 13b)) -
NBERHRE (Wit 130)
2023 interim dividend (Note 13/a)) -

45 - - - - - a7 - o
- - - - - - - 75 75)

- - - 6 - - 6 (53) (47)

. - - - - (240) (240) - (240)

R . . - - (274) (274) - (274)

45 ®) - 6 1 (509) 461) (126) (587)

R2023512831R
At December 31, 2023 81

383

1,028 16 (94) 124 U] 655 2,189 123 2312
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EHEZEBR(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HE2023F12A31BILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

ARAREELER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REMEERE
BRABREL
Financial asset JiEgl
BAEOHA B at fair value s
i GABH Capital fRiEE Share 30 £l through other petedei Non- e antor
(WEEATAER) Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Exchange Other  comprehensive Retained A controling Total
(In HKS millon) Capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves income reserve profits Total interests equity

Ro0£1R 1R
At January 1, 2022 79 33 3 980 2 1) 115 5 844 2402 161 2,563

RERRAEREZEN
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 268 268 61 329
Afbala
Other comprehensive income:
-REMEARERANEREL
SREENLENE
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - 1) - 1) - (1)
-BHERR - —HARAARARRAE
ZERHE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, a joint venture
and branches - - - - - 63) - - - (63) (15) (78)

f5eha
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 63) - (1) 268 204 46 250

BHRRS :
Transactions with shareholders:
i
Transfer among reserves - - - - 2 - 3 - 2 3 - 3
B
Share option scheme

-RirieEREmETZRA

Share issue upon exercise of share options - - - 3 - - - - - 3 - 3

I ERRE
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - 2 @
NANEREREHZ130)
2021 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - - - - (158) (158) - (158)
2 HRE Wit 138)
2022 interim dividend (Note 13(3)) - - - - - - - - (134) (134) - (134)
BEZIRM (Hizt2o)
Shares repurchased (Nots 25(c)) - - - - - - - - 8] () - 8]

- - - 3 2 - 3 - (293) (289) ) (291)

#20225128318
At December 31, 2022 79 383 3 983 2 (84) 118 6) 819 2317 205 2522

80 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) distribute and sell
fashion apparel under the brand names of Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, Beau Monde as well
as other owned and licensed brands through an extensive
network with approximately 1,800 shops spanning over 30
countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3,
1995 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is 5th Floor, Tin
On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary listing
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented
in million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on March 12, 2024.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

2.

EXRETHE(E)
(a) MREE(E

0B B B T 4R 4 B A BB T
BREBERE TESRH (3 -
EREENBEERASEE Y 0
BRI - ETEEEEH
B 55 AR B0 - S A DB TS
REREEAPE 2 BRAMBERH
AR -

RAEE  AEECHRMAE S ST
Rl A& M8 R PT A BN & B 754
BB R2023F1 A1 B Z FE8
HIAE A ER MR BIEET -

KWEBSEUNFE125R (EEF]
K)-HE-XIFMSIBNEERE
BRENELERIE @ ERAEER
FrEEEERENERIEEZER
FEEFRIE - B E2022F1H1H
R ZEREEFEN 2 K
BIREEFTSHEE R B EHEKED
DZIEE BT E2022F1H1H
2022512 A31 HA F I BN
RS FRA BB EER B EREE
AEBREHBESBETEE BT
HERFE12 IR TR EE -

HRMEMEEFTHEI RRER
SEHAEESHTRRLBERY

B o
=
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
amendments to standards and interpretation issued by
the HKICPA that are relevant to the Group’s operations
and mandatory for annual periods beginning January 1,
2023.

The adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendments) — Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities from a Single
Transaction requires the Group to recognize deferred
tax for all temporary differences related to leases.
The retrospective application from January 1, 2022
primarily impacts disclosures of components of
deferred tax assets and liabilities before offsetting in
note 32, but does not impact the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at January 1, 2022 and December
31, 2022, as the related deferred tax balances qualify
for offsetting under HKAS 12.

The adoption of other amendments to standards and

interpretation does not have a material impact on the
Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. EXEFEHER(E)

(b)

(c)
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202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impact of amended standards

The Group has applied the following amended
standards issued by HKICPA which were relevant and
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on or
after January 1, 2023:

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred tax related to
assets and liabilities
arising from a single
transaction

Amendments to
HKAS 12

International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model
Rules

Amendments to
HKAS 12

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, financial results, or position.

Amended standards issued, but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the amended
standards that have been issued but not yet effective.
The adoption of these is not expected to have a
material impact on the financial results or position of
the Group.
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023F12H318

December 31, 2023
2. BERGHHE(E)
(d) MIEBLRA

(i)

B pt

fi B AR AAREIES 2 BiE
(BREBEER) E4X%
EHSRERET TP O H
EERRRZBEN AN S
BHERZBNTEZFOR
5 - BIERISIE I - M7
ERtIEEEEASEZHS
HE& AR o B QR EES
BRIEZ AR EAFAR -

REBEO

AEBRABEEHERA G
AR - BENB AR TEES
HE - RAEEREE SR
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interests in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired are recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognized and previously held interests
measured are less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost, less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Joint arrangements

()

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor have. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of
the post- acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
senior decision makers. The senior decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
have been identified as the directors and senior
management that make strategic decisions.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s companies are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies

(iv)

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyper inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average rate
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case,
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rate on transaction dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entities
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the equity holders of
the company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other
fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost represents the purchase price of the asset and
other costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost over their estimated useful lives or lease term, as
follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease
term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease or their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion.
- Plant and equipment 5 years
- Other property and equipment 3 -5 years
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or
both. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
represents the purchase price of the investment
property and other costs incurred to bring the property
into its existing use. Depreciation of investment
property is calculated using straight-line method to
write off its cost over the unexpired period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when
they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising from derecognized of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognized.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)]

(k)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“*CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
related to the entity sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss),
and

- those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortized cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains (losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized
in other gains (losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains (losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains (losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognized
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group'’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognized in other gains (losses) in
the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortized cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced
prices plus procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at
which inventories can be sold in the normal course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within bank loans in current liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
stated at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the bank loans using the
effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options
issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary
companies are accounted for as financial liabilities
when such options may only be settled other than
by exchange of a fixed amount of cash or at the fair
market value of the equity interest of the investees. The
amount that may become payable under the option on
exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs with
a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put
options, determined as the excess of the fair value
of the option over any consideration received, as a
financing cost. Such options are subsequently re-
measured at fair value as a result of the change in
the expected settlement amount at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting changes recognized
in the equity. In the event that the option expires
unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized
as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Current and deferred tax

(i)

(ii)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries and regions where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements
in Taiwan, the Group operates defined
contributions schemes and, if applicable,
participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified
employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions
to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on
the employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plans and mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred and, if
applicable, are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme or the
plan prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group in Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme
(“Old Scheme”) governed by the Labor Standard
Law and a defined contribution scheme (“New
Scheme”) governed by the Labor Pension Act
which became effective on July 1, 2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient
funds in the scheme to pay the benefits earned
for the service years of all employees before the
New Scheme was effective and the subsequent
service years of employees who chose to
continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branch currently contributes at 2% of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined
and approved by the relevant government
authorities. The assets of the Old Scheme are
invested by the Bank of Taiwan.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(v)

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations (continued)

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes
each month at 6% of the salary of employees,
with a cap of NTD9,000 who choose to
participate in the New Scheme into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non- market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement and
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
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2. EXBITHE(HE) 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(w) Revenue recognition

WARE Wk RS EN AR EET
2 UTHEREHEESE® EI'JFEJ&/TA
I8 - MIBRITH - B0 - REANIEE
PRSI - B A RS FERESA] 5
AFE BEARRLEBENZRABERA

LR REAKEGIHEEEHY
e EBGMR(TIXAm) - A
SEFEBKARR AEBEZIR
BREABIEERFPERN X5
EEMGEL O SEEL &5 -

(i) EmEE-ZTE&
EmZHEENHEERTER
R -  TEHEBREARSE
SEMREE - Micikz Was
RIFERTE - ERRINRR S
R EARER Jit%;%i
ﬁﬁ@%& ﬁiéi}ﬂZ$EP $HE

BERERE - @RI -

(ii) HEERm—FFAHBTE
(IE fE W 28 )
KEER T AR HHE -
BERANEYRRERY -
NEEREBYREZBAM -
BEROINHERSHERREL
BIE - WaENED RSN
1R SHE 12248 A R BMETHER ©

BEHNRAERERESEN LR
SRR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, rebates, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are sold to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash or by credit card. The recorded revenue
is the gross amount of sales, before netting off
credit card fees payable for the transactions.
Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

(ii) Sales of goods — customer loyalty programme
(deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchases. A contract liability for the award
points is recognized at the time of sale. Revenue
is recognized when the points are redeemed or
when they expire 24 months after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points
are redeemed or expired.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method, taking into account the principal amount
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Royalty and licensing income

Royalty and licensing income are recognized
on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received,;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognized as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: (a)(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)
(iii) liquidity risk, (a)(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b)
capital risk management and (c) fair value estimation.
The Group’s overall risk management program seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when
necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognized
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of
the Group mainly arises from purchases from
a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales
proceeds in local currencies of the relevant
group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising from
recognized assets and liabilities is considered
to be insignificant. This is because the balances
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
are generally settled promptly leaving minimal
outstanding foreign currency position as at the
balance sheet date.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities, companies in the Group may use
forward foreign exchange contracts when major
fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is
anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily
attributable to balances with banks, trade and
other receivables and rental deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group
mainly places the deposits in banks with high
credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank
transfer, through credit cards or through
reputable and dispersed department stores. The
Group’s credit sales are only made to wholesale
and franchise customers, with an appropriate
credit history and on credit terms of 30 to
90 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of
debtors of the Group as at December 31, 2023

A ° and 2022.
(A BFEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
EESPE Counterpart:
BEARA Department stores 141 129
INER R Franchisees 52 59
fE U= B RER Credit card

receivables 19 18
Htb Others 22 23
U BR IR (Kat16) Trade receivables

(Note 16) 234 229
¥x Landlords 142 145

376 374

FE U5 AR 5% Trade receivables

AEBERTEVERELER
FORMEZBETE  EA
ATE P B 5 AR E A TR
AHERFHEREE - REtE
BHEEER  BURREE
AREERBRFEM DA

ERRYEERFT  BFHEES
RE QA fe A R fE B 5 R
o MEBEERREERRT
= o REBEZEHTFHER
REBR -  ERETIERZ
FRUWERNEEEZ KD
#e IRREBHEERR
IR/ - e T5E BRI RRER
BEBERAEEER -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on share
credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties
primarily are large corporation and have
strong financial position and management
considers the credit risk is not high. The
Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of these receivables and consider
that the expected credit risks of them are minimal
in view of the history of cooperation with them
and forward looking information.
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3. IXEREERAAEBE(E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) HHERABEE(E) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) EERK(E) (i) Credit risk (continued)

H fth /& AR 5t Other receivables

REBEZEFNEE VIR R The directors of the Group consider the

ZERENHAREN - RFHAR probability of default upon initial recognition of

FEFEERBERFERENY asset and whether there has been significant

e £ HEERRE TZE% increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during

by jli]:Raie S Iﬂqi,‘\ & E the year. To assess whether there is a significant

BB AR R b B Y in FE R B increase in credit risk the Group compares risk of

AR E A B ETTELE » B 5l a default occurring on the assets as at year end
REATUATEE date with the risk of default as at the date of initial

recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated.

o EE  HMBRLEMRRI e Actual or expected significant adverse
E’\]if‘”ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ?"i%ﬁ changes in business, financial economic
TR Z{FEHRHERA conditions that are expected to cause a
BITEME® ﬁuj]?’ii significant change to the company’s ability
REIL to meet its obligations;

s RAEIREXRBEBERKAE e Actual or expected significant changes in
,HH???EEK“TI: ; the operating results of the company;

e RAEHRBERITRE e Significant changes in the expected
FERNEL  BREE= performance and behavior of the company,
T RIEREE S - including changes in the payment status of

the third party.

T Bty - #FERE Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
W RBEREBENEBA increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
BHEEBI0H  AIREEE is more than 30 days past due in making a
[B\ B2 R WR I N o contractual payment/repayable demand.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded within 365 days of when
they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the
financial assets, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for expected
credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of debtors,
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2023,
management consider other receivables
as low credit risk as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses
for other receivables and the loss allowance
provision recognized during the year for these
balances is not material.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
and cash equivalents, which is generated from
the operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022, all of the Group’s and Company’s financial
liabilities are due within one year, except to note
followings:

154
{B5% AaR
After RenE
15/ oneyear SEN L Total FAR
Within  but within Over contractual  Carrying
(WEEETEEN) (In HKS million) oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cash flows amount
H2023E12A31H As at December 31, 2023
HERRE Lease liabilties 357 354 1 12 666
120025 12A31H As at December 31, 2022
HEBE Lease liabilities 344 295 3 642 613

REeRENZRERE

B4 $R 1777 709.3518 8 7T (2022
F :9.6018B L) RIRTTER
3,000 7 7T (20224 : 1,200
BEL) AEEVEHME
AitBEERARE - WEBE
KB ZRITERKIRITEE
SAEEEHRERENER
% EZERREAEE ¥
BYFEKR - AEBZWAR
KERERERABETE TS
MERBFHTE - SIBETEHK
BN EESFHNFETTERK o
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(iv)

Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$935 million
(2022: HK$960 million) and bank loan of HK$30
million (2022: HK$12 million); the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The bank balance and bank borrowings
at floating rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is insignificant to the
Group. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the
changes in interest rates.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as maximizing returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash
and bank balances and bank loans as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group
may raise long term debts, adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders and issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2023, the
Group maintained a net cash position of HK$905
million (2022: HK$948 million).

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

are disclosed by the level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are

not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
date of the statement of financial position. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2. No financial instrument is included
in Level 2 as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI and FVPL
measured at fair value are included in Level 1 and level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 19 and
15).

As at December 31, 2023, if there had been a 5%
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial asset
at FVOCI and financial asset at FVPL with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have
increased/decreased by HK$0.1 million (2022: HK$0.2
million) and net profit would have increased/decreased
by HK$1.4 million (2022: HK$1.7 million).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(i) Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in economic conditions in places where the
Group operates and changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at each balance sheet date.

(ii) Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;

- Right-of-use assets;

- Interest in a joint venture; and

- Goodwill.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #



B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables) (continued)

The sources utilized to identify indications of
impairment are often subjective in nature and the
Group is required to use judgement in applying such
information to its business. The Group’s interpretation
of this information has a direct impact on whether an
impairment assessment is performed as at the end of
any given reporting period.

If an indication of impairment is identified, such
information is further subject to an exercise that
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable
amount, representing the greater of the asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use.
Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity
of deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessments
utilizing internal resources or the Group may engage
external advisors to counsel the Group. Regardless
of the resources utilized, the Group is required to
make many assumptions to make these assessments,
including the utilization of such asset, the cash flows
to be generated, appropriate market discount rates
and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iv) Fair value of written put option liabilities

(v)

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the
equity of subsidiary companies. The Group recorded
such written put option liabilities at their fair values
which are determined in accordance with the terms
under those relevant agreements and with reference
to the estimated post-acquisition performance of
the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions (such as growth rate,
margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries. Changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect the amounts of future liabilities.
Put option liabilities shall be remeasured at their fair
value resulting from events or factors emerged after
the acquisition date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Provision for expected credit losses is made when the
Group does not expect to collect all amounts due.
The provision is determined by grouping together
trade debtors with similar risk characteristics and
collectively or individually assessing them for likelihood
of recovery. The provision reflects lifetime expected
credit losses i.e. possible default events over the
expected life of the trade receivables, weighted by the
probability of that default occurring. Judgement has
been applied in determining the level of provision for
expected credit losses, taking into account the credit
risk characteristics of customers and the likelihood
of recovery assessed on a combination of collective
and individual basis as relevant. While the provision is
considered appropriate, changes in estimation basis or
in economic conditions could lead to a change in the
level of provision recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included
in the lease term if the Group has enforceable right
to extend the lease term and the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Potential
future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that
the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of
the lessee.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required
to exercise considerable judgement in relation to
determine the discount rates by taking into account
the nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
conditions of the leases, at both the commencement
date and the effective date of the modification.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on
its development strategies and operational control. There
are two major operating segments: Retail and Distribution
and Wholesales to Overseas Franchisees. Management
manages the Retail and Distribution operating segment
geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating
segment in Mainland China and the Gulf Cooperation
Council (the “GCC”) comprise both direct-operated stores
and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan,
Southeast Asia and Australia do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Southeast
Asia and the GCC.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other
owned and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is profit before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment, depreciation and amortization,
share of profit of a joint venture and unallocated corporate
items. Segment results are before finance expense, share
of profit of a joint venture, income taxes and unallocated
corporate items. This is the measurement basis reported
to management and the senior decision-makers for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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December 31, 2023

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Analysis of sales and operating profit (loss) of the Group’s
operating segment by geographic regions is as follows.

2023
s
b= { SR MEBEZ
REE BXafE #a
BER R £E8€  Wholesale
HEIKRE 1] Southeast Gulf to
Mainland HK and A% Asiaand Cooperation Overseas &5t
(UBERTTEES) (In HK$ million) China Macau  Taiwan Australia Council  Franchisees Total
HER Sales 664 380 440 1,471 675 243 3,873
HHEBITDA Adiusted EBITDA 32 144 94 462 245 24 1,001
FEREHE Depreciation and amortization
-PREEE - Right-of-use assets (25) (75) (44) (165) (103) - (412)
-ME  ERREENRENE — Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties (6) ) (6) (26) (12) = (59)
NHEE Segment results 1 66 44 271 130 2 536
Lk Corporate functions (33)
HEER Finance expense (40)
EE—RagRma Share of profit of a joint venture 45
BRAT B ADRR Profit before income taxes 508
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

5. HEBEREESW(E) 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2022
85
e AR nEFE
FEE BZ A B
AR R ZEg Wholesale
ey B Southeast Gulf to
Mainland HK and A%  Asiaand  Cooperation Overseas A3t
(UBEFTAEL) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan  Australia Council  Franchisees Total
HES Sales 668 286 466 1,444 635 300 3,799
T HEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA (16) 94 89 460 217 45 889
EREE Depreciation and amortization
-RAELAE - Right-of-use assets (34) (74) (47) (144) (94) - (393)
-M% - ERRRENRENE - Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties ) @ () 1) (1) - (47)
RE Impairment
—fERiEEE - Right-of-use assets @ - - (1) - - @)
REEE Reversal of impairment
—FREEE - Right-of-use assets - - - 2 - - 2
NEEE Segment results (60) 18 37 296 112 45 448
R T Corporate functions (29)
HEER Finance expense (25)
EE—FEAERAEH Share of profit of a joint venture 36
BR AT ST AIRA Profit before income taxes 436

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating
segment by brand is as follows.

2023 2022

KRR TR

$§E% Operating HE®E  Operating

(U BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit (loss) Sales profit
TERDH Retail and Distribution

Giordano & Giordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 3,011 407 2,926 306

Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladlies 268 48 246 34

BSX BSX 8 (1) 8 -

Hit Others 343 58 319 63

3,630 512 3,499 403

KARIEHRES - ERHEERBRM (B
TERMBEE ) BREGHINRF ZHER
56.231878 70 (20224 : 5.8618/87T)
AR B K FE 56.641E 870 (20224 : 6.68
BAL)  MREMMSHIINER ZHE
%8 525.8618 48 T (2022 4F : 2545188
JT) °

DEZ R 2 tHE R A7.38E 8 T (2022
F:9.39BBIL)E TAHHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to
external customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau
(including retail and wholesale sales) were HK$623 million
(2022: HK$586 million), Mainland China was HK$664 million
(2022: HK$668 million) and external customers from other
markets were HK$2,586 million (2022: HK$2,545 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$738 million (2022: HK$939
million) have been eliminated upon consolidation.
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5.

HERREEDI(EA)

FEAREZMEHERAB1008 B T
(20224 : 3008 BL) r EBELBMA
1,3008 B0 (20224F : 50088 7T) * &
78 28008 4 7T (20224 : 7008 T) -
28 NSRIN A6,3008 78 JT (20224 -
720088 C) - MAEMAABRRAEE
Z B € A5008 8T (20224F : 70088
JL) °

AEBZEERWESI D 20T o

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$1
million (2022: HK$3 million), Hong Kong and Macau were
HK$13 million (2022: HK$5 million), Taiwan was HK$8
million (2022: HK$7 million), Southeast Asia and Australia
were HK$63 million (2022: HK$72 million) and the GCC was
HK$5 million (2022: HK$7 million).

Analysis of the Group's assets by geographic regions is as
follows.

PHEE
Segment assets
(B EETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
DEEE Segment assets
R 20 RORM Southeast Asia and Australia 1,089 1,216
BEMNABRRSEZES Gulf Cooperation Council 1,037 1,019
BB KR Hong Kong and Macau 570 559
A B A Mainland China 365 399
=) Taiwan 233 233
3,204 3,426
NG Interest in a joint venture 494 490
REMEEREEANERELZ Financial asset at fair value
TRIEE through other comprehensive
income 1 3
RERBREAAEERE Y Financial asset at fair value
CRIEE through profit or loss 28 34
RIERIAE E Deferred tax assets 39 55
EEHSE Total assets 3,856 4,008

RemTAEMEEHBEEN  RES
MBMZIERBEERLEA1.79EET
(20224 : 1,948 L) » RPBEKEA
4,9008 78 7T (20224 : 6,100& B 7T)
MR HE T35 518.2618 4 7T (20224
16.901B8 L) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong
and Macau was HK$179 million (2022: HK$194 million);
Mainland China was HK$49 million (2022: HK$61 million);
and other markets were HK$1,826 million (2022: HK$1,690
million).
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6. HMWAREMWES » FE 6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET
(A BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
FEMA Interest income 23 12
TR IR Royalty and licensing income 22 30
Me kBl A Rental and sub-lease rental
income 8 7
Az B WA Dividend income 3 3
BT #68 B Government grants 2 12
REMEEE Claims and compensation 2 )
HEME  BBENREBZFER Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (1) -
DE 3 B 1R F AR Net exchange loss (5) ®)
REZREEAREREZSREEY Fair value (loss) gain on financial
AnfE(EE) KR asset at fair value through
profit or loss (6) 6
EAh Others 20 12
68 72

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

7. RE&ERA
gaa e (GTA)

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is after charging (crediting):

(UEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
HEM AR Cost of sales
GFEHERN Cost of inventories sold 1,607 1,657
REFEAE(BERER) RFEMETHE Net provision (reversal of provision) for
obsolete stock and stock written off 3 (4)
1,610 1,653
SHER Distribution expense
BTIRA Staff cost 601 580
mEZH Depreciation expenses
—FREEE — Right-of-use assets 396 377
s /ER 6T — Property, plant and equipment 48 42
THkEF I HERR Rentals in respect of land and
buildings
—-HEHeIH — Minimum lease payments 39 62
— AL EH - Contingent rent 192 172
MEEEE - Building management fee,
B8 & 2= 8 government rent and rates and
RAREXER utilities 99 100
BEEEE  HER Advertising, promotion and
BN e incentives 89 91
Bk LB Packaging and deliveries 53 53
RITRERARKE Bank and credit card charges 27 26
el Impairment
—EREEE - Right-of-use assets = 3
RERE Reversal of impairment
—EREEE - Right-of-use assets - 2)
[EWBR B B R EE Change in loss allowance for trade
receivables (4) (2)
Hi Others 920 92
1,630 1,594
THER Administrative expense
BTRA Staff cost 134 132
mEXH Depreciation expenses
—FHREEE - Right-of-use assets 16 16
—ME e RRENRENE ~ Property, plant and equipment
and investment properties 5 5
FEREXER Legal and professional fee 8 14
2 GlEA Auditor's remuneration 7 6
8GR Computer and telecommunication 6 5
EicE Travelling 3 )
R R EMBIE Business and other taxes 1 1
THREFZHEER Rentals in respect of land and
buildings
-REAETH — Minimum lease payments - 1
Hit Others 18 17
198 199

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

8. BMEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(A BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
HEGENE Interest on lease liabilities 39 25
RITEFF B Interest on bank loans 1 -
40 25
9. BIMA 9. STAFF COSTS
(XEEE THEEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
FekIB(BEESEHE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 676 653
BRe—REHRETE Pension cost —
defined contribution plans 59 59
735 712
RFEEN NEBESBERKEENRZ During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the
IR (20224 ) LUREHFTOKTFE - B Group to reduce the level of contributions (2022: Nil). As at
2023%F [ 2022F 12 A31H )8 B Al 3k December 31, 2023 and 2022, no unvested benefits were
FFEA 2 RBEERHK o available to be utilized in future years.
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

10. EENFENER

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEE & (a) Directors' emoluments
£538Y Ex
BiEHEae® BREM
Performance- Employer's
based”  Eftili#*  contribution
Fiok #4 Discretionary Other  to pension A3t
o Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses ¢ benefits* schemes  Total
BEFT BEFR BEFT  BETR BEFT BEFR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2023
BB LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,775 11,615 1,644 - 17,034
el CHAN Ka Wai® - 2,411 3,000 106 18 5,535
EEyL Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,130 1,700 105 18 3,953
KA Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
Zx TSANG On Yip* 200 - - - - 200
rEE LEE Chi Hin, Jacob” 200 - - - - 200
1,580 8,316 16,315 1,855 36 28,102
2022
BB LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter’t - 3,709 9,659 1,757 - 15125
REe CHAN Ka Wait - 2,372 2,000 118 18 4,508
B2y Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,138 1,300 17 18 3573
g CHENG Chi Kong" 183 - - - = 183
Rt CHAN Sai Cheong"” 183 - - - - 183
iR Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 - - - - 420
BEZ KWONG Ki Chi* 150 - - - - 150
B WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 370 - - - - 370
W TSANG On Yip™ 17 - - - - 17
FEEe LEE Chi Hin, Jacob"? 17 - - - - 17
1,730 8,219 12,959 1,992 36 24,936
t T RITHRBE t Chairman and Chief Executive
8 WITER a Executive directors
8 EMITES " Non-executive directors
* BYIERNTES * Independent non-executive directors
# B e EmmReisR - BRkE B # Other benefits include insurance premium, share options,
ERA - HAE RE YU ([HAb housing allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind
Wz 1) (“Other Benefits”)
& REFTEIEAIR BN D B RFTRE & Performance-based bonus is determined based on profit
sharing ratio
oo BIBMHEIEAIR G F) 5 B bt R ek FE ST R & Discretionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing

TE 2w F B AR R FTIRE
PR2022F 12 A1 BBHT AEHITES
R2022F 12 A1HE T A EHTTES

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= W EBAE
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ratio or pre-determined acheivement rate of profit targets
Resigned as Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022
Appointed as Non-executive Director on December 1, 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

10. EEMRNZNERS (F) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) E=M= (&) (a)

RAFERN MEEXNz2MER

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to

BT Directors of the Company during the year is as follows:
(LB T T mEl) (In HK$'000) 2023 2022
iika Fees 1,580 1,730
B - Other emoluments:
EXFHe Rk Basic salaries and
Hfth U 2 other benefits 10,171 10,211
RIRSETEIER Contribution to pension
schemes 36 36
EIEE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 16,315 12,959
28,102 24,936
(b) ENESFHFBRE (b) Five highest paid individuals

RAFEER  AEBRAURSH B
B B IE3MI(20224F 31 )EE -
EME 2 HFBERLEXHE - AF
BN - T2 (20224 : 2f) &=

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include 3 (2022:
3) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to

FRMEZENMESNT the remaining 2 (2022: 2) individuals during the year
are as follows:
(BB FTREN) (In HK$'000) 2023 2022
EXFHe & Basic salaries and
H e other benefits 5,104 4,984

RIRE B Contribution to pension

schemes 103 95
¥EAE B EEA Performance-based/

discretionary bonuses 5,650 5,008

10,857 10,087
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

10. BRI AR 26 () 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)
(b) ENBRESHFBE (&) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
BRI FBERMEHEREEIN The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
T individuals fell within the following bands:
AE
<4 R Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2023 2022
JBEE
HK$
4,000,001 - 5,000,000 = 1
5,000,001 - 6,000,000 2 1
(c) mMEE - Eé%i%%%ﬁ%ﬂ # & (c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
A E%&EZ:E% WEAEXTRIRE other dealings in favour of Directors,
ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ%ﬁ’\ - EERMEMR S controlled bodies corporate by and
&R connected entities with such Directors
Z'—‘@ﬁ\ﬁ{ﬂf\ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%zﬁ@ﬁ% There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
% . QZEﬁﬁivir%%T?%'Jﬁ'ﬂﬁ/\\@%% in favour of the Directors, their controlled bodies
ARZEEFAMENLIRAR corporate and connected entities for disclosure
ﬁﬁ/\ZErﬂ\‘ EERREMR S - pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
MFIREEE R A5 $383(1)(d) Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G (2022: Nil).
R E622GEE = ELKE
(20224 : f&) o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Fi 8 11.

EBFEHBBBEANFE 2 G ERR
A3 16.5% (20224F © 16.5%) 7 Fi &
TE o BBUINGEF Z EBRFTSI 0 iR
BRI AR ER 2 Rt HE o

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Income taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong are calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

(X BEETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
KEEMRBHR Current income taxes
B Hong Kong 2 2
BB AN Outside Hong Kong 70 62
BEFEBRBEREE Over provision in
prior years - %)
MEE Withholding taxes 30 12
102 71
EERFBH Deferred income taxes
REMERE T4 R#EE Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 17 36
119 107

T H T BREAFEREEEERAIZFT
5%i1,3008 /8 T (20224 : 1,2008 8
T0) c REHFBERP ZEME—FEEEA
A A TR Z AE R IEE 2 TS
AR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

This charge excludes the share of joint venture's income
taxes of HK$13 million (2022: HK$12 million) for the year.
The share of profit of a joint venture in the consolidated
income statement is after income taxes accrued in the
appropriate income tax jurisdictions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

11.

12.

FrEH (&) 11. INCOME TAXES (continued)
REBHEMeAE 2 REB B ATEF A Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at
A TSRS 2 AERAT - the tax rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as
follows.
(UXBEETRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
BR PRS2 A4 A Profit before income taxes
(TBEEM—HEEEQREH) (before share of profit of

a joint venture) 463 400
HATB T R16.5% (20224 : 16.5% )51 & Calculated at an income tax rate

of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 76 66
HEMBRTEAHE & Effect of different tax rates in

other regions (1) (6)
ARz i Expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 12 4
B RER I8 & B R Deferred tax assets written

down 6 23
RERZ B IBEE Deferred tax assets not

recognized 13 29
HERDZ A Income not subject to tax (15) (16)
FARRAREERTIE Utilization of previously

unrecognized tax losses (2) -
MEE Withholding tax 30 12
BEFEFREERAE Over provision in prior years - 5)
BB Income tax charges 119 107
BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

FRERNLRBERF HIRKEE QA
RGBTSR EAFILES T
(20224 : 2.68{E# T )5t E

ERERBFDRAFEFERND TR
7 2 hn ¥ 15 B% #01,598,745,713 i%
(20224 : 1,579,840,4190% )T & -

SEREERFNIEFREBEITRMD 20
HE Y9 IR 811,598,745, 713 0% (2022 £FF -
1,579,840,419/%) N _ERZIRIE AR A
AT EIIE Z FTA M AR T i AR
BETHEMmMEIT ZIRG 2 nEFHARE
13,646,324 % (20224 : 9,526,750 1% )

s
an

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on the profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year of HK$345 million
(2022: HK$268 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted
average of 1,598,745,713 shares (2022: 1,579,840,419
shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average of 1,598,745,713 shares (2022:
1,579,840,419 shares) in issue during the year by the
weighted average of 13,646,324 shares (2022: 9,526,750
shares) deemed to be issued if all outstanding share options
granted under the share option schemes of the Company
had been exercised.
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B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

13. K2 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) AFEEREWOT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(A BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
EEIR RS AETR17.051L Interim dividend declared
(20224 : 8.5 1l) and paid of 17.0 HK cents
per share (2022: 8.5 HK
cents per share) 274 134
REZRBERERZANERER Final dividend proposed
FR%13.5781l after the balance sheet
(20224 : FA15.0/1l) date of 13.5 HK cents
per share (2022: 15.0 HK
cents per share) 218 237
492 371
R2024F3A12H - EEEEZ On March 12, 2024, the Board has recommended a
HARR B AR 13.5/81l - BENIE final dividend of 13.5 HK cents per share and is subject
EAATKREEFEA S FIERE to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
BEEE o HTEERIRBELAE S B forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
EEIAEEE KRB &Y dividend has not been recognized as a liability at the
HRBREHZARR D BT M ER balance sheet date. The amount of proposed dividend
BEt&E o was based on the shares of the Company in issue as of
the reporting date.
(b) BRE—FE IREKXEFEER (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,
EHERKENRE : approved and paid during the year:
(U B &E#TREL) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
B RIRE2022F KR B B 2022 final dividend
FR%15.0781L approved and paid of
(20214F : FH%10.0/81L) 15.0 HK cents per share
(2021: 10.0 HK cents
per share) 240 158
2022 F RHAR B Iy AR |l i The payment for 2022 final dividend was based on the
2023F6 H16H 2 B 1T B &K total number of issued shares of the Company on June
IR 16, 2023.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

14. RERBITEF 14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(A BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
He MRS Cash and cash equivalents 720 860
TR AR =& A A LI 2 SRITHER Bank deposits with maturity
over three months from
date of deposits 215 100
935 960
AEBUEZ2BRERRTEFEREEFE Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were
1.32188 70 (20224 : 9,70088 L) Z A cash and bank balances totaling HK$132 million (2022:
REHE© MIRITHETF HK$97 million) denominated in Renminbi.
AEBFTHERNERNELSETF4.8% The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group
(20224 : 4.2%) » EXRZEFHZ was 4.8% (2022: 4.2%) per annum; these deposits have an
FIHAEAR 0B —E A - average maturity of around 2 months as at year end.
15. REZRRBRANEBEEREE 2SR EZE 15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

BamK
Preference Hity a5

(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Shares Other Total
R2022F1 A1HZ A AAE Fair value at January 1, 2022 28 = 28
140 Additions - 6 6
R2022F12 A310 & Fair value at December 31, 2022

2023 F1A1HZ AR (A and January 1, 2023 28 6 34
NAEES Fair value change = (6) (6)
M2023%F12A31B 2 A8  Fair value at December 31, 2023 28 - 28
REEAEL Current portion - — —
RERER D Non-current portion 28 - 28

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B4 s s nmms®R 2 A
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15.

B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REZEREZEAABEEEBECZSHMEE
(#&)

MN2008F 6 A27TH » AEBEFLE
= 1 # & % Placita Holdings Limited
(I'Placita])21.0%# % © RIFZHE -
6,055,440 EBMBR R R A EEF A &
T30.0%E 1T 2R ABRE W EF DL
/56,055,440 I Placita 2 18 4t I& ([ 18 %
A& 1) o o REBAHETFELERZ
o B o

ZBEERERAHEHAEENBRRNUR
RERE - AREEREFRGEE R
HRERZBFFRABLEXMAEER
AIEHT A o

REBEREAREREZEREELZR
REZEHENEHFABERLCESEAMI
A o

EHREERONERRRANEREZ
TREEAAEERBEURATR R
ERYUZRENSEARTAIBEMS L
BMENER(TAIBRRA)  REFE
MBHREERNEISHENRABNERD
BRE=R-

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

15. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest
in Placita Holdings Limited (“Placita”). As part of the
agreement, 6,055,440 ordinary shares representing the
Group’s remaining 30.0% of the total issued share capital of
Placita were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares
of Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Group
was granted a put option on the Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are
measured at FVPL. The fair value has been and will be re-
assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at
year end and the end of each subsequent period.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are
recorded in other income in the consolidated income
statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of
Preference Shares are determined based on discounted
cash flow, using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs), which is categorized as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS
13.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

16. FE W BR AR H fib FE UK 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(A BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

JE W BR R Trade receivables 234 229

o BEEE Less: Loss allowance (37) (42)

JE U BR SR FHAE Trade receivables, net 197 187

Hin ek - BiEiT2 Kk Other receivables, including

AT RIE deposits and prepayments 122 203

JE Ui BR 3k N L 4th i Lk 3R Trade and other receivables 319 390

e R HME UK Deposits and other receivables 74 73

FEWERRETEREINER  HELCED Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from

RBERRIZZEERA - AEEEEF franchisees, licensees and retail proceeds due from

BN T4 TI0EREEH - EBUERER department stores. The Group normally allows a credit

NEMEWHZ BREEREL R EES © period of 30-90 days. The carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate their fair values.

(a) ERER 7 #T (a) Ageing analysis
NEZBFHENREEREZRE Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss
DT - allowance is as follows:

(KB EBETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
0&30H 0 - 30 days 153 145
31E60H 31 - 60 days 33 26
61290H 61 — 90 days 3 6
#90H Over 90 days 8 10

197 187
EAAEE BRI RS There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
WEBREBRERLEEPEZEE trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
[EBE ° internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. BWARA KR E b B WK (&)
(b) BWERARNEERE

JEBR AR B 1R B R - IIABMBER
P AR - BRIFARSKER AU E R
FVME =R - LB T - B TR
i B TR IR AR SRR A ES -

RERNZERBE 22 (BREEE
REEBEED)WAT

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the loss allowance is written off
against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

(U B & T AmE) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
M A1R At January 1 42 45
"mE= Translation difference (1) (1)
E B Rl Reversal of provision for

loss allowance (6) (7)
RERHE Provision for the year 2 5
& — M A Rl Disposal of a subsidiary = -
1K 35 FE IR AR 3K Written off against trade

receivables - -
M12H31H At December 31 37 42

BRI U BR X 2 BB B R 1R
FHRHENES @ £EEEFAHE
HA 2 AT Y [0 264 PR AR BR X - A Lk
REFTEREE AEEHAK
BEAEHT7008E B (20224 7008
BT E o

AEBZRBEEMBREERNE9
AR ERRERBR - %
ERLATE R AR A = BB HE
KR - SEFERHERBL B
W iR SRR 1B AL RS A R R i € Mja
HIHBETHE - MEBRAERZEIN
BEBRERSEE  ZLLRD FHE
AR BRFE R F(EE R UGRIARE
MERBREERENER LAEEE
Al e

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

The individually assessed loss allowance for
receivables relate to customers that are in financial
difficulties and management assesses that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts were recognized. The Group holds a collateral
amounted approximately of HK$7 million (2022: HK$7
million) over the balances.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the
ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected loss rates are based on the
historical loss rates as adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

16. BWERR R E BB R (E) 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) BWERRWEERE(E) (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables
(continued)
NEFH2 R
EEFRLE
Weighted 2HEHEERR
average lifetime EEAE Lifetime REFE
expected credit  Gross carrying  expected credit Net carrying
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ mitlion) loss rate amount loss amount
#2023%12A31A At December 31, 2023
PR al: Not yet due 0% 169 - 169
BE1Z308 110 30 days past due 0% 11 - 1
H#31E60H 3110 60 days past due 0% 3 - 3
612908 61 to 90 days past due 0% 3 - 3
#90H Over 90 days past due 7% 48 (37) 1
234 (37) 197
METSZ HEE
FEBBILE
Weighted 2HRBEEER
average lifetime REEE Lifetime IREFE
expected credit Gross carrying  expected credit Net carrying
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) loss rate amount loss amount
#2022%12A31R At December 31, 2022
ABE Not yet due 0% 157 - 157
BE1Z308 110 30 days past due 0% 12 - 12
B#31260A 3110 60 days past due 0% 5 - 5
15612900 61 t0 90 days past due 0% 6 - 6
#90A Over 90 days past due 86% 49 (42) 7
229 42) 187
(c) M2023F12H31H » BIEERE (c) As at December 31, 2022, included in current other
H W B e A EH L F S e receivables was an interest bearing and secured
WK A3,6008 BT E BT © receivables of HK$36 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

17. 7€ 17. INVENTORIES
(ABEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
RIFK 0h Finished goods 474 612

M2020% - ARERBEMTHERY
U ARG RBBOEETTH
% - R EEYEHERER 1,400
W -

FEECEERAERITLEEHEERAK
R A16.07188 7T (20224 : 16.57 188

In 2022, the Group has changed the estimate of inventory
provision on off-season finished goods based on recent
market conditions, the change in the estimate has an effect
of HK$ 14 million reduction of inventory provision.

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$1,607 million (2022:

JT) ° HK$1,657 million).
18. HE AT NKIE 18. RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

(X BB TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
M1A1B ZEREFE Net book value at January 1 4 3
NE Additions 4 9
HE Disposal (4) 7
N S Amortization for the year (1) 1
M12A31B 2R FE Net book value at December 31 3 4

19. REMGREWRBRARBEREZS
MEE

19.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
M1A1B 282 AniE Opening fair value at January 1 3 4
DB EEEA Change in fair value
REMGERRR AR ERIE Y transferred to financial asset
TREERE at FVOCI reserve (2 (1)
M12A31B ZBRAR Closing fair value at
December 31 1 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

19.

20.

NEMGESRBERELIALAEEE 2SS 19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
mEE (&) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
M2023F 124310 « REMEE KEE Financial asset at FVOCI represented 2.96% (2022: 3.21%)
AAEREBEZSRMEERNAEERE interests in Speedy Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) are
AR AR(TARERK])2.96% (2022 denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged
F:321%) 2w o ZEERBITET in garment manufacturing business and is one of the key
1B o MBI ERINEEER - 24 suppliers of the Group.
SEMNETEHENZ— -
2028312 A31H - REMEE KL As at December 31, 2023, the fair value of the financial
NAEREBZESREEZALERBE asset at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the
BMTFEcREZT  REFBUK Stock Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the
WERNBIBHR AN EERDERSE fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
_%& °
—RBEeENFIEDR 20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
TXHEIWZzEZE AR ZBRAE BT B The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting
& JEEMAEERARZERIT ¢ solely of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint
venture is as follows:
ERTREEBERE

FRAL R £ i B HEMmEAR
BENREE Place of FERGBEDEE Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital or FE£
joint venture and operation equity holding registered capital Principal activities

2023 2022
Giordano Corporation RERE 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000% B KETERER
Limited* e 4 A on
Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and
accessories

* —ffEFEE A ERA] A joint venture held indirectly
(XBEEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
m1A18 At January 1 490 513
JEAG % Share of profit 45 36

BER—Ea 2R E

Dividends received from

a joint venture (28) (32)
MmEZER Translation difference (13) (27)
12 A31H At December 31 494 490

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

X ] /c.\% B2 BEER K -

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summarized financial information for joint venture

Set out below is the summarized financial information for a
joint venture.

EEEELRE® Summarized balance sheet
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
E Current
RekReFEET Cash and cash equivalents 71 104
HtnsEE Other current assets 591 676
MBNEELRRR Total current assets 662 780
HiRBA G Other current liabilities (127) (149)
BB GEARE Total current liabilities (127) (149)
IR ED Non-current
BE Assets 518 462
=0 Liabilities (35) (85)
BESFE Net assets 1,018 1,008
mAeEWBEREE Summarized statement of comprehensive income
(LA BEETRER) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
Wz Revenue 1,014 1,158
ITE R E Depreciation and amortization (96) (99)
EH Expense (798) (960)
B FT1S R AT % Profit before income taxes 120 99
PS5 Income taxes (26) (24)
bR TSR 18 % A Profit after income taxes 94 75
/\ﬁﬂ%u EE Other comprehensive loss (26) (57)
iR e W Total comprehensive income 68 18
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

20. " EEELAIER(E)

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

MRERNFERAGTER Reconciliation of summarized financial
information

—HEEARIEREEE U B EER Reconciliation of the summarized financial information

FEIFR presented to the carrying amount of the interest in a joint
venture.

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

1A1BEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,008 1,056

AN i ) Profit for the year 94 75

i9o) Dividends (58) (66)

MEEHE Translation difference (26) (57)

12A31HEEFE

Closing net assets at

December 31 1,018 1,008
Bl —HaE A RER Share of interest in a joint venture 494 490

FAEAIE

Lease commitments - -

AEEMBEEZ —BEE AR ZHERT
BESRARIABBREANEE M
ZEEBRRANGNEERRABBRE
A o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in a joint
venture, and the joint venture have no contingent liabilities
and capital commitments themselves.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. REYXE

AEBEREYEERRYEAE -

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group had properties which held for long-term rental
yields.

(U B EATAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
R AME Cost

»1A1H At January 1 61 66
mE =% Translation difference (2) (5)
M»12A831H At December 31 59 61
2RBIE Accumulated depreciation

M®1A1H At January 1 43 44
HmEER Translation difference (1) 3)
e Depreciation 1 2
M12A31H At December 31 43 43
M12A831 8 ZfREFE Net book value at

December 31 16 18

ZREMENR2023F12A31B Z AR
MBYEEXZHEQRTE - HEIR
BRI EAR T A - BB BT
ERX P RGEEMEBITREENT KM
HEmMEHMNEEERN L E - HFK
ARBERENTIAERL - HEFTHEA
MIRITMSHEEC2EEBYWEMEM
AT L MW E T B AR R © 522023
F12A31H  ZWE(BEHEELH R
BFE D) 2B AR EAR28008 B T
(20224 : 3,1008% L) - LA HFFIEE
REBEREYE ZHSIWAB4308 5
TC(2022%F : 3208 TT) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

The fair value of the investment properties at December
31, 2023 was assessed by an independent professional
valuation firm. Valuation was based on income capitalization
method which is based on the capitalization of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalization rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties
and other comparable properties. The total fair value of
the properties, including leasehold land and the building
portion, was HK$28 million (2022: HK$31 million) as at
December 31, 2023. In the consolidated income statement,
rental income relating to investment properties of HK$4.3
million (2022: HK$3.2 million) was included.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

21. REYWE(HE)
REAMEZAARER - UWIEZ&S
REERSIE/ERFMAE

R EYMRRERERATFRITE

HELH MHEHR

BF HEMRKTZNE0F
(ABFEE RE)

BREWERZREFESFTAT ¢

21.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or no more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment properties is analyzed
as follows:

(A BFEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2023 2022
EBBAINGE Outside Hong Kong, held on
10 E50F L lease of between 10 and

50 years 16 18

BREMEORABRBOEIRIER
AABEM S LRBNER (T BRE
A REBEMHRELEMNEISROHL
RENBRIBRE= -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The fair value of the investment properties was based
on inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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22. ¥k - BBERRHE

B R E(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023F12H31H
December 31, 2023

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(UBEETEEN) (In HKS million)

BAE Cost

7202341 418 At January 1, 2023

BEEE Translation difference

NE Additions

e Disposals

2023512 A31H At December 31, 2023

ZRFTERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

R2023%1A1A At January 1, 2023

BEZR Translation difference

TEERE Depreciation charge for the year

e Disposals

#2023%12A318 At December 31, 2023

1#2023512A31A Net book value at
ZEEFE December 31, 2023

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 & #
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023F12H318

December 31, 2023

22, ¥ BBERZRE(E)

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
BENE
KAFE R BHR
pdaw:) BAERE
kigF Leasehold
Freehold BENEE improvements, HE
land & e Plant&  fumiture & office Motor Ait
(W BEATAEN) (In HKS$ million) buildings Buildings  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
AR Cost
R202251 718 At January 1, 2022 59 12 51 1,044 17 1,183
AEZE Translation difference (5) - (1) (51) - (57)
HE Additions - - 1 63 2 66
e Disposals - - - (76) 2) (78)
1202212 A31H At December 31, 2022 54 12 51 980 17 1,114
ZRTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R2022% 1 A1 8 At January 1, 2022 18 5 50 077 14 1,084
hEEE Translation difference (2) - (1) (47) (1) (51)
HiE Impairment - - - - - -
TEENE Depreciation charge for the year - - 1 42 2 45
e Disposals - - - (76) (1) (77)
002012 A31E At December 31, 2022 16 5 50 896 14 %1
R2022512A31R Net book value at
ZEERE December 31, 2022 38 7 1 84 3 133

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= R BEBAER

a

A
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23. FREERHEAR
BEARBERZIIATHHERBENDE -

B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:
FEHREEE Right-of-use assets
(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
RA{E Cost
»1A1H At January 1 2,155 1,989
HmEE% Translation difference (5) (64)
& Additions 162 137
HEBNH Lease modifications 323 286
e Disposals (134) (193)
M»12A31H At December 31 2,501 2,155
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
M1A1H At January 1 1,465 1,303
MmEER Translation difference (4) (39)
B Impairment - 3
VERI=REE ! Reversal of impairment - )
REEIE Depreciation charge
for the year 412 393
& Disposals (134) (193)
M»12A31H At December 31 1,739 1,465
MW12A31H Net book value at
ZEEEE December 31 762 690
2023 2022
HEEE Lease liabilities:
& Current 329 326
JERED Non-current 337 287
666 613

HEMIR &R LB EG. 7488 (2022

F6.65EBIT) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 #

i

HK$665 million).

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$674 million (2022:

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

23. EAREERMEEAE(H)

rEEHESEYE  BERAE - H
Eti - pEMNETERE  HESR —
MET B1FE504F -

HHE R ARZ BRI 1B R 15 7 HEE R
ERE S TR GEKAET - BT HHE
ARENHEEEETMERERIN - H
S T EMiGR - HEEE
TRAEEERER

HMoMEHERSHFIMAEEHEERE
B A2 A B SER - HRMERIPIT
&= a A100%MEENREER I E
HMENKKERET B EE AW
E R 7.0%-27.5% (2022 F : 10.0%-
27.5%) - (FAAENFTIKETNRER %
18 BIERDREREFIMAEEKA o
BEHERETHUSHENK  BF
BZENREEBEREBARNEERE TN

AEENZEYEHESSTEH MK IE
BER ZFBRFTANEERSER
AEBEEETENKEELE - A
FYREB D IE B R 4R (R R E AT R A5
BT - MASHEBHEAITRE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices,
leasehold land, warehouses and retail stores. Rental
contracts are made for periods of 1 to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from
7.0% to 27.5% (2022: 10.0% to 27.5%) of sales. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimizing the fixed costs base for newly established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These are used to
maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #



B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24. HE

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

24, GOODWILL
(ABEEETHEENT) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
MW1B1H At January 1 541 541
B Impairment - -
M12A31H8 At December 31 541 541
(SRR Impairment test for goodwill

BEMNNEHERGEZE SR EE
ENEEEEMNARRAIEEESE
B HIEETEAEENETIER
HEERARNREBAGE REEL
BRIz RE£BIIZERRAL
BERNERATE - IERAIEAAEE
HET M8 AR e B IR FE AT B M T 35 1
B(E=H— BHE3(c)) - ZEHEFE
B EIEZSFHM S BE LT ER %
RBeRe - BEEEREBAEEMA
BREEZESEBLAEEMBEREZ
JEHRETEE - RSEMNABRRA
EZ8g  EEMGHM - FBEMNEFS
FIHEWL R K3.9%(20224F : 6.5%) °
SFEHBNBZESRE  REFTRE
R RGFI%(20224F : 3%)HE - By
FRZH%BAIEEA11.9% (20224
13.9%) ' ERBMEBEE DI 2 ER

LA
ai

o o
%y

EERAR2023F K2022F12A31H &
BN ARREIEZESHR T ERE
A o

AEERTHBEBEFERENANBER
BRRETHZEMEDT - RERSELE
TTRIE L FHER R EREEA1.0EE 2
FARRINEES 10 E D H - SWHI
LA BEFRLE  AARHNEMR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

The Gulf Cooperation Council ("GCC") goodwill has been
allocated to GCC operating segment, which represents the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored internally. The
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
based on fair value less costs of disposal, using inputs for
the fair value estimation that may include unobservable
market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)). These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets
of GCC business based on past performance and its
expectations of market development. The weighted average
annual sales growth rate in the forecast period is estimated
to be 3.9% (2022: 6.5%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth
rate of 3% (2022: 3%) per annum. The post-tax discount
rate used is 11.9% (2022: 13.9%) which reflect specific risks
relating to the current market assessment of risks specific to
such assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no
impairment of GCC goodwill as at December 31, 2023 and
2022.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for the
GCC goodwill. There would be sufficient headroom if the
CGUs’ forecasted annual sales growth rate had been lower
by 1.0 percentage point or the post-tax discount rate had
been higher by 1.0 percentage point, with all changes taken
in isolation.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

25. B 25. SHARE CAPITAL
ROEHE [N
(BRI EE S - (In HK$ million, except Number of Share
U EEETREN) number of shares) shares capital
EEBREESBUZERAR ! Authorized ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each:
F2022F1 A1 ~ 2022128318 At January 1, 2022,
2023%F1 A1H k2023412 A318 December 31, 2022,
January 1, 2023,
December 31, 2023 2,000,000,000 100
ERTREEAR : Issued and fully paid:
72022%1 A1H At January 1, 2022 1,578,936,518 79
BT EM 1T 2 R0 Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 2,480,000
FREE RiFHE RN Share repurchased and
cancelled during the year (1,600,000) -
72022912 A31H &2023F1 818 At December 31, 2022 and
January 1, 2023 1,579,816,518 79
RITERE M 1T 2 R D Issue of shares pursuant to
exercise of share options 34,000,000 2
FNT 2R Share cancelled during the year (400,000) -
2023F12A31H At December 31, 2023 1,613,416,518 81

(a) TEITRMH

(a) Issue of shares

BRIBEARNR 2 BRETE - AQ 7R
EMEREREEA(ERFERNITE
H IS #E 2 # ) #1734,000,000
A% (20224 : 2,480,0000% ) #1 & i@
B FRREESEN - FRARETT
FrERESEEHHANAFRSE
1698 Z175 B2 A B ERT 2
W °

ARABBRTZABHEBRERAR
RAERZEBRNDES T EYESR

RS -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the
Company, the Company issued 34,000,000 (2022:
2,480,000) new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the capital of the Company to option-holders who
exercised their rights attached to share options during
the year. Movements in the number of the outstanding
share options during the year is set out on pages
169 to 175 under the heading “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” of this annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company

ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects.
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. A (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

[T 2 | 2 B R AR ABR
BRAFEERNZ B FBHNAE
RE169EE1758 °

BoORkEHEKRH

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE - K
UNGIDE =D e g ACIN =3 i

T/'\ °

BIE2022F12A31BIEFE - B
BARRBRRMESTSHRLMN —
BIRHE - NRFE R ATEEE
& $£2,000,000 f% A8 A &) 38 I A%
- #BREAI0EHET  Hb
1,600,000 B B B & 1D H 12 B 5+
HRANEEBITRASIZZER
19 2 EEHI R ° F/$2400,00008 2
BE O IR 5 72202212 A31 B R
BEGFR - WEER2023F1 A
Mo MBOE N REMZEESS
AXRNT 2B FE @ - HENREF
HR M HEE 2 REC AR m 8
BEEARNEDHERE -

—BEERTMBEENRG
MR2023%F12A31H » —HE&EEAR
A1¥E A A2 711,800,000 3 AL A
7 (2022 € : 1,800,000 & @ I% i%
) e
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202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and
details of the movement in share options of the
Company during the year are set out on pages 169 to
175 of this annual report.

Repurchase and cancellation of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Company did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, pursuant
to the general mandate granted by the shareholders of
the Company to the Board, the Company repurchased
a total of 2,000,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$3.0
million, in which 1,600,000 repurchased shares were
subsequently cancelled and the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the cancelled shares accordingly. The remaining
400,000 repurchased shares were recognized as
treasury shares at December 31, 2022 and were
subsequently cancelled in January 2023. The premium
paid and payable on repurchase was charged against
the retained profits of the Company. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2023, 1,800,000 ordinary shares
(2022: 1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint
venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

26. ERFEBIEER 26.

B E2023F 12 A31 1L Z IR iz 48 BE
1,238 B T (20224 : 2,058 T)
EAPT. Giordano Indonesia ([ Giordano
Indonesia | ) {5 1.34 {87 JT (2022 F
1.8118/% 7T) * M Textile and Garments
Co. Ltd. ([ Giordano KSA])151,700& 7
TL(20224F 11,7008 7T) - Hit AR 2
IEERR R T ERX ©

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31,
2023 are HK$123 million (2022: HK$205 million), of which
HK$134 million (2022: HK$181 million) is for PT. Giordano
Indonesia (“Giordano Indonesia”) and HK$17 million
(2022: HK$17 million) is for Textile and Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interests in respect of
the rest of the companies are not material.

EEEBRE® Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA
(U GEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022 2023 2022
b5 i Current
BE Assets 278 399 106 107
BE Liabilities (131) (125) (62) (66)
MENFEEBTE Total current net assets 147 274 44 41
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 222 169 65 69
BfE Liabilities (75) (62) (4) (7)
R FEERTE Total non-current net assets 147 107 61 62
FEERT Total net assets 294 381 105 103

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #



26. EXFEHMEER (&)

BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

26. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

= A 3k R4S Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA

(LXBEEBTRENN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022 2023 2022
WA Revenue 739 696 293 283
BR P15 750 A1 A Profit before income taxes 145 136 23 22
Friags Income taxes (34) (30) (4) 4
BRETSHBIER Profit after income taxes 111 106 19 18
Husra W (BE) Other comprehensive

income (loss) 3 (32) - -
Bz e Total comprehensive

income 114 74 19 18
IR HIEARE RS A4R B URES  Total comprehensive

income allocated to

non-controlling interests 46 35 5 4
FEfE B AR S Dividends paid to

non-controlling interests 66 - 5 2
HEeERERFE Summarized cash flows

Giordano Indonesia Giordano KSA

(A FEFETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022 2023 2022
AR 2 HEMmAFRE  Net cash inflow from

operating activities 160 166 89 82
WEXHK7IHE AL E%E  Net cash outflow from

investing activities (87) (129) (8) (11)
MEEBK IS REFEE  Net cash outflow from

financing activities (203) 2) (77) (65)
RekBReFEZBD Decrease in cash and

cash equivalents (130) 35 4 6
M1A1BZR & X Cash and cash equivalents

ReFEET at January 1 156 132 55 49

INEE[E R B 2 B Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes 2 (11) - -
M2A31BZEER Cash and cash equivalents

ReEEER at December 31 28 156 59 55

FAEM BARFRE R Z B AT

TH e

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

eliminations.

The information above is the amount before inter-company

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

27. PREEERERRESZER

27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY

NAEEEER Balance sheet of the Company
(XE&EETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
REEE Current assets
Be RIRTTHETT Cash and bank balances 25 50
JrE LS BR 51 % EL A e Uk SR Trade and other receivables 3 3
UL FT1SH% Income tax receivable — 1
NI E O] Amounts due from
subsidiaries 2,160 1,926
2,188 1,980
EREBEE Non-current assets
RIESERR AR EREZ Financial asset at fair value
TRVEE through profit or loss 28 28
FREEE Right-of-use assets 81 87
UK Bt /B~ B FRIE Amounts due from
subsidiaries 155 155
BB A Bk Interest in subsidiaries 816 816
1,080 1,086
EEHAE Total assets 3,268 3,066
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
REEE Current liabilities
JE T BR SR N2 EL A B SR Trade and other payables 9 6
FE{ST B B R RIFRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,458 1,550
BERE Total liabilities 1,467 1,556
AR w#E Capital and reserves
N Share capital 81 79
{1 Reserves 1,502 1,194
PR AR B Proposed dividends 218 237
A Total equity 1,801 1,510
ERRkEERE Total equity and liabilities 3,268 3,066
FRBEE Net current assets 721 424
EEAERRBAEE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,801 1,510
REE EE
CHAN Ka Wai Mark Alan LOYND
o EE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B AER LA
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. PRAIEERBERREZZH R (H)
NEEERBR

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

27. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY (continued)
Equity movements of the Company

; A
-8 {2 (B3R
ik BRERE  Retained
R& EDY:L Capital Rt Share profits Baag
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options  (Accumulated Total
(HEERTAEN) (In HKS millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve losses) equity
H023E1A1R At January 1, 2023 19 540 3 983 2 (117) 1,510
REERN Proft for he year - - - - - 7% 75
seehs Total comprefensive income - - - - - 758 758
fFERAE Transfer among reserves - - - - (6) 6 -
ERES Share option scheme
-RrkERENZTIRR - e is3Ue Upon exercise of shar options 2 - - 5 - - 4
0EREARE W 130) 2022 fnalcividend fNote 131t - - - - - (240) (240)
0350 ERE (W2 130) 2023 interim dividend (Vote 133) - - - - - (o4) (o)
2 - - 45 ) (508) (467)
JA2023E12831H At December 31, 2023 81 540 3 1,028 16 183 1,801
2022F 7 LR E F N : The comparative figures for 2022 are set out as follows:
\ REaH
#1E O (zER
L] EhEdE Retained
e OV Capital k&R Share profis fErag
Share  Contributed ~ redemption Share options~ (Accumulated Total
(HBE3#TAZL) (In HKS millon) captal surplus feserve premium feserve losses) equity
o1 R1A At January 1, 2022 19 540 3 %0 U U 1619
KEERA Profi for the year - - - - - 183 183
shaka Total compreensive income - - - - - 183 183
e Transfer among reserves - - - - ?) 2 -
BhEE Share option scheme
-RAEEREnRa 2R - Share Issu upon exercise of share options - - - 3 - - 8
NNERBRS W13 2021 fingl dvidend (Note 73 - - - - - (159) (158)
0051 8RE (W2 130) 2022 interm dhvidend (Vote 13) - - - - - (134) (134
BEZ RO K250 Share repurchased /Mote 255) - - - - - B B
- - - 3 0 %) %)
120205127315 At December 31, 2022 79 540 3 93 2 [117) 1510

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

28. f#1E

R20234F K 2022F12 A31H - KN&EE 2
BEITOT

28. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 are analyzed as follows:

(U BEEZETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
N EIE Capital redemption reserve 3 3
B8 19 & (B Share premium 1,028 983
B Share options reserve 16 22
ME H 1 Exchange reserve (94) (84)
H b Other reserves 124 118
REMEEREEANERE L Financial asset at fair value
TRIEEME through other comprehensive
income reserve (7) (6)
B 75 A Retained profits 655 819
2,108 2,238
¥R R EARR B (F15F13(a)) Proposed final dividends
(Note 13(a)) (218) (237)
EREE Total reserves 1,890 2,001

REB ZHARBBRDEREBEAME
HEZERGE  MEBEEATIREN1995
F5A29B T ket ElMETT o IRIE
BRF1GIFRNGNA(KIEER])  BIAR
BRI TR o

Hipfdw < ERHEBFBOT

@ WMETBEANEFBERZLMBE
o PBIREE 2 M & AR ZAE R
BESAANBHEFER(INE)
NRAIEMZEN B AR ZEXR
" e

(b) RIEFEER L EER A K EE
BEEL - ABREZAERRZ
EERBES MEMEER R LA
TR R RSB EBEE AR - A
A RER 2 BEIRE

(c) TRIEFIBEFER R QBIEM] - Fu B
ZHWBRRIZEAERBES - B
HOEMEIN » NAHEDEZA -

d BERLHBEZ2ERVBERE
8,1008 & 7T (20224 : 8,1008 &
70) (BF5E31)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit
arising from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@)

According to the relevant laws and financial
regulations, the statutory reserve funds of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China are used to make up
prior years’ losses, if any, and to increase the capital of
the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory
reserve fund and other reserves of the joint venture
in the Republic of Korea may only be used to offset a
future deficit or be transferred to capital stock, but not
for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law,
the statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE
is not available for distribution except as provided in
the Federal Law.

Put option financial liability recognized of HK$81
million (2022: HK$81 million) (Note 31).
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. SRITER

(U B EETAEN)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

29. BANK LOANS

(In HK$ million) 2023 2022

RITERBREUATRIEA -

Bank loans comprise

the following:
EH - BER Short-term, secured 5 7
FEHR - KR Short-term, unsecured 25 5
30 12
IRITERAER T BEERE - The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
BIHASK — & A On demand or
within one year 30 12

REBZRITEFATINEEHE -

The Group's bank loans are denominated in the following
currencies:

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
—HaK — New Taiwan dollar 25 5
— & - Vietnamese Dong 5 7

30 12

R2023F12A31H » AEE ZRITER
B FZ A3.3%(20224F :1.3%) iR
TEFREEFEEURNR TS °

R1TE 5008 8 7T (20224 : 70085
TC)AFEREHIB AR A — B IEIEAR AR R
R ZEAVEHIR o

R2022F12A31H » HIB AR BERE
WIRBITERTI AR R BIREA R A E
RAEH -

RITERNEREEREAAERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans
as at December 31, 2023 was 3.3% (2022: 1.3%). The
bank loans bear interest at floating rate that are market
dependent.

The bank loan of HK$5 million (2022: HK$7 million) is
secured by property of a non-controlling shareholder of
non-wholly owned subsidiary.

The unsecured bank loan as at December 31, 2022
obtained by the subsidiaries are secured by the corporate
guarantees provided by the Company.

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair
values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

30. BRI H b FE A K

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(UXBEEBETREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

FERTBR SR Trade payables 199 193
HEtE Rk ENEA Other payables and

accrued expense 353 362

552 555

AT RIEZRFZENERRZRED

The ageing analysis of trade payables from the invoice date

o is as follows:

(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

0Z30H 0 — 30 days 185 161

31260H 31 - 60 days 4 12

61%290H 61 — 90 days 4 8

#90H Over 90 days 6 12
199 193

AR EMEMN Rz FEEEAER
REMEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
R REBRAERLIA

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RURBEHHERE

20124 + 7N & & Bt A Giordano UAE
X Giordano KSAZ FE% A% I B8 5 3808
HifE U EHERLERRI 2B TE
SYAEEEANPKEAEMERE
E#1.02BB T - ZR KR HENRA
& B A U B Giordano UAE K Giordano
KSAZ I 3F 14 Befsrl 171F - M B &E|
HAH ZEWBaBY S REBEK
AHER - BMLhEtELSENIRE - K
ROhEEEREUNETT(ET]FHERY
AREalE -

% 2015 F - & & B 3t [ Giordano
Fashions Co. W.L. L.([Giordano KW )
K GIO Fashions W.L.L.([ Giordano QA )
ZIEERR R HROLEE - AR E S
ERNERRIZB TR TASBFFE
ERPTFEEMEREEL1,9008%5
TG o RZ PR IR OH BRE N AN 5 B S Ak U S
Giordano KW K Giordano QA2 B& 1034
BEERRIITE - MEAEIEBAE - 2%
M aEY S IR LK ARER - BIE
FFERSEMRE HURLHEESE
ETFERINERBEE -

20194 + 7N & [F i Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW K Giordano QA 3E 28 f%
RERET S ek - EATERIGEE - UR
B Rl#2,1008 8T ~ 1,1008 BT &
500& 7 7T & Giordano UAEH)20% 4
FERE S Giordano KW B 31% B 4% 75 1&
# N Giordano QARI41 % HIAS S © T
i — # Y Giordano UAE -+ Giordano
KW K Giordano QALK 75k 25 Y [B) B
T % By 3R 0 B 1T 1 3R /Y 48 8 3R 04 B
EEECEEHARI -

ZEREAEHEBEOSERABERE
THARBERRBASRNESRERAR
BZASMEE  REVNHZRENSE
AR AR EREM S ERGHE R (T £
@A) REFEVHRELERE 135
ZRRBENEBEDBRE=ZR
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202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$102 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano UAE and Giordano
KSA to sell their remaining interests in these companies to
the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after
3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized costs, which is measure at the present
value of the estimated redemption amount. The put option
liabilities are denominated in United States dollars (“‘US$”)
and are classified under current liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial
liabilities arising from the put option granted to the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L.
“(Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L. “(Giordano
QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these companies
to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of
the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their amortized cost, which is the present value of the
estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW
and Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell
20% economic interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic
interest in Giordano KW and 41% economic interest in
Giordano QA at considerations of approximately HK$21
million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million respectively. The
associated put option liabilities recognized arising from the
put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at the time
of further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA economic interest.

The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is
determined at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value
of the equity investment based on discounted cash flows,
using inputs that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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32. EERIBEE

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

EEBRBERBAEZINEEEER
RE RN & RDAR R 2 B R M F 2 B
& o

AEERFRAZELEHAEERBELZ

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable
in the respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

B8 (72 [ — MBHE 2 & B IE 33 10

T~ taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
BEHEB(EE)ERS Deferred tax (assets) liabilities
mEE
wE  R2K2
HREEE  HESE Accelerated  FEEA
Right-of-use Lease accounting  Unremitted Hth CH
(HEEETAEN) (In HK$ millon) assets liabilities depreciation profits Others Total
202351718 At January 1, 2023 101 (113) ) 111 (40) 51
BEZEE Translation difference - - - @ - @)
RRBERRF (H%) Charged (credited) o income
(Hit11) statement (Note 1) 7 (7) 7 1 9 17
2023124318 At December 31, 2023 108 (120) 5 110 (31) 72
#0221 A1 At January 1, 2022 105 (119) 4) 116 () 27
BEER Translation difference - - - 6 i} 6)
RABRT (K% )52 (Credited) charged to income
(Wit11) statement (Note 11) 4 6 2 1 31 3
20225124318 At December 31, 2022 101 (113) 2) 111 (40) 57

NEBE B RERIE4.328 8 T (2022
F426BBL) o WERERBIEBR
2. 72BF L (20224 : 2.62(8 8 L) R
2023F 12 A31 HESFERNEM o 88 T &0
DEBZEEMNREBRWE R A 2 &R
TRIBEIEL -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF

The Group has unrecognized tax losses of HK$432
million (2022: HK$426 million). These unrecognized tax
losses to the extent of HK$272 million (2022: HK$262
million) will expire within 5 years from December 31, 2023.
The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EEBREE ()

ERERMFA T HFREMESHE R
[l — B B RE - IR XE W TR & & Al SR AT
BIERELMAENE - NISBEFAE
EHREE  REHEERBERAIIE -

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
BEEIEE E Deferred tax assets (39) (55)
EERIAR IR Deferred tax liabilities 111 112

72 57
10 & &I 33. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(a) M2023F12H31H ' AKERZT
EEH  WRAEREREZTARAE
RBE HENHERNSHEEZA
R—FANE B A1,0008 5
TT(20224F : 1,4008787T) °

HEANBEITRBRGR  He
BT E R ERE - BETPImZHE
EME IREREREHE S IAH
ERAE2HE(UARSERE) -
EiAEDNRREREEETHE -

(b) H2023F12H31H @ XEBEHET
EEREPHAE 2T R AR REE
JREHENREEKAE WAL
T

(a)

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease charges payable under non-
cancellable leases in respect of retail shops, office
premises and warehouses which were due within
one year amounted to HK$10 million (2022: HK$14
million).

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The lease rentals of
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease income receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of retail
shops and office premises as set out below:

(A BEBTRENM) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022

1F R Within one year 6 7
1618 B5F R After one year but

within five years 1 7

7 14
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34.

35.

BAREE

R20234F K 2022F12 A31H - ANEFHI
EERNERHEMERE ALK
NERE 2 EARFELE -
METHELEZEGYHIER

TRAMASEREBRELIDNAGBE
B BRERASNMFRCEE - BRELD
FTEEMBEDNARSREM - 3K
RREREBAREGAPBRERT D
BAREZDMELNRTRE -

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had
no material capital commitment in respect of leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flow were,
or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

MEXBEE
Liabilities from
financing activities

HEAE IRITER

Lease Bank

(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) liabilities loans
M2022F1 A1 8 2 &8 Balance as at January 1, 2022 637 168
EBRIETER Repayment of bank loans - (199)
HINEITE K Addition of bank loans - 44

HERBEZATH IR

Payment for principal element

of lease liabilities (402) -
HEBGB A HH»TK Payment for interest element
(MEEEBEN) of lease liabilities in
operating activities (25) -
IR FE Non-cash movements 403 (1)
R2022F 12 H31 B 2 &4 Balance as at December 31,
2022 613 12
EBEIRTER Repayment of bank loans - (105)
EINRITER Addition of bank loans - 123
HEaE 2R ETK Payment for principal element
of lease liabilities (400) -
HEBGBE A HDTH Payment for interest element
(REEZEBR) of lease liabilities (39) -
RS EF Non-cash movements 492 —
R2023F12 A318 2 &8 Balance as at December 31,
2023 666 30

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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36. EERMALRS

BB A TR BERIEEESNS—T7
SEELPBEREERRBH S — 7717
BERFENZ AL - KRZ M AZES
IXMABREZEN AL ERER
BEAL -

(a) HEBALI2ZXRS
RAFER > EFHBRAIE—R
MBEEEKBRE—HALEARE
TERHEKRRRS - BEBEZER
SEFnT

202312 H31H
December 31, 2023

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(a) Transactions with related party

During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with a joint
venture in the ordinary and usual course of business
on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these
transactions are as follows:

(XBEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2023 2022
HE T —H&&a QA Sales to a joint venture 130 185
A= i R /NE] Purchases from

a joint venture 1 1
WA —HeaE AR Royalty income from

a joint venture 22 25

(b) EERFEE AN 248k
12 A31 8 eI e A 508 -

(A B & TREL)

(b) Balances with related party

Amount due from a related party at December 31 is:

(In HK$ million) 2023 2022

fEl—FH A& RRIFIA

Amount due from
a joint venture 10 11

R 20234 2022412 A31H »
i i Y BA B A = FRTB B R R AE JE K
R R EAM WK - BURIES A
I BB REREREER -
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the above
amount due from a related party is reflected in trade
and other receivables. The receivable is unsecured in
nature, bear no interest and is repayable on demand.
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36. EEEM AT SBEBA L (E) 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) TEEEEHM (c) Key management compensation
AT ESYwEATEEE Executive Directors are considered as key
RS D B TS SR management and their emoluments have been
10 HE - HihE %@%ﬁﬂ’?ﬁﬁﬂ’\] disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. The
BlemT : A . emoluments payable to other key management are as
follows:
(BTt iElr) (In HK$'000) 2023 2022
EAFH ¢ RHEAMAWE Basic salaries and
other benefits 7,049 8,173
RIRSET B Contribution to
pension schemes 121 131
RIEHE BB Performance-based/
discretionary bonuses 5,800 5,358
12,970 18,662
37. EEEH#H 37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
R2023F M2022%F 12 A31H » ANEBEW The Group did not pledge any assets as of December 31,
BEFEAEE - 2023 and 2022.
38. HAREE 38. CONTINGENCY

REEBERA  UTHBEEERNY
Bk

(U B BT AEN)

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statement were as follows:

(In HK$ million) 2023 2022

REERYERE ZRITER

Bank guarantees given in lieu
of property rental deposits 11 10

NBEEERD ESW TR AEER
ERZEERMAERARDRRLD ZH
= o @It - WER20234F 2022412 A
31 EMZERRIED E (B -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees. No provision was
therefore made in this respect at December 31, 2023 and
2022.
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EEZFIMEZNRS 39. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
N B L2023 F6 A U EE PT Retall In June 2023, the Group acquired the entire issued share
Kreatif Amerta Internasional & & 28 2 capital of PT Retail Kreatif Amerta Internasional, whose sole
Bkt EW—BREELAEES material asset is its ownership of 14.80% in PT Giordano
—EAAEEFEZTEREENNE R APT Indonesia (“GID”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Giordano Indonesia([ GID |) #714.80% Group, for a total consideration of SG$1 million (equivalent
B BREAEI100 BFIMETUOrE4 to approximately HK$5.9 million). The Group’s effective
590 @B 7) - WiEE - REEEGIDH shareholding in GID increased by 11.84% from 52.06% to
BRAE I B 52.06% 1% hN11.84% = 63.90% after the acquisition.
63.90% °
RN IEGIDM R ME R - AEEERIE As a result of the acquisition of an additional interest in
2 1) 1 R A K2 FE 12 )M AR 2 P K SR IR GID, the Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling
A BB N B PR B (G R 25 1 116008 interests and receivables from the non-controlling interests,
BT ° resulting in an increase in equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$6 million.
FTEHERQE 40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
KA BIR2023F12 A31B Z EEBHE R The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the
BT Company as at December 31, 2023:
BERTR2EBRRE/
FERMZ HRER/ HEER
L ERES Issued and fully
R Effective paid share capital/l TEX¥K KEHE
HEARERE Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2023 2022
ERERRA Bk 100 100 3,000,000#7T ®ERERR
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 REXFEBRE/EF
Investment holding and provision of
company consultancy services/
Hong Kong
East Jean Limited" BA 100 100 1,000,000 KETERER
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 E#EAR/ A&

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

Retail of apparel and accessories/
Taiwan

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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40. T EME LT (E)

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRZBHRERE/
FER®BZ HMER/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
MEAREZR Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2023 2022
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* RER 49 49 200,000 ~ERELR KETERER
State of Qatar QAR200,000  E#Mm®R/ AR
Retail of apparel and accessories/
State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company ~ #i& 60 60 26,000,000,0008fE KLTERER
Limited" Vigtnam VND$26,000,000,000  EHERSR,/#E
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) Pty. 2 92.8 92.8 70000087 HETERERERAR/ RN
Limited* Australia AUD700,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Australia
Giordano Fashions LL.C.*  FB %S 100 100 3,000,000 sl LETEREREBRR/ M
UAE AED 3,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/
UAE
Giordano Fashions W.L.L*  ®IEH 49 49 300,000RBHEME LETERERERAG/ BB
State of Kuwait KWD300,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
State of Kuwait
ERRERAR Bk 100 100 5,000,008 HETERAHRER
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 E#BEG /&b
Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.*  ZE 100 100 10,000,000%% KETERERERAR/ FH
Thailand Baht10,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Thailand
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.  BRFAE 100 100 5000005 KFERYE KETERER
Malaysia RM500,000 EEAER/SRAD

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A R EBAERAF
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Retail of apparel and accessories/
Malaysia
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR2EBRERE/
FERGZ HMER/ BEES
L ERES Issued and fully
B 3L 2 Effective paid share capital/ FTEE¥ KLHE
MEAREZR Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2023 2022
ERRRFERARN il 100 100 50,0008F1% HETEREREBMR,/EF
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Macau
Giordano Middle Fast FZE* Mg — 7 100 100 1,000,000MEERAE HEDHRER
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000  EeHifm,/MEE 17
Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai - UAE
Giordano Originals %% 100 100 1,900,0025TMET BETERBHRER
(Singapore) Private Singapore SGD1,900,002  E#BRAG, /K
Limited Retailing and trading of apparel and
accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* &7 60 60 802,000k REAER/ FE
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RER 80 80 4,000,000RARERM METEREREBAL/ RAE
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000  Retail of apparel and accessories/
Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia®  HIfE 64 52 2,600,000,00060E8 #2TERE  ERAm
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000 KEBBER/HE
Retail of apparel, accessories and
related products/Indonesia
MIRFERERAF* FEARLNE 100 100 210,100,000TARE RERK  RERHERER
Shenzhen Tiger People's Republic RMB210,100,000 i #EMS,/hE AR
Garment Ltd.** of China Investment holding, manufacturing
and retailing of apparel and
accessories/Mainland China
FHAEERAT Bk 100 100 60,001,00087T REEKR KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$60,001,000  REEERI,/ HEARE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 #

i

Investment holding, trading of
garment products and provision
of management services/Mainland
China
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40. T EME LT (E)

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR2EBERE/
BERBZ HMES/ HEER
L ERES Issued and fully
R Effective paid share capital/ TEL%/KEHE
HWBATRE Place of percentage of registered capital/  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital place of operation
2023 2022
Textile and WEMRIRTE 75 75 27,0000000% 2% METEREREEAR/
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of Saudi SR27,000,000  YHEMAATE
Arabia Retail of apparel and accessories/
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.*  F£3E 100 100 10251 WEEEEFE/ 55
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/Hong
Kong
Hist - Notes:

tOSNEREEDE
RERA 2B A R

41. BB R 2 E

N BRREON2024E3 12 EES

SHtE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X EBAERLF

# A foreign owned enterprise

*

Subsidiaries held indirectly

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on
March 12, 2024.
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(1) B®W
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012) (the “2011 Share Option
Scheme”). No options may be and have been granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry
date, but the options granted before the expiry date continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of issue.
Subject to the aforesaid, the provisions of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme remained in full force and effect until December 31,
2028, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible
participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (a

any Director or proposed Director (whether
executive or non-executive, including any
independent non-executive Director), employee
or proposed employee (whether full time or part

time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded
to work for; any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i)  any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(3)

(i)  ANEBEEMAKE kIR R =k
R AR AR BRI 6 2 R R A RIHY -

(a) EMEBFHEERHE - MR
i AER - REBHRRE
(o) fEf] AL EREIRHEMZT
Ejﬁm&mﬁkigﬂm
W B - BEHEMAR
() MEMEMRREHEER

(d EEEF K

e EMEIRHEFT(BESMAEA
=)

2011 EEREFEmMS 0 BeE

m—u&yu?ﬁutEﬂAﬁmﬁﬁ

FFTES 2 TR

REZFETTFRTZROAR

Azt 22 R2021F6 A9H Em © ~5
I 4 BE IR AE AR 4R 2011 F BB AR RE 51 2%
l_lm_l o

R2024F 3 H12H © RIE2011F A% #E
FEEEREMERITENE BIREE
1T1E M ] BT I 9 48 E052123,512,000
(HERARARADBHITRGZH
7.65%) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(3)

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant)
of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of eligible
participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

No options may be and have been granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme from June 9, 2021, the expiry date.

As at March 12, 2024, a number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 123,512,000
shares (representing approximately 7.65% of the shares in
issue) that may be issued upon exercise of all options which
had been granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011
Share Option Scheme.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted or to be
granted to each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue unless
the same is approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder
and/or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and
where the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the shares on the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the
2011 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
commencing on such date on or after the date on which the
option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such
date as the directors may determine in granting the option
but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.
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BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall
be at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when
an option is offered;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEME

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period
of 10 years from the date of adoption, and was expired on
June 9, 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 § #
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

BIE2011 E AR HEST 2 BE ISR E £2023 Movements of share options under the 2011 Share Option
F12A31BEFERZEEBHEHINOT -

2011 F B R AEST &I
2011 Share Option Scheme

Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out
below:

RORE  RERRE  REAGE  REREN  REREE  RONE  SRARE
1A1R Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled  12A31B Exercise s
RERAL As at during during during during As at pice  HHAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2023/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2023/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
BT (§/8/8) (£/5/8)
HKS (YYD (YYD
g2
Director
REg 100,000 - - - - 100,000 5000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Chan Ka Wai 150,000 - - - - 150,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
250,000 - - - - 250,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
8,700,000 - 1,000,000 - - 7,700,000
1) 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000  2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5000  2014/03/24  2017/0310 - 2024/03/23
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5000  2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5000  2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3.792  2015/04/09  2017/03/10 - 2025/03/31
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
9,064,000 - . - - 9,064,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

173



SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

R023F  REARE  REATE  REARN  REAEE  NOREF SRORE

1A1R Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled  12A31H Exercise s
SERAT As at during during during during As at pice  REAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2023/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2023/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
ET (£/5/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYymwoD) YV muwoD)
BREZBEAREI%HSEE
Participants with options in excess of 1% individual limit
0Nl
Not applicable

FRCRFARRTRARBRACRIRAN0INNERROBRRS REARBRRE

Related entity participants or service providers with options granted and to be granted during the year exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue

TR
Not applicable
Hfp gk
Other participants
-EfbEEa1EE 3,102,000 - - 138,000 - 2,964,000 5,000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
- Other Gontinuous 4,634,000 - - 208,000 - 4,426,000 5000 2014/03/24  2016/03/04 - 2024/03/23
Contract Employees 6,226,000 - - 280,000 - 5,946,000 5000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
7,818,000 - - 352,000 - 7,466,000 5000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
9,350,000 - - 422,000 - 8928000 5000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
2,660,000 - - 182,000 - 2528000 3792 2015/04/09  2016/08/04 - 2025/03/31
3,062,000 - - 138,000 - 2924000 3792 2015/04/09  2017/03/10 - 2025/03/31
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4090 2015/07/10  2016/08/04 - 2025/06/30
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4090 2015/07/10  2017/08/10 - 2025/06/30
942,000 - - - - 942,000 4340 2016/09/19  2017/03/10 - 2026/06/30
946,000 - - - - 946,000 4340 2016/09/19  2018/03/09 - 2026/06/30
9,510,000 - - 124,000 - 9,386,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
10,364,000 - - 128,000 - 10,236,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
12,350,000 - - 180,000 - 12,170,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
2,592,000 - - - - 2,592,000 4050 2017/06/09  2017/08/11 - 2026/12/31
2,592,000 - - - - 2,592,000 4,050 2017/06/09  2018/03/09 - 2025/12/31
2,616,000 - - - - 2,616,000 4050 2017/06/09  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/31
17,308,000 - 10,618,000 328,000 - 6,362,000 1,390 2020/09/09  2021/03/12 - 2028/12/31
18,200,000 - 11,234000 328,000 - 6,638,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/31
18,398,000 - 8350000 344,000 - 9,704,000 1390 2020/09/00  2022/03/11 - 2028/12/31
133,170,000 - 30202000 83,102,000 - 99,866,000
it - Remarks:

REZERIES B771E AR B9 I U T E B4 The weighted average closing price per shares immediately before the respective
fg2.601E7T ° exercise date of the options was HK$2.601.
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HOE  RERRE  REAGE  REREN  REREE  RONE  BRARE
1A1R Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled  12A31H Exercise s
SERAT As at during during during during As at pice  REAH  Exercisable period/
Eligible person 2023/01/01 the year the year the year theyear  2023/12/31  pershare Date of grant Vesting period
#T (£/5/8) (£/5/8)
HKS  (YYYYmwoD) (YYYMDD)
Bfhg5%
Other participants
-HtEBEE
- Other related entity
0¥l
Not applicable
- Eip Rt s 410,000 - - - - 410,000 5,000 2014/03/24  2015/03/04 - 2024/03/23
- Other service providers 9 610,000 - - - - 610,000 5000 2014/03/24  2016/08/04 - 2024/03/23
820,000 - - - - 820,000 5,000 2014/03/24  2017/03/10 - 2024/03/23
1,030,000 - - - - 1,080,000 5,000 2014/03/24  2018/03/09 - 2024/03/23
1,230,000 - - - - 1,230,000 5,000 2014/03/24  2019/03/08 - 2024/03/23
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4180 2017/01/06  2017/08/11 - 2025/12/31
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/09 - 2025/12/3
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 2017/01/06  2018/08/10 - 2025/12/3
2,358,000 - 990,000 - - 1,368,000 1390 2020/09/09 2021/03/12 - 20281123
2,358,000 - 926,000 - - 1432,000 1390 2020/09/09  2021/08/11 - 2028/12/3
2,394,000 - 882,000 - - 1512000 1390 2020/09/09  2022/03/11 - 20281213
12,112,000 - 2,798,000 - - 9,314,000
ait
Total: 163,046,000 - 34,000,000 3,102,000 - 125,944,000
Fiat - Note:

RIBEHBRINBEAOFERA  JOEREERE
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Owners of the authorized dealers/franchisees and a legal consultant
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting May 13, 2024 to May 17, 2024

(both days inclusive)

Final Dividend May 30, 2024 to June 3, 2024

(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

May 17, 2024

Dividends

Interim Dividend HK17.0 cents per share
Paid on September 15, 2023
Proposed Final Dividend HK13.5 cents per share
Payable on June 14, 2024
STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange : 709

Bloomberg : 709 HK

Reuters 0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

Email investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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gement, Objectives and Progress
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Welcome to the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance (the "ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates
our latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As
you may be aware, 'World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano's credo
since its inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends our
operations and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy
statement in 2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well
by doing good” in order to make a positive impact in the communities
where we do business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations,
community involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in
general, this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance
against ESG metrics, including the impact that we are making on the
environment and communities, the way we deliver responsible products
and exceptional service to our customers in fairly and transparently, how
we invest in our employees’ development and foster an inclusive and
supportive working environment, as well as our framework to develop
strong governance, effective risk management systems and robust
controls.

GIORDANO
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Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix C2 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and in compliance with the “comply or explain” provision thereof.
Detailed references to the “Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide”
have been included at the back of this Report to aid readers and facilitate
greater transparency.

The content of the ESG Report is determined through the Group's
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment processes,
which include identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance and
materiality of the issues, and preparing and validating the information
reported. The selection of material ESG factors are derived from
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessments.

Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the ESG
Report so that stakeholders can have a comprehensive understanding
of the Group’'s ESG performance. Information on the standards,
methodologies, references and source of key emission and conversion
factors used on these KPls reporting are stated wherever appropriate.
To enhance and maintain the comparability of the ESG Reports
between years, the Group adopts consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies as far as practicable. In case of any changes in the
methodologies and specific standards, explanations have provided in
corresponding sections to facilitate information interpretation.

This ESG Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2023, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets"”), which contributed to 43.34% of Giordano’s sales in
2023 excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There
are no significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that
of the last one in 2022.

ESG Governance

Effective ESG plays a definite role in driving the Group's pathway toward
sustainable development. To ensure proper implementation of ESG,
the Board has charged the Group’s Risk Management Committee (the
“RM Committee”) with assisting the Audit Committee to oversee the
Company’s ESG development and execution, as well as to help determine
the ESG strategies and direction ahead, to keep track of potential ESG-
related risks. With the Board's supervision, the management of the Group
formulates and executes ESG-related polices and strategies.

Board Statement

Good corporate governance inextricably linked to positive governance
of environmental and social issues. With the aim to ensure proper
ESG governance within the Group, the Group’s board of directors (the
“Board”) shoulders the ultimate accountability for the supervision of the
Group's ESG performance, while authority has been properly delegated
to each management of the Group. In a bid to ensure the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management measures and internal
control systems, the RM Committee and the Group's Internal Audit
department are responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG strategies
and performance, as well as assessing and identifying ESG-related risks.
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The RM committee review and assess the internal operations to identify
material ESG issues, including climate related risk (e.g. natural disaster on
supply chain), and prioritize the ESG risks through materiality assessment.
They review and monitor the Group’s ESG policies and progress against
environmental targets.

In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well as to keep
track of the Company’s ESG development, the RM Committee reviews the
Group's performances against industry leaders and peers of comparable
size to ensure the latest requirements and compliance status are met.
Timely adjustments will be made to cater for the emerging market trends
regarding ESG-related issues that may potentially impact the business
operations of the Group.

The RM Committee will also inform the Board of developments vis-a-vis
in ESG performances, visions and strategies through Board meetings,
dedicated reports and other communication channels on a regular basis.
The Group has established communication channels, between business
divisions and its stakeholders for better communication of ESG-related
issues. The communication channels are reviewed regularly to ensure
that effective communications are made between the Group and its
stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, the Board has assigned an
independent consulting firm to conduct a materiality assessment for
better identification of potential and material ESG issues relevant to
the business and its stakeholders. Stakeholder engagement has been
conducted to engage with relevant stakeholders for more precise
identification of the material issues that could internalise the opinions of
the stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with higher
significance will be considered material. The Board would also review the
material issues regularly to ensure appropriate ESG management policies
are in place, so as to promote prompt responses to meet stakeholders’
expectations.

The Nomination Committee reviews the diversity, structure and size of the
board, Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy to achieve gender
and race diversity in the board, which encourage inclusion of a broader
spectrum of diverse perspective within the recruitment approach and
policies. They oversee the planning for the appointment and resignation
of the Directors and senior management, as well as evaluate the
independence of the independent non-executive.

The Audit Committee monitor and evaluate the Company’s risk
management, corporate governance functions, and internal auditing
process. They ensures that Company complies with applicable
environmental and labour laws and regulations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours to
review plans and performances regarding its operation and sustainable
development. The Board would keep track of ESG-related work execution
with respect to the proposed plans and targets, to formulate future plans
on the Group's ESG development. The quality and quantity of ESG-
related staff training are also monitored to ensure the Group’s message
on ESG-related issues and market trends are well conveyed.
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Bin&
Stakeholders

RIS HER

Expectations and Needs

Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality
Assessment

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support are
crucial to the Group’s business success. By understanding stakeholders’
expectations and concerns about sustainable development, the
Group can grasp a more comprehensive perspective for developing
the sustainable development goal and improving the sustainable
development strategy. The Group has established various communication
channels, including surveys with ESG-related questions, to receive
opinions and to promote expressions of suggestions from different
stakeholders across the entire business. Stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns will then be reflected and considered while evaluating the
Group's sustainable development goals and strategies.

For this year’s ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent
third-party consulting firm to assist in the collection of stakeholders’
opinions regarding the Group’s ESG issues. Opinions are collected
via various communication channels, including questionnaires. Results
derived from quantitative and qualitative analysis of the stakeholders’
opinions are referenced to understand their expectations and needs, and
to improve the Group’s management of ESG-related issues. Meanwhile,
the stakeholders’ opinions will also be incorporated into the materiality
assessment process to identify material ESG issues of the Group. By
acknowledging the importance of the values induced by the stakeholders’
opinions and suggestions, the Group will continue practising stakeholder
engagement for modification of sustainable development goals and
strategies.

wEMOES X

Means of Communication and Response

Y e BTBRBE  EERER s EHER®RE
°
e Compliance with national policies, laws and Information reporting regularly
JU0UL gl « EHREERIEEE
B s KRR EMB Meet the regulators regularly
Pay taxes in full and on time . BB
Government and . o
Regulators * MIREEZRR . Examinations and inspections
Ensure production safety
o O o RRKRE
Returns Shareholders conferences
= s SRLE NS
Compliant operation Announcements
o RAREERA B - BEEEBMA T
B3 Rise in company value Email, telephone communication and
Shareholders o EBEAMANER company website

Transparency in information and effective
communication

GIORDANO
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Stakeholders

e

AREEBE

Business Partners

000

1P,
=4

HE

Customers

BiR

Environment

7%
Industry

%
&R
Employees

ﬁj{&

HEMLR

Community

and the Public

RASE K

Expectations and Needs

. WEEE
Operation with integrity
. TEBF
Equal Rivalry
o SEETT
Performance of contracts
° GRIHRE

Mutual benefits and win-win results

o FHMAE MMM

Outstanding products and services
° RFEHELE

Health and safety
* BITEH

Performance of contracts
. BsEHE

Operate with integrity
s SRBEN

Compliant emission
o ERAEREE

Energy saving and emission reduction
o HRRGIRE

Ecosystem protection
o EUITRIBE

Establishment of industry standards
. BBITERE

Drive industry development

o (RIEWER
Protection of rights
o B
Occupational health
o HriER
Remunerations and benefits
o BIRITR
Career development
o AXFdlZ
Humanity cares
o REZRE

Participation in charity

BEMEES X

Means of Communication and Response

e BEMFTIEE;

Review and appraisal meetings
* EI5EB

Business communications
o REREIA{E

EaP Nl =]

Engagement and cooperation

o BPIRIEH L REEEE

Customer service centre and hotlines
s EPREHRE

Customer feedback survey
s MBI A

Social media platforms

* ESGHE
ESG Reporting

* 2MNTERRIE

Participation in industry forums

s BTERER
Employee communication meetings
o [T A HsE A
House journal and intranet
o BIHEAE
Employee mailbox
o BEFIMTIEY

Training and workshops

e BTEE

Employee activities

o N AL

Company’s website

.« RERE

Company’s announcements
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During the preparation of the ESG report, the Group has commissioned
an independent third-party consultant to assist us in conducting the
comprehensive materiality assessment in a fair and equitable manner. The
materiality assessment has been implemented in three main phases as
follows:

(i)

(iii)

Based on the relevant national and local standards and policies,
industry characteristics and the development of the Group, we have
identified 36 potential material issues in respect of ESG that may
have an impact on the Groups business or the stakeholders;

We have invited internal and external stakeholders (including
employees, management, directors, clients, suppliers and
communities) to fill in questionnaires, so as to collect and identify
their level of concern for each of such issues; and

We have established the two-dimensional matrix as "significance
to the Company’s business” and “significance to stakeholders” by
conducting analysis on valid questionnaires, so as to determine the
priority of the potential material issues.

The following chart represents the materiality matrix based on the findings
from the questionnaire survey.

=
&
T
g = gé) 18 32
2
2 O
E 1 29 25
S OO O
: 3 4 6 23 47,24 2120 14 33
25 OO
L E 8 57 22 16
o & O @)
Q 2 27 28
B O O
gl 9 10 153119
% @) @,
ﬁ . 35 13
T O O
L] 36 3,34 1
12 30
& Low # Medium & High
HEMEBHEEM Significance to the Group's business
- SIEM HEEH HERE
Environmental Labour Practices Operating Practices Community Investment
1 REAR 14 ERAR 21 BEAK 3 DREEE
Environmental Compliance Employment Compliance Operational Compliance Charity
2 ERER 15 FHEREF 22 ERERHEEEORERR 3% HHHEHE
Air Pollutant Management Employees’ Remuneration and Managing Environmental Risks Promotion of Community
Benefits of Supply Chain Development
3 BEmBERE R 16 TR B R 23 EIERHREENTIER 36 HREIfE
Fleet Emissions Management Employees’ Working Hours and Managing Social Risks of Poverty Alleviation
Rest Period Supply Chain
4 BEKER 17 ZatlavEge 24 REBER
Wastewater Management Diversity and Equal Procurement Practices
Opportunity
5 REREEIN 18 BEEREZE 25 mEER

Greenhouse Gas Emission
Safety

GIORDANO
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Environmental Labour Practices

EEEN

Operating Practices

26 EHFEEREZE

6 BEEYER 19 HEIEERE
Waste Management Training and Education
7 BEIRE A

Energy Consumption

By 1EE T K& k1% T 27
Prevention of Child Labour and
Forced Labour

8 KARER 28
Use of Water Resources

9 FERRER 29
Green Energy Project

10 FHEREEMRER =
Use of Raw Materials and
Packaging Materials

1M ERRE 31
Ecological Protection

12 EHREEL 32
Responding to Climate Change

13 REEHREDREE 33

ERESGHRE BAKBEMNIRE Rt & REMNHEM
MRBRE - AEBECETEEEFE AR
AEEBRESNENEEABERERNRE
HEREREE - ZAHERTNERSE - HME
HMEWEBRHNEREERE
FZTRE HEREAFEREALINEXRER -
BRI HERRE - HERERFEAWMT

1

Prevention and Handling of
Environmental Incidents

BTEE

Labour Practices

BEER

Operating Practices

FEEUNEPLENEZUERRES B APRMSCHIAT R 1
BMBRGTEANZEF([SASB) BUEHIRS - HE RERTT

XS EMEEMSASBEZEE -

BT E # H B A K2

Customer Health and Safety
BRENTTHRER

Responsible Sales and
Marketing

BEERBERE

Customer Service Management

REE SR ERE

Intellectual Property Protection

Mk

Research and Development

ke

Information Security
EFLRERE

Customer Privacy Protection
k&S

Anti-corruption

identified are as follows:

B & Aspects E K¥EIF Material Issues

1% & #H Employment Compliance

B RN Z 2 Occupational Health and Safety

F P2 %Z 2 Customer Health and Safety

E P FLFE (R Customer Privacy Protection

Accounting Standards Board (“SASB").

In view of the relevance and validity of the ESG Report with the Group's
environmental and social performance, the Group has conducted a
materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that are material to the
business of the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment is based on
stakeholder surveys, materiality maps provided by well-known external
institutions’, the judgement from management, as well as professional
opinions from third-party ESG professionals. The material ESG issues

The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include the ESG Industry Materiality
Map and the SASB Materiality Map produced respectively by MSCI and the Sustainability
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Environmental Management, Objectives and
Progress

The Group is committed to embracing green development, as well as to
minimising the environmental impacts from the daily business operations.
Understanding the importance of incorporating green measures and
practices into the business to achieve sustainable development, the
Group has developed a series of sustainable development strategies
together with a number of environmental targets to push forward the
Group's commitment to protecting the environment.

During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets to
focus on mitigating (i) air and greenhouse gas emissions; (ii) energy and
water use; and (iii) waste generation during business operations and
development. The Group looks to gradually reduce power and water
consumption, as well as greenhouse gas emissions and waste generation,
through actively implementing measures on different environmental
aspects, such as power saving, water conservation, and paper use
reduction.

Apart from developing strategies and setting targets to promote
sustainable development, the Group is also obligated to strictly comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, including
but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong, and the
Environmental Protection Act the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group reviews its operations regularly to
assure that the laws and regulations are complied with. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance relevant to
environmental laws and regulations.

B E Aspects B#R Our Goals B Progress
BERE B 2= AR =R ASHER 51 R26)R =R BB RS, 561 A =

Greenhouse Gas

gas emissions

FA7K K
Water Use

Mitigating water use

Mitigating air and greenhouse AALIRE B 2I4,147 A - AALIRE B

(JA2021F mE%E)
Total greenhouse gas emission reduce
from 5,561 tCO.e to 4,147 tCO,e (with
2021 as baseline)

FEKE 50,1643 J5 K5 2 §27,20957 77 %
(LA202145F A EZE)

Water consumption reduced from 50,164 m®
to 27,209 m? (with 2021 as baseline)

BEIR{E A B BE IR (E B FREE#10,427 K BLFR 517,031 K FL B
Energy Use Mitigating energy use (BA20214F R EAE)
Electricity consumption reduced from
10,427 MWh to 7,031 MWh (with 2021 as
baseline)
=22 BMOEBELBETNENESE EEEVNBREREA3.6%(A2021F BE
Waste ﬂ]%ée@ @E)

Mitigating waste generation
during business operations and
development

GIORDANO

Non-hazardous waste reduced 43.6% in
term of intensity (using 2021 as baseline)
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Environmental Aspect A1: Minimized Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

Mm

EEMR  BABNEREELSRRE
2 RAWKESTNE —RE - ARER
MEEERMNEE  BEeE-—NENRD
BEEREY S HEIR o

BAEGE - ARENBER AP MERLERE
B EHERNRRER o

BRIREE@EA2 - BHER

Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

m

AIEHEREBBUTHETRR D [HE ]
B - BB &Rt ERE RN HFE
BER ~ KEIR ~ \RMRME - DO DHx S
M RERRERE - 10

o EEBTTE EMATRENRRE

o WBEMARERER - HlaREDE
REMHMBE

o HEEBHENRLEMNEL

e HEMEHREEBNEZANEHLE -
e ERRAR I

o RIATPMEBBHHNRREM

M

M

At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are
environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste
and emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from
production at our suppliers through to our business operations.

We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection.

In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of
reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical
power, water, paper and raw materials by:

* Incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our
business principles;

o Using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the
volume of raw materials and packaging consumed;

° Reducing waste generation within our operations;

o Promoting environmental protection, via supply chain
management and smart shop operations; and

° Promoting environmental awareness among our customers and
business associates.
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(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with
the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental
protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,
Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on
the use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the
generation of waste by implementing different practices internally:

e Displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices
and shops;

o Inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;

o Promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the use of
electronic copies of documents;

e  Pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white
printing;

o Recycling used paper;
o Reusing and recycling carton boxes;
*  Reusing shop furniture; and

o Reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures
have been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

@ Ei¥IRE IR B Energy-Saving Initiatives

SREA R4 .
Lighting

L]
ERELGR .

Air-conditioning

GIORDANO

B 20084 #E - @8 A TR E AR

A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to

energy-saving lights commenced since 2008

R2022% - AEEEETH2EHPEENNMERBIRAERETEERER
ARMHNREEYAE  REBEREFTERSRBEBFITERERRNIREA
R o

In 2022, the Hong Kong Market of the Group participated in the Electrical
Equipment Upgrade Scheme of CLP Hong Kong and the Energy-efficient
Equipment Subsidy Programme of HK Electric, replacing more

environmentally friendly lighting equipment for the Hong Kong headquarters
office building and many Hong Kong stores.

NEABH D RBAEFARRKLSERRSL

Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient
AR 22 T F AT R R I

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning
HRERNFHERERE25-26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25 - 26T

ERBEREZR  <ERUERRREARE

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance
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Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and
promote environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green
Team” set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid
example, which brings together representatives from different
departments to initiate programs for promoting low carbon living.
Moreover, to inspire and encourage staff's green actions, we have
also launched the following initiatives:

e Arrange charity bazaars from time to time

- Encourage colleagues to donate surplus items to the
company’s charity bazaar for charity sale. Besides, it can
raise funds to help disadvantaged groups or be given to
those in need, which will contribute to the environment and
society.

WWS BEBYE20 - XBRQUEMEEEH

EBEH208(REE), HRRMSHBA |
LEARNING CENTER P9 &3 53R ..
& EHRFREARE LT
)\% WEESR TWWSHEIEM) -

&

2023 £1 B 5H

AMEEL\REZHYRIBEY GO

vIEZRE  -BFEM
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BEMHEEH  MRAETEENEE

2022

254 AIR POLLUTANT

RE (=)

Nitrogen oxides (NOy) (kg)

B
Vehicles

Total

389.31
(-19.78%)*

485.30

GIORDANO

Green Performance

Overview Graph 1

Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to our
operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting Markets:

* 2023 Hb¥f 2022 BALLES)
2023 vs 2022 % Change

mEW T
Sulphur oxides (s0y) (kg)

B
Vehicles

Total

0.41
(-19.78%)*

0.51

FERIY) (F5)
Particulate matter (Pm) (kg)

B
Vehicles

Total

38.06
(-19.78%)*

47.44



BAERBEYNE GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS

*2023 tE ¥t 2022 B EE) 2023 vs 2022 % Change

HIB (am—armEs)
Scope 1 (tCOse)

{074

150

LSl
(44

100
- 68
50 < .
0

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
BE (A peE S -EE

B ITIHEHEO)
Intensity (tCO.e/HK$1m sales)

w

veey

2.470

96L°€
8¢Ce
LSSC

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

-19.78%*

-3.40%*

FIS2(am—amEs)
Scope 2 (tCOse)

12,000
10,000 ©
~N
8,000 3~
6,000 ™ *
S o 4,079 -3.49%
4,000 w =
N
2,000 &N
o
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 o

HIE3(nm—amEe)
Scope 3 (tCOse)

(Other indirect emissions)

60

3 47
40
-21.41%*
20
0
2022 2023 .

5T (wm1+2)
(R =EftikE &
Total (Scope 1+2) (tCO,e)

12,000
10,000

0
0
8,000  ~
6,000 o
N o 4,147 -3.81%*
4,000 N s
a 4
2,000 o &
=
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ¢

HBET (wim1+243)
(REE=ELiE &
Total (Scope 1+2+3) (tCOLe)

4,500 4,194

2

w

~N
3,000 =

-4.05%*
1,500
2022 2023 '
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TOTAL GHG EMISSIONS BY CATEGORY (unit: tco.e)

S

MEE
Electricity
Consumption

4,079

O

FKEIBEE B
Electricity used for
fresh water and
sewage processing

# AABDHFEE AR 2023 FREBERBIRMAENE DL

# Percentage contribution of the subject consumption towards our total GHG

emissions in 2023

'_:O@L

NEIEEIRRHEE
Corporate Vehicle
Fuel Consumption

68

BEREEMELENF L
Methane gas
generation at landfill

due to disposal of
paper waste

15

(0.36%)" 32

(1.64%)"
(0.77%)"

(97.26%)"

* 2023 Ho ¥ 2022 B LEES) 2023 vs 2022 % Change

$¥£7KE WATER USE

AT SBIE (kB ERBTEEE)
Total (my Intensity (m3/HK$1m sales)
100,000 = @
80,000 g o E NN
2 P w5 ow B
60,000 o ; i ¢
o 28 8 -39.03%* = B & §790% 35 7gur
£ S 27209 o -
20,000 S o o
’ N 5
o .
0 o 0 o
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

ERM¥ihH¥EE VEHICLE FUEL CONSUMPTION

* 2023 tE ¥ 2022 B LLEE) 2023 vs 2022 % Change

#atam WE (B B EEBTHER) RIE (AR SRR
Total (Litre) Intensity (Litre/HK$1m sales) Intensity (tCO.e/HK$1m sales)
80,000 - 40 0.10
~ 35
600 T o S & 008 1 §
800 O T s 5 9 g ® s & 8 8
o & . 2 o S S . 9
32,000 S N w 26,473-19.78%* L8 S 315767 -19.45%* o N 3 g°°4°5 19.48%*
o 10 ol o
16,000 3 ' 5 N 002 S
0

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

N
o
Y
g ZZD ﬁli ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION %2023 H ¥ 2022 B LLEE 2023 vs 2022 % Change
m
Y
e AT Crma) SR Gkmss, E—EEBTEER) BE(AM—S(LREE S EEATHER)
3 A .
) Total (Mwh) Intensity (MWh/HK$1m sales) Intensity (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
15 20,000 8 5
. 7
2t 15000 = f.m§p\ "wg
: oo @ B . & 22 B 4.188 e ER 2.429
' o 3 o 7,031 -15.15%* . B N B -14.79%* > @ a N -3.11%*
a p X 2 o o wu
5,000 o B B 2 1 91
~N 1
0 0
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m;ﬁ iﬁﬁ! PAPER USE * 2023 to ¥ 2022 EHHEE 2023 vs 2022 % Change

FCE I ON ) B (A, S EEETHER)
Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
Ay
2 2019 | 0.00699 _e
5 *® 2020 | 0.00598
L = 7 -12.50%* 2021 | 0.00585 -11.46%*
oo

S
g ' 2022 | 0.00471

E 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ' 2023 o. 0041 7 '

EEREEMENE wrmmsanns) 2003 8 2022 LS
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE GENERATION (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material) Ak B

HET () SRE (Ru E-EBBTHER)
Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

500 2019 | 0.503 @

N 2020 | 0.452
900 0
600 :“3 g o 473 -26.32%* 2021 | 0.500 -25.98%*
Sy
200 —Nl 2022 | 0.381
0 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ' 2023 0.282 '

BRMEEREE PACKAGING MATERIAL CONSUMPTION *2023 1251 2022 FALLA 202312022 % Change

EREE (RH) BREER (RNE) RS (AHE) W=t (RW) T (A SRR @)
Price Tag (Tonne) Plastic Packaging Carton Box (Tonne) T iﬂ (T/ ) ‘?ﬁ}; \.A W Bt FX :
Bag (Tonne) Otal tlonne Inten3|ty (Tonne/Piece of
Finished Product)
-6.54%* -13.74%* -16.71%* -15.42%*
| ¥
a’i’; Flat
o o o o
1200 2019 | 0.00004
1000 =
2019 | 45 2019 | 254 2019 | 745 . - 2020 ‘ 0.00004
2020 | 34 2020 | 164 2020 | 475 S o ¥ 4704567
00 N .
2021 | 37 2021 1 179 20211 527.1595 joo o 2 & 2021 | 0.00004
2022 | 31.9024 2022 | 132.2873 20221 392.0411 200 8 | 2022 | 0.00004

22298161 | *2 114.1072 | ** 392.0441 | s e 2023 0.00004

ML HFER SHOPPING BAG CONSUMPTION 3355 e™”

5T (2 RIS (nw, B-ERETHER)

Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
300 2019 | 0.097
250 N
o 2020 | 0.065
];g N -40.44%* 2021 | 0.060 -39.13%*
50 R g s 2022 | 0.046

s A
0 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ' 2023 O‘ 028 .
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GIORDANO

Notes:

1.

GHG Emissions

. Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the
GHG emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed
with reference to:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
Kong (2010 Edition)” issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
and the Environmental Protection Department in Hong Kong;

the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light
and Power Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

the data published by the International Energy Agency.

. In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further
classified the GHG emissions of Giordano into 3 scopes (as below), which are defined in
accordance with the international reporting framework published by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

“Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by
the Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles
(excluding the vehicle fleets of our contractors);

“Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of
purchased electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity
consumed in some retail outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls
where electricity is not separately charged).

“Scope 3" covers other indirect emissions include other indirect emissions that
occurs outside the Reporting Market, including methane gas generation at landfill
due to disposal of paper waste and electricity for water treatment. The calculation
of methane gas generation at landfill due to disposal of paper waste is based on
Appendix Il “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” provided by HKEX. The
calculation of electricity for water treatment is based on the standard of the Water
Supplier Department and the Drainage Services Department of Hong Kong.

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous

waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is

not feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the
Reporting Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the
Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material.)

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags
purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.
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Paper Reduction

The Group continues to encourage a paperless working environment
which not only reduces environmental damage but also fits commercial
goals, as it can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent
years, the Group has implemented paperless internal human resources
processing such as employee timesheets, payrolls, leave applications,
surveys, assessment papers, inspection forms and many more. In addition,
the Finance department adopts a non-paper approval process for
approving the payment of non-trade invoices and the claim of petty cash.

Moreover, duplex printing and copying have become the norm within
the Group, greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Usage
data of office printing machines are regularly collected and assessed for
monitoring the efficiency of the paperless environment.

Secure Printing with Tap & Print

The Group has adopted a “Secure Printing with Tap & Print” printing
solution in the office, helping the Group become more cost-efficient
through smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to achieve
environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is
released only upon presentation of a staff card from that particular staff
who gives the printing instruction.

Corporate Communications

The Company strongly recommends shareholders access its corporate
communications, including financial reports, through the websites of the
HKEX and the Company, instead of receiving printed form. By introducing
electronic means of corporate communications to shareholders, the
quantity of printed materials has been considerably reduced. This
paperless practice thus helps to protect the environment, as well as save
costs for printing and administrative charges, etc.

Giordano’s City Centre Deira Store Awarded
4-Stars in Green Star Awards for Environmental
Efforts and Sustainability

In 2020, Giordano's City Centre Deira store has been awarded 4 Stars
in the Green Star Awards ceremony, which was held at the vibrant
'INDOORS’ pop-up space in City Centre Deira, Dubai. Green Star is
modelled on the United States ‘Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design’ standards (LEED), the points-based rating standard that concerns
the design, construction, operation, and maintenance of green buildings,
malls and neighbourhoods.

Gordang
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BERBEAS : #OHBREARTENRE > LRETHEARR
Environmental Aspect A3: Minimizing impact on the Environment and Natural Resources
for Sustainable Development
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GIORDANO

M

Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimize the negative impact on the environment during production
and operations. We:

e  take into account the environmental impact of our activities and
decisions;

° continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives
and strengthen target and responsibility assessments,
environmental protection supervision and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental protection as
one of its top priorities in the process of supply chain management.
We are concerned with the environmental risk factors in production,
such as emissions and waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our
suppliers, their measure of protecting the surrounding environment
is one of our key selection criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major components
of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is
degradable when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also
fully recyclable. For our premium activewear brand, Silvermark by
G-Motion, we began using fabrics treated with Teflon-EcoElite
finishing since 2017, which is a non-fluorinated fabric treatment
for durable water repellency with 60% of its raw materials being
renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is HK$1, to discourage the use of
plastic bags and to encourage customers to bring their own bags.

In addition, stores in the East China region are using paper shopping
bags instead of plastic shopping bags.
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Environmental Aspect A4: Responding to Climate Change
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In an effort to enhance transparency and consistency in communicating
climate-related information to our stakeholders, the Group is committed
to aligning our climate risk disclosures with the recommendations of the
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosure (TCFD). In 2023, the
Group initiated a process to improve our TCFD disclosures. This involved
engaging an external consultant to conduct a review in 2023, aimed at
identifying any gaps and areas for improvement in our current TCFD
disclosures.

Governance

Our Board and RM Committee oversee climate-related risks and
opportunities. They delegate the execution of climate-related operational
activities to designated staff members, ensuring that our response to
climate change is coordinated and effective.

Strategy

We recognize that climate change is a significant issue that has far-
reaching impacts. Changes in weather patterns, such as precipitation
and extreme variability, could alter customer preferences for our apparel
products, indirectly affecting our sales. Prolonged extreme weather
could also increase our operating and maintenance costs, including
transportation and insurance premiums. We are aware of these potential
impacts and are developing strategies to manage them.

Risk Management

We have a robust process in place to identify, assess, manage, and
monitor climate-related risks. This includes regular risk assessments to
evaluate the vulnerability of our business operations. We also review our
risk inventory to identify any areas of climate-related risk that may have
been overlooked.

Metrics & Targets

We are committed to reducing our environmental impact and have
implemented measures to mitigate climate-related risks. These include
maintaining comprehensive insurance coverage for assets that are prone
to damage by extreme weather conditions, which helps to minimize
potential maintenance and repair costs. In the event of extreme climate
events, we have special work arrangements in place to protect the health
and safety of our workforce.

We are aware of the ongoing enhancement of emissions-reporting
obligations and regulations of existing products and services, which may
increase our overall operating costs. We are proactively planning for
these changes and are committed to transparency in our climate-related
disclosures.
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B At Mainland China

2,017 1,515 1,427 1,176 1,210

EB K EPF Hong Kong & Macau

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

As an international apparel retailer, Giordano's retail network spans
five continents operating through approximately 1,822 points of sales
as of December 31, 2023, which enables us to deliver our "World
Without Strangers’ credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our
headcount reached 2,524 talents as of December 31, 2023, with a
0.84% increase decrease from 2022:

Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As
such, Giordano is committed to treating its staff with fairness and
respect. We believe in cooperation, teamwork and trust as the
foundation of Giordano. We hire based on ability and merit, reward
and promote based on performance.

Graph 2
EHRTHIHE T S% TALENT DISTRIBUTION BY THE REPORTING MARKETS

2019 2020 2021
923 537 527

2022 2023
417 432

GIORDANO

&2 Taiwan

2019 2020 2021

1,114 893 802

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
218 177 149 152 145
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EIEER 2%
Employment Type Distribution

C 28 Full-time )

2019 | 3,011 (70.50%)
2020 | 2,626 (84.11%)
2021 | 2,295 (79.00%)
2022 | 2,052 (81.98%)

2023 | 1,94 3176.98%)

Cﬁﬁ | &# Part-time / Contract)

2019 | 1,261 (29.50%)
2020 | 496 (15.89%)
2021 | 610 (21.00%)
2022 | 451 (17.10%)

2023 | 581 (23.02%)

C F ¥ By Age )

2023
/A 30 5% ‘ o
< 30 years old 93.46%
30-50 5% ‘ 25.39%

30-50 years old

AR 50 5%

o,
> 50 years old ‘ 23.27%

Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

A] We believe in diversity and endeavour to safeguard a diverse working
environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as

demonstrated below:

FiRDH
Age Distribution

2019 | 1,878 (44.0%) g
2020 | 1,017 (32.6%) 0¥l
2021 | 829 (28.54%) 2023

2022 | 615 2457%) DO 2(22.27%)

2019 | 2,176 (50.9%) 30-50 7
30-50 years old
2020 | 1,912 (61.2%)
2021 | 1,882 (64.78%) 2023
2022 | 1,677 (67.00%) 1 o 7 2 6(68.38%)

2019 | 218 (5.1%) AR 50 5%
> 50 years old
2020 | 193 (6.2%)
2021 | 194 (6.68%) 2023
2022 | 211 (8.43%) 236(9,35%)

BERALLE

Turnover rate

C 1 5 By Gender )

2023
@) 0
TR
W
B4 Male 2214 Female
37.35% 42.14%

BLETht
Staff Composition by Gender

s g
[L_IJ] /\
11
2 Male M Female
20.5% | 2019 | 78.0%
19.6% | 2020 | 80.4%
19.14% | 2021 | 80.86%
19.70% | 2022 | 80.30%

21.32%| 2023 178.68%

C i & By Region )
2023
BB ‘ o
Hong Kong 45.70%
/A:@
== ‘ 70.37%
Taiwan
H ‘ o
China 16.76%

AR ‘76.77%
Singapore
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GIORDANO

@)

A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly
and equally, with their rights and interests being protected. These
include:

(i) Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political faction or marital status. All
staff are required to acknowledge receipt of the staff handbook.

(i) Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are
important values, and are crucial to our long-term development
and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established
to convey our expected standards of conduct and practices to
all staff, who are required to adhere to the highest standards of
business and professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of
our business partners and customers and grow our business.

(iii)  Whistle-Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff can speak up, we have a longstanding
whistleblowing policy in place that allows them to raise
concerns and for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet
protective setting. The Company regularly updates the whistle-
blowing policy.

The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-calibre leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of
staff in the Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows
them to have a better work-life balance and work performance,
but also helps retain and recruit talent as well as enhance
Giordano's competitiveness.
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(iii)

Family-Friendly Employment Practices

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and
at home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high-
quality staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we
strive to create a working environment which that caters
for the needs of our staff and their families, with the
introduction of flexitime work arrangements for office staff
in Hong Kong and Taiwan from 2016. Concurrently, for
our shop operations, we also adjust the front-line staff’s
working hours to attract certain targeted manpower, e.g.
homemakers and retirees.

Working from home

During the Covid-19 pandemic and for the sake of the
health of our colleagues, the Company has encouraged
staff to arrange more work from home, to reduce the need
for going out and, thereby, reduce the risk of infection.
The work from home arrangement remained open for our
colleagues during 2023.

Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk
in the workplace, we have specially designated private
space in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for
breast milk extraction.

Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care
of the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices
and on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from November 13, 2018, we also
took an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave
for our male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the
local legislation.

Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff's work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfil individual employees’ personal
and professional goals, effective from October 2018.
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Giordano Taiwan was awarded the Blessed
Enterprise Gold Award conferred by a job portal,

1111 Manpower Bank

In 2022, Giordano Taiwan won the Blessed Enterprise Gold Award issued
by 1111 Manpower Bank with the support of online voters for its positive
corporate culture and mutually supportive working atmosphere. This
award aims to recognize those candidates who have made breakthroughs
in talent strategy management and individuals who have achieved
outstanding achievements. Factors considered in the review include the

support and care for employees, and leadership and management.

EilEAmRE
1111ANERG "2022=WRE,
RIE (—REiEEE) 2B

EL111A ASRTTRURAY " 2022 N, MEES 8
A TERES, B TARRM,  WSIALT00REMEN -
ﬁﬁla‘ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂilﬂ&m!m)km’ﬁ FLE - WAIALIR20%
HEERES-23

il!,x?ﬁ‘]ﬂlﬁ ?ﬁw PHETE - OGS EHAEE
RESHFECHEMBMES - §EFRERMRESNRBEN
SEHIRYE SR MRS |

FET S )

E ]

(iv)  Acknowledging Our Staff

(a) Staff Commendation Award Scheme

BTEREFESZBINME

E N

HMIEAEEABE2016

FOREIER [ B TR E

By at &l

CABBRRBE

THELEEBRRRHHE
EERMET - BFHAE
EREMETERAMGER

BWHET -

RERRETS®

EREmFREERRES

LAREZED ©

SEGRrS EMRER
WEIREE R
HHBEEA[ESE Frankie R F MR
BORBREREANEE -

-

IS EER R

Commended cases:

Not only do we circulate commendations from our
customers who acknowledged our staff's good
performance, but our Hong Kong Headquarters
has also additionally implemented a “Staff
Commendation Award Scheme” since September
2016 to encourage and award staff with outstanding
performance and/or significant contributions.
Outstanding staff will be nominated every quarter and
the winners will be awarded a Staff Commendation
Certificate and a cash coupon as a token of our
appreciation.

SEG AFHFBHRER 0
W% B R Bl
AR AR

BEAROMROES
8= 3
.
lfyi‘bn
Z A BN Giordano IRIRERE TDel I\E
TEMYBIER L

DelaZe s TREERORE
RAWERE, MARKNRZEZEMA0
FHTIFARBELY
SEX EEEE
 ZHEERA LR e




(b)

(c)

B5E T HE

ENREERTREBWESE
THRERBEHEMTT MBI
FAXBTHERRLENET -
AREFFMMAASREHN TEXR
B SERRETERRBER -

HEACovid-19RRITRRES K T
REE - BEHEERFRA
FRIFT O AR B MO EA S
Bl fEmERMERKHRE
SHNE T HEDEBIERE
TEEE - BT MH BB
1 -

b

(o

g
{| l
i ‘;UH‘“

I

RER 2

BT RGERBAMEIRBED
BHEENETL - RZMEFHE
BERMRERETERRRE M
hE TER=1TFZE8T -

(b)

(c)

Employee Recognition Ceremonies

The Employee Recognition Ceremonies were introduced
to recognize employees that have gone above and beyond
the call of duty at work during these challenging times.
The event allows the Group's executive management
to publicly acknowledge the staff that has exceeded
expectations, as well as to foster a greater sense of
belonging among Giordano employees.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has indeed forced us to
better manage our expenses, it has also allowed us to
take a more innovative approach towards assessing and
allocating our human resources, allowing us to identify
our best performers and incentivize them accordingly
with enhanced responsibilities, promotions and better
remuneration.

Long Service Award

In recognition of the loyalty and commitment of our
longserving staff, we present Long Service Awards annually
to staff who have served the Company for 5 years, 10 years
and 30 years, respectively.

GIORDANO
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(v) BIEF (v)  Staff Activities

A N5R B T34 X A 55 B Rk MR A To reinforce the staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with
B EESEN TEMEEES - a healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
BRPGEHLHET —RIEILES - activities every year. This year, we organized certain group
SE - RMEBTETED  EFETL activities for staff to participate in.

290 -

ig BT &% China Market

ERME-RFAIXEIRTH
South China Region — The Year of the Rabbit kick-off gift-giving campaign

ENtE-EE
West China Region - Team Building

GIORDANO
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Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

M

BRRREARBRBLE2ERNEENS -
HETEZME D REMZ 2 ERE—IAE
ZMEHNER « BT ELIEANERER
RO - BAPIFE2023F B NRBE - EER
B - AR LR 2L MR T A8 A0 B
RRERB - BE—F  ERFORBRREM
R RABNERENT

ROBFER - EHEISTREBHEHR
T :

(M

OHS is a crucial component of Giordano'’s overall safety framework,
and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is an important
and constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking
policy at the workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong
leadership, management system and training programs in 2023,
so as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance our overall
OHS performance. As of last year, Giordano is not aware of any
noncompliant cases relating to OHS.

Information related to work-related fatalities and injuries cases
during 2023 are as follows:

BEISTRZ{ Work-related fatalities and injuries
ERERT ST ERAAZ

Number of work-related fatalities occurred

BERETERH

Number of work-related injuries occurred

ATBERANTIEAH

0 0 0
25 24 7
1,362 713 114

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries

AiER—EREZHITERE - 1

() REEeEd - REEIHREE
B

(i) EHERTESHNLZE  HHED
KR FERENEEEHREEE
B URHAFNSAMZEWIE
R URRSERRBERERE
0
(i) EMRE - BEMEHRTIESR
ERERITE » R TEGRONEE
[\ o
(a) REAIABHLRE [BELZE LR
FENBERIER
(b) MREMEHE
o TERBREMANETMERHEIMU
REBR BHARZRBE

RE -

)

To ensure a safe working environment, we:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with a safe working
environment; and

carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and
shops to reduce workplace hazards.

(a) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on the Company’s Intranet

(b) Office Inspection Report

e Conduct regular office working environment
inspection to promote cleanliness, fire safety and
work safety.

GIORDANO
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(ivy BEILmEERAE (iv) Staff Satisfaction Surveys
BF  ENPRESETEIREER Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to
& UEISERNEE - ERHETA collect useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.
= /r/rE:\i: 5 % e
BRI (e (v)  We have implemented the following measures for maintaining

v) HEPBETATHEEESBEAZOEL

the office hygiene:

o IEMAMBEZAAZAMN - (FiE e Providing alcohol sprays and wipes, hand sanitiser and face
HERROZESE - masks, etc.

e RAIMBARERE—ZH/ N e The Company distributes a small bottle of disinfectant
HER REREELEABCH to each colleague and reminds them to disinfect their
TIEMRSEREITHES - workbench or surrounding areas frequently.

o UWARNGFATREREHENSENR e The Company also provides protective and sanitization
EIHESAAE  RERERED equipment, such as masks for frontline store colleagues to
5 o protect the health of colleagues and customers.

o IEEE e Strengthened disinfection and sanitization:
NAEMEXRFRE - FXKEBF The Company has strengthened the cleaning of toilets and
2o AN EREBES M - the pantry, and regularly sprays and disinfects carpets.

V.0 T .
SOVEURERATON | wes | maaman 1.:%..

42 73R PR 2 8)

Giordano Limited

FoiP A T R SRR -
BB R TR S TR RA M HE
BRI TR0 CAEEE - LTSS T :

1. (EREERNR 2. BEREEE) 3. BB 1E EE g sake E
* = & lﬁ I fuxy
™ Charter statement e 8 M

ADEBHERFEN Open Area HBRTHEHRKRE -
MESAEMEELETOE & RE y
ey

We value having a joyful and healthy workforce.
We believe that having a joyful and healthy workforce is the
cornerstone for the Jong term success of the organisation.
We pledge to promote physical and mental well-being among ourselves
with emphasis on the following areas:
2. Physical activity 3. Mental wellbeing

LIRS SRR A A B BAR R - g
[ElB » L&D 7E G-Learning TRi2 7 ik B R

1. Healthy eating HHMBIEA - UFRE -

7-2-2022
IR BE A @G-LEARNING -

TR FORNAR BUEN . GENE . EECws O

MAEY - MBEADRES - Wi

ATIREE (TEE)

|

FHAEMmEE  130-139mmHg  80-89 mmHg

a3 WRARIRE (L)

(BETEMY

HeAlTw

(HEEm?

(@ A& Training)

##4# QR Code

TOR g
: ALL g

N 5

£ AR M

=140 mmHg =90 mmHg

528 F e HIEEK

EFEREN D ERES DS RSE SFRER 120/80mmHg

fn‘D(’»-“-FEh‘L!‘&.@!!EH_:‘i‘-‘v“ﬂ » B L&D ilmi-! .
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Social Aspect B3: Talent Development and Retention Strategy

M

EFHREE B E T2E —m T &R - R
RRBEEE 2T HENEEREAZ
RS ERINEBBHRESE - Bt - AT
EZERBTHEBENELIRE T BN EET
FIFER - WAEEE - REIFMELEAETE
REIIR - LHEBETHBENBEARES
2 WIRE AR RIERERN TEEEK o

BL A 3E(RIASE « ARMBBO) K - EH
WHR2016F R T AP EE ETHBERR
B AEBIAAESRFESIEETHRE - &1
TEHEITH -
ERPEEEREE AL FHEERESE
% ORRERENFNEERINFEE S -

i) BLZEFARE EANEATEES
E(TMTDEHE - BRIEEZEE AL -
MELSAME °

(i) 7E20144%F - HMEBBEHLMEMTET
g WRBEBSHRMKEARERS -
NHERZEEFEH —EZE2HEFIIL
B O SEELEEERZEIESDE
EEAR MBENEEEEREKE
([FTs)) r BN EBRIERSRKE
EEMKFENER R ARSI AL
LA 2 2 5] 5 30 P 0B AE 1Y B B B
e EHANEXENRKNERE EE
—LEENAG BIEERAZENE
BARGEEIE  BALDEEEI -

(i) R2017%F  HAEHEEEBEXDH
RREREBEREPEAM - BEM
ARNERBEEZNTEAT °

ERAT EREAS BEABZRAIRLE
FHERRMEIAR 2 — o WA THREINEBES
BFT BEEREMERENEESBEEBSH
RAEHAS - BRHFIIMWF -

BEALERRABEBLDIEIBRAL - FY
FRONBEBEMER : R(i)EBRERHE
RARRERRE - M MARMMESFT
& RE-FNERRNE FEARE2HEE
SNEE AT IR HIER -

(M

Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and
fairness, as well as opportunities for continuous professional and
personal development, are equally important drivers for high
achievers. As such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff
training and development programs in sales and service, but also in
management, planning and leadership programs, to address staff's
professional and personal development needs and to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years. This remains ongoing.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talent with
an international perspective, insight into international practices and
strong competitiveness.

(i)  Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in the
Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received
a holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that
upon graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly
into mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as
Fast- Trackers (the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in
our admission requirements in terms of academic results and
a restructuring of the syllabus to include real business tasks in
various departments and functions within Giordano. Successful
graduates have now taken on a number of important roles,
including product development and management as well as
brand management. Some of them have even been stationed in
overseas regions.

(iii) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong-style FT program to
our Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for
our future growth.

Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI") is one of
our key strategic programmes in the coming years. Apart from hiring
FTs externally, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing
talents within the Group's business across all regions.

Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of between
1 to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and
(ii) potential to become a future member of senior management,
bespoke and role-specific 1-year development program involving
overseas events and short-term postings have been devised and
executed.

GIORDANO

ko L4043y OS3 €202

fr ok mf %A 0 B -

ESG
31



14043y ©53 €202

o

i

b OfF 5% 5K mf %4 18) B

ESG
32

5) EEBGE

(i)  7E2021%F @ DA RE
REABTEDSHFHEEENE -

ERFNEEFEREALEMEE
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GIORDANO

5)

Internship Programme

(i) In 2021, Giordano Saudi Arabia recently rolled-out its new
internship programme, in conjunction with the Jeddah Chapter
of the Entrepreneur Organization.

The innovative internship programme has been tailor-made for
the Saudi market, offering participants a full range of site visits
and tours, followed by work experience in both Giordano’s
retail stores and in their preferred functional departments
at the Company’s regional headquarters, taught sessions in
the realms of sales and marketing and visual merchandising,
and culminating with a final assessment and the issuance of a
completion certificate.

The aim is to maximize the interaction between the Company
and the participants, striking a balance between conveying our
core values while allowing the interns to make decisions about
their participation early on, to identify potential talent for long
term development.

(i)  On March 2022, Giordano's South China Command Centre
("Giordano South China”) has established a 3-year school
enterprise partnership programme with the Guangzhou Liwan
District Foreign Language Vocational High School (“Liwan High
School”).

Under the mutually-beneficial programme, students from
Liwan High School will be able to gain first-hand knowledge
of Giordano South China’s business management experience
as well benefit from mentorship arrangements, while Giordano
South China will be able to identify and pursue high-flyers as
future recruits.

Over 170 students participated in the presentations and 20
successful applicants to the programme will have a 18-week
elective course provided by Giordano implemented into the
school semester, in areas such as basic business management,
bookkeeping, visual merchandising and customer service,
followed by a 6-month internship programme at Giordano's
business operation units will be offered.

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain
its competitive edge. We believe that continuous updating of
professional skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the
Company to grow with the times. We, therefore, allocate ample
resources to staff training and development with the aim of
sustaining a competent, professional and ethical staff force that will
contribute to the success of the Company. In 2023, we have provided
in-house training to our frontline staff and non-frontline staff of the
Reporting Markets for over 7,860 hours and 1,795 hours, respectively.
The total number of training hours delivered this year is over 9,654
hours.
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Q) TOTAL IN-HOUSE TRAINING HOURS RECEIVED BY STAFF

Giordano has participated in the Manpower Developer Award Scheme

organized by Employees Retraining Board since 2012.

o
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ERRERAT
Giordano Limited

#% Super MD m®
1 raceiving tha hanour of Super MD
202

ph 4

*2022 Lo ¥4 2021 BHLLEE 2022 vs 2021 % Change

o
I
AR
Frontline Staff

2019 20,137
2020 15,534
2021 13,560
2022 17,598

-50.35%*
2023 8,738 /)i Hours

Bt -
1 H2023F  RATERIBSHFIMSEIRINGATAS
tt - 58I &75.07%5%34.67% °

2. H2023% - RMEREIAWZINBERLZEREBDLL - HHIA
37.73%}264.35% °

3. 20234 - EUERIES - BRBUERLMEESTRZIINFY
B8 B 52.00/)NEF [ 4,847\ o

4. H2023F - RIEBERIES - GRAEKLIEASRE TRAZ
B SF RS B0 Bl 45,83/ N J2 1.91/\ B ©

(7) RARE  BERDEE

BASHHTANITERE  TEHAR
18 i (i 1) B T 88 % 4 3B 55 3 I A2 gk o
BRE - BRIEFAETTERRIN
TSRO P BB (E - DB -

FNBET RIESEaEER
Non-Erontline Staff Total in-house Training Hours
Received
2,999 23,136
4,288 19,822
1,609 15,169
2,224 19,882
-12.19%* -46.23%*

1,953 /)\& Hours ' 10,690 /\i: Hours '

Notes:

The percentage of employees trained by employment in 2023 is 75.07% and 34.67% for frontline
staff and non-frontline staff, respectively.

The percentage of employees trained by gender in 2023 is 37.73%and 64.35%for men and women,
respectively.

The average training hours completed per employee by gender category in 2023 are 2.00 hours
and 4.84 hours, for men and women, respectively.

The average training hours completed per employee by employee category in 2023 is 5.83 hours
and 1.91 hours for frontline staff and non-frontline staff respectively.

(7) People-Oriented Staff Development

Based on our staff's different needs, we regularly organize
internal training and on-job training for staff in different roles
— this not only improves our staff's work performance, but also
helps equip them with new skills to face new challenges.
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frg&% (a) BIABEBEE Induction Talk for New Staff

ig FRETH#H China Markets

RERHPORIARKERS

RERTHOMETABIEIHEOIA &
FE2023F AR B T166 37 A = A R %
ARIE IR ASAIIR B A & T A RIR
SRR REATERE - AFIEN - A8
B eEXL - ANBERREYEMFER -

Orientation for staff in Dongguan Design centre

A total of 61 new employees were given induction training at the
Dongguan Design Center, including 16 new colleagues who will join
the company in 2023 and 45 existing colleagues who are interested
in the course. The training method is on-site teaching, and the
course content includes: company profile, organizational structure,
corporate culture, human resources and attendance-related matters.

(b) BEEREPIR Recruitment channel development

BEENREREBASTFRFEASLHREASS
B BRATEEBI0AA BT 1MMTTADRITH
B8 NEABITRBEERSHBERE  EmMKksa
AU EEES  BIRHASARE  #BZT
NBREEE o WEEER -

GIORDANO

In response to talent needs, Giordano Taiwan continues to develop
recruitment channels. In addition to continuously recruiting through
104 Manpower Bank and 1111 Manpower Bank, Giordano Taiwan also
cooperates with the government’s gradual unblocking policy of the
epidemic, and then signs up for large-scale job fairs, actively explores
talent recruitment channels, increases multiple recruitment channels, and
improve talent recruitment flexible use.



(c) &I Refresher Training

BRTEREE THERKEEIN  EEHIBEET In addition to strengthening the basic skills, we equip staff with the latest
EESHNEMMAZ  UEBRTEERESR information and knowledge, so that they could carry out their duties to the
SKF o highest standards.

i@ 8i#8%H % Taiwan Market

FW23-E o N3 AR 12 - 12 A AL 2 oo FW23-Product Knowledge course- provide basic product
knowledge

ig) ™ Singapore Market

- JEE2MesNEREEHITE B A R Bk —  The external training programs that the shop staff attended are
B EXPER: aRBEAZ2NNE Service Challenges, Customer Management and for senior in
BHEREENER - charge is productivity management.

- TEAFRAE—H—OH - - Assessments are done one to one oral exams.

GIORDANO
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- YEEETEINEESE  WEERNE - Upselling Training for shop staff and practice and application in

BRER - TEZLOERMHELER the shop. In line with the ongoing product knowledge training
TR BN E A EIORE - FM for core items and new launch, we also do upselling training
WP 8 THEITENMEEEI - IS to all staff and encourage them to share in the chatgroup to
B MENRBEEESZ » BAREIE create more energy and encouragement to everyone. There
PEZHEEMNEE - B - BfithE A are sometimes incentive programs to get meal vouchers for top
HEBRITN B TIREEFEEE | sellers too!

- FEaAEAmEHE - Coaching program for new in charge.
BMSEEEHHTEENETHEE We continue to do coaching training to new in charge and do
- I B AR A At P E 5 1B N A B A0 weekly check on their progress in the operation knowledge and
GBS EE N MBS T HL how to coach their team for productivity and sales.
HERE o
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i&“ﬁ RE™HH China Market

- RErEHE

EHME

EmAMBEIN—EPHFImRASTHREE
%ITTE%DDE’]?F%Eﬁ WEBFERNBE
mERERT  EREC2EEEEE
100%%?5%%%1%% BRI ERHE
BERGEE

- ZEHEFRIP-/THIAATR/NEL
HEMER  EENFIRRBEE - =
BInEMARMESTATIEEANR
fy o LEH&@%E%JEE%D?E)IE\IvE
NRZOAA BHE - PRI IR E IR
HEREE - B BEEE N E R
FERSREIZRAI  fRIRREEMHANS
EARBRAEERAES -

N} %4%

- BREBRORBR—ESERERY  EE5E
A#BaEEE B NOHIRTS - FERE SRS
BR0RY - BETRF |

- FERYIPKE—MEEEEFRYITER =
FHEHVMIKTE - 18238 E ERY = o
LAsR AtE - IRFAFITHATV ©

- XEEMEIIMTEE —2023F
CEOf52 8T Fm%ﬂfiﬁﬂﬂkﬂﬂ
MRERERLS  AEERBRES
# %F)\@&f’W/%?aﬁﬁPm [SF'EJ%

BEANBTEEETEHET THTEE
Eﬁi/\m o

REME
- RSESAN - ERLERENKRRE

R ETH L Dongguan Design Centre
—  Design software training
- Design Center Sharing Session

—  Business trip/exhibition sharing session

Training on how to fill the PDR, special additional deductions in
private pension, etc.

West China region

- 23SS Product Knowledge Training — To help store colleagues
understand the characteristics of spring and summer main
products and introduce product matching skills through videos,
allowing colleagues to learn from each other and master
100% product knowledge, ultimately passing on the product
advantages to customers.

- Summer Study Campaign — To capitalize on the off-season and
prepare for autumn and winter sales, it is beneficial to utilize on-
site practice, case sharing, and role-playing within the store. This
approach enables core talents of the store, such as the store
manager and shift employees, to efficiently and proficiently
master management and sales skills. These skills include
the implementation and application of the 5R management
principles in the store, handling emergencies, and strategizing
for large-scale holiday.

—  Service starts from the heart — Continue to promote service, so
that everyone can serve from the heart. Ensure Giordano high
service quality and 0 customer complaints!

—  Display PK match — Continue to promote the tangible display
project, improve the level of terminal VM, and enhance the
display awareness of colleagues. Begin with the end in mind and
improve the ATV of the store.

—  Business management workshops supplement learning - In
2023, CEO Peter supplemented the "Enterprise Management
Workshop” with the initial intention of fostering unity and
taking steady steps towards the visionary goals, passing on the
torch. The department heads of the Wuhan Command Center
conducted additional learning and sharing sessions for the
Enterprise Management Workshop.

Guangdong

- Live product knowledge, Store Operations and In-store cashier
courses

GIORDANO

S L¥Od3y OS3 €202

-
-1

D DfF 255 S m 3 08 P

ESG



- ko L4043y OS3 €202

T D 5 5K M A 18 P

ESG

i@ F#E™HE Hong Kong Market
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Provide the following training to all frontline staff, including:

Product knowledge — provide basic textile and new products
knowledge

Workplace health & Safety Training — provide workplace safety
knowledge and how to handle emergency cases

Health talk — encourage staff wellness
ICAC talk — raise of awareness of staff's professional ethnic

Legal aspect talk — enhance staff awareness of using new
technology

Fashion knowledge sharing — strenghthen top sales’s sales
technique and knowledge

MPF sharing session - introduce and update the fund
performance

Service Sharing session — to share and upgrade the sales
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e-Learning course “Awareness Training on
Phishing - Giordano”

In order to improve the cybersecurity awareness of all our staff, we have
engaged a service provider to launch an e-Learning course “Awareness
Training on Phishing — Giordano” for our staff in the second half of the
year. Phishing is one of the most popular cybersecurity attacks. According
to the data provided by the International Security Institution, corporate
intrusion is often initiated by phishing emails. Strengthening our defence
against phishing attacks can greatly reduce the likelihood of security
incidents. It is noticed that our staff are more vigilant about the potential
phishing email after the e-Learning period. The percentage of clicks on
phishing emails has significantly dropped from 20% (1st round phishing
simulation) to 1% (2nd round phishing simulation), which is far below the
average of the retail industry.

In addition, the IT department has repeatedly reminded colleagues
to guard against hackers that may target the Company’s computers.
Colleagues should not open links and files in emails at will. If the Company
suffers losses due to the negligence of a computer user, the colleagues
may well be held liable.

m G-Learning — Online training resources on Cyber Security Awareness Training

G-Learning - #§ LiZiIEiF - AB R MG

o

Giordano Mg 224 & iR BV

* From SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
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(i) Internal Training

Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance their
management and interpersonal skills.
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Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano's core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are all part of our success story. Led by our Chairman
and Chief Executive, Dr Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, together with the
contribution of staff members from various departments, we have
summarized this information into four guide books for staff’s handy
reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit knowledge built on
experiences, aptitudes and know-how into explicit knowledge, our
staff could benefit in the long term.

(i) EFRER BB F A G-Learning
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(iii)

G-Learning Platform

The Company provides online platform to allow colleagues to
continue learning without restriction no matter where they are, and
provides learning opportunities for colleagues in different forms.
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(v)

(vi)

Self-Learning Scheme

Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in Hong
Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning atmosphere
to promote staff’s individual initiative and responsibility for
development by self-learning.
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Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff's expectations
and needs for training, which aids in designing the useful and
practical training programs for them in the following year.

Training Subsidies
(a) Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and skills
for personal growth, which benefits their work performance and
future career development, Hong Kong Headquarters has set
up a “Study Allowance Scheme” to subsidize our staff in taking
external work-related training courses.

(b)

Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The “"Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has been

implemented since September 2016, which is designed to
develop existing and potential management talent at Hong
Kong Headquarters through financial support to successful

applicants who wish to pursue higher education, such
as studying undergraduate, or postgraduate degrees or
attainment of professional qualifications or accreditation.
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Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights
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GIORDANO

Safeguarding the rights of employees and creating an environment of
respect, integrity and fairness for employees is of paramount importance
to the Group. Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced
or compulsory labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’
production facilities.

The Internal Audit, Quality Assurance and Human Resources departments
implement a comprehensive checking systems during the recruitment
process to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations
regarding employment and labour standards. If child or forced labour
is found in any place of production, the Group will warn the particular
supplier. If repeated violations occur, the Group will terminate all business
with the supplier concerned.

In 2023, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant
risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or
compulsory labour.
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Social Aspect B5: Efficient Supply Chain Management

ERRNEEREEERAMEBRESE A KA At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise

B EETENEENMEERAE  momipAM of satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among the
fE - BlE . B RS RIBEH  cBEEREEAR various functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,
P A FRREF - B PIBLRE R IR A - (et & warehousing and distribution through better planning and information
KAk ° sharing. With more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce

costs and maximize efficiency.

HE2023F12A318 - ERREE145RHfE As of December 31, 2023, Giordano has a total of 145 suppliers, located in
7 AT RE different parts of the world:

2019 | 93 (81.6%) 2 (1.60%)
2020 | 105 (83.3%)

gi

CHINA 2021 | 108 (87.1%)

(including Hong Kong)
2022 | 131 (90.34%)

2019 11 (9.7%)

RE D 2020 9 (7.1%) BB S
SOUTHEAST 2021 12 (9.7%) Suppliers by Suppliers 0
ASIA o by Geographical Region S
2022 9 (6.21%) o
o)
2019 3 (2.6%) 2023 m
. O
2020 7 (5.6%) 113 0.40%) ®
2021 0O IR
2022 2 (1.3%)
B HE(aEES) B S
2019 7 (6.1%) CHINA (including Hong Kong) EUROPE .
Hih 2 o K
%?Tﬁﬁm AR () s W R -
O e =)
2021 4 (3.2% SOUTHEAST ASIA REST of the WORLD
WORLD .2%) ,
2022 3 (2.07%) L
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GIORDANO

We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection
and supervision, strategic suppl ier development and materials
procurement. Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable
development of our supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate
social responsibility with our partners to provide the public with high
quality products and services. As such, supply chain management is always
one of the key links in Giordano's quality control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum
age;

does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;

provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers;
and

compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up on corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above “Core
Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have improving their standards on
labour, health and safety, and environmental demonstrated a commitment
to practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers are required to
complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

(a)

Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as
well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our
Quality Assurance Team. Only those who pass our audits and
assessments will be included in the “Qualified Supplier List” for
bulk purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry
out long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/reviews
on all suppliers. Should there be any significant change in a
supplier’s eligibility or any serious quality issue, we may suspend
its deliveries immediately and, if necessary, cancel its status as
our qualified supplier. Moreover, our unannounced inspections
from time-to-time will ensure our suppliers comply with our
various standards.
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(b) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a "Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

° “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
e  "Workplace Standards”;

e  "Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

e "Accepting and Offering Policy”.

Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation Giordano
will carefully examine every detail of the production process and
raise any issues that may be discovered, to work with its suppliers to
identify possible areas for further improvement. By optimizing the
process, upgrading the technology and improving the workmanship,
our suppliers not only greatly improve their production efficiency and
product quality, but also help upgrade their capabilities in response
to more challenging markets and enhance their competitiveness. This
close-knit working relationship between both sides allows the parties
to maintain more stable and mutually beneficial cooperation.

Inventory Control

(@) Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. The Inventory
turnover on cost for the year ended December 31, 2023,
decreased by 27 days to 108 days. Most of the merchandise
is evergreen and in-season styles. Our inventory level remains
healthy.

(b) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance-sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.
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GIORDANO

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward
mission, 'To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT’, fully illustrates
our total commitment to superior service and outstanding quality.

M

“Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from the
“Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched in
1989, at which time every staff wore a yellow badge bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognized by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years.

"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through
“thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs” and "providing
tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice
and flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choose
the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we
also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.
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Awards and Recognition

Giordano Named Company with Most Admired Customer
Service by IMAGES RetailME

Giordano was conferred the Most Admired Customer Service
award at the prestigious IMAGES RetailME Awards KSA 2023,
held in conjunction with the Saudi Retail Forum.

The event, which took place in Riyadh in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, drew over 400 industry leaders, including retail and
shopping mall owners, operators, and professionals from across
the region.

The award lays testament to Giordano’s unwavering dedication
to providing quality clothing and exceptional customer service
experience in the region. In the fiercely competitive retail
landscape in the Middle East and North Africa, the brand'’s
commitment to customer satisfaction has established a
noteworthy standard among industry peers.

Giordano GCC won the RLI Global Retailer of the Year Award
bestowed by Retail & Leisure International (RLI).

The RLI Global Retailer of the year awards solidified Giordano's
position as a world-class operator across all facets of its
business, delivering exceptional retail experiences, growth, and
innovative change to reflect evolving industry trends.

This award is an affirmation of our unrelenting drive to create
a unique and innovative shopping experience and offer
exceptional product quality to our customers and the wider
community.

Giordano GCC won the Best Middle East and North Africa
(MENA) Retail Brand Gold Award, awarded by the Middle East
Council of Shopping Centres & Retailers (MECS+R).

The 2022 MENA awards identify and honour the shopping
centres, retailers and individuals that have demonstrated an
unparalleled ability to succeed, continually set standards of
excellence, and implement innovation and creativity throughout
the industry.

MECS+R is considered the voice of the retail industry for
retailers, mall owners and all retail professionals in the Middle
East, North Africa and beyond. This award is particularly
meaningful as it acknowledges the Group’s market expansion
efforts in Africa over the last few years, especially in the face of
adversity due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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GIORDANO

2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board to award the retailers for
their outstanding services, Giordano won a silver award in 2019.
Also, Giordano has continuously been recognized as a Quality
Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism Board for 15 years.

Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano’s eCommerce
website as one of the "Top 10 eCommerce websites” for
2018. This "Top 10 eCommerce Website Award”, which
recognized and awards websites that have raised the bar for
user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano’'s eCommerce website for
fostering and delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce
standards as well as enhancing user experience with an
outstanding shopping platform.

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite
Family Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family
Brand” under the "Children Clothing” category in 2018. This
Award was presented by Baby Kingdom, a popular online
parent-child platform in Hong Kong. Further to the assessment
by the members of Baby Kingdom and a panel of professional
judges, Giordano Junior stood out from the other 3 finalists,
being in recognition of its creative designs and high-quality
products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not recall any
products for safety and health reasons. It did, however, receive
195 product and service-related complaints in the reporting
markets. All complaints have been resolved by product
exchange or communication. The Group continues to provide
training to new employees, senior sales and supervisors,
enabling them to better understand customer needs and excel
in their performance to meet customer’s expectations.



ZE R

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

BRTEXRNBEREI  —EEFER
ZENBYRECIMREMERA
MER) o EItt - HAIE S (@) mETHM
BERHZ2REREMNRE © AR(D)
EERBBBR AR B REE
REMER -

AT AE & EEB5(2)() - F A IE
PR — Tﬁfﬁ'ufé?ﬂﬂ“’ﬁﬂ% ¥t 8
HERMENZE2NRERENR -

BHERHEEHETERERTZH
BRER  TEMEMRENRERD
BEEMEMTANBLEERRE - a0 [
WM ERBE]

AEBREMBEMRBEMRER M
HEBTAAREREK - AEEHEE
Mo REFRBHZ - MRRBE
mBEERZE  BEEBRLOME K
SEEREHRESEEEMIHE
FHETEE > TiE R BFERKEINA
BREMIZE °

ﬁzﬂaﬁﬂﬂm%ﬁiﬂluu—fﬁ']%_jj_,\%ﬁ
=RHABRPI I AE G - ARERTS
/EJ\. /T\KJETT/E °

[HAEE RESER]

EMABRERELEZME NG
EREMZLEEBEBZ — ° B0
Giordano JuniorfREFR R FT A R4 -
B eRRUNE<2EEERES
O URREBEBEINE - HMBLTE
FReBNE  BESBINERNER
EERNTHEER -

ERNPGETRER RE R EFEEE
KIBEECHER  TEUEMD
EE&§EEEE AREmER -
mEERE  KE - IGEEUNZEER
RSB EBREKLRLS N - LERE
—HEGM@EMEZR - 8% —
F-REEMAZTIERHAEMS
ZERKEZR - 585 B0 E A AR
RO EH -

Safety and Health

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

In addition to professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) Eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

As mentioned earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them on
the hazardous substance and inhumane production processes
banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and
the "live-plucking” goose down process.

The Group requires all suppliers and manufacturers of its
products and packaging to comply with the Group's policy.
The Group keeps its sourcing protocols reviewed regularly
and up-to-date in order to maintain the high quality and safety
standards of its products and customer satisfaction. The Group
cooperates only with suppliers which can provide products of
high quality and checks if flaws are found to ensure the product
quality.

We also engage independent and accredited third-party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with international safety standards.

"We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings
in our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband
to avoid pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not
use metal zippers, which are however commonly used by our
counterparts.

Giordano keeps up with the needs of customers of all ages
and backgrounds and puts product quality and safety first. Our
teams in product development, quality assurance, sourcing,
frontline sales and customer service go the extra mile to ensure
the quality and safety of each and every product we carry. Over
the past year, there are no incidents of product recall or non-
compliance due to safety or health issues.
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Protecting intellectual property rights
(i)  "IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by the
Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff,
we were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.

(i) The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (the “PDPQO") Seminar

The Legal Manager of our global Legal and Company
Secretarial Department based in Hong Kong held two rounds
of Data Privacy Regulation in Asia seminar in English and
Cantonese via online lecture in June 2021, striving to train our
staff in various markets can understand the basic concepts of
the Ordinance, practical industry information and protection of
personal and customer privacy. All office and shop colleagues
must participate and complete a quiz.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"),
we have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal
Information Collection Statement” and "Privacy Notice” (both in
English and Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/
or e-shops, where appropriate) for the public and customers’
reference. We invited an independent third-party global law firm to
audit our practices and confirmed our compliance with the GDPR.
Furthermore, staff are kept reminded to fully observe the policy from
time to time.
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We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano’s
strict standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of
interest, gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as
our policies on dealings and investment in Giordano's shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a "Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are
any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to
update their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. These types
of seminars are compulsory to be attended at least once by each
Hong Kong Headquarters staff.

A series of training, including orientation training and refresher
training, are conducted regularly within the Group to support
adherence to various policies and practices including those related
to anti-corruption.

Our whistleblowing channels empower our employees to play an
active role in protecting our business. They can seek guidance and
report misconduct anonymously to their department heads or the
Audit Committee. All reports are handled with care and fairness to
ensure that whistleblowers are protected against unfair dismissal,
victimisation and unwarranted disciplinary actions.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full
compliance with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage
Solicitation and Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)
(ii). In addition, we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff,
business associates and suppliers reminding them of our Group
Policy on Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year,
before the Mid-Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year). We
are not aware of any incidents of noncompliance in relation to anti-
corruption in 2023.
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Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement
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Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano's
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano
actively supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.

Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2014, we launched the “"Do Not Read This” campaign in
conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-profit
organization through selling limited-edition T-shirts in Giordano's
shops. With Giordano’s donations, Room to Read published
15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian languages for
underprivileged children.

(2)  This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident in
another Giordano’s ongoing project, Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s work in
providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China
with access to primary school education by funding the construction
of a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As of the end of
2021, 22 Giordano primary schools of Hope have been completed.

(3)  We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of
children’s welfare in Mainland China.

(4) Hong Kong Daily News One of the children is books, in Hindi, was
published by Room to Read with Giordano’s donation.

(5) In 2018, Giordano Malaysia launched the “We Love Orangutans” and
“Amazing Ocean” campaigns revolving around wildlife conservation.

(6) In 2019, Giordano Taiwan had several community activities, including
second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

(7)  In 2020, Giordano Thailand Volunteer Team participated in Prasingh
Temple Grounds Cleaning Day. A team of volunteers from Giordano
Thailand converged in the northern city of Chiangmai to take part
in a cleaning day for the local Prasingh temple. The 25-strong
team comprising the entire Chiangmai frontline staff and the area
supervisor of the Northern Region of Thailand cleaned lavatories and
the temple grounds of Prasingh Temple, keeping them safe for both
tourists and the resident monks.

(8) In 2021, a team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took part
in a community event hosted by TOUCH Community Services, a
notfor- profit charity organisation in Singapore (“Touch”). Giordano's
20 strong volunteer team acted as Smart Phone Trainers, helping
to coach the elderly to use smartphone based on lesson plans
designed to customize the training catered to seniors’ pace; and a
team of volunteers from Giordano Singapore took part in the Meals
on Wheels community event hosted by Touch. Bento boxes were
prepared in the THC Centre, following which the eight volunteers
from Giordano delivered Bento boxes to various homes of the
elderly.
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In 2021, Giordano Indonesia recently established the “Giordano
Berbagi Programme” with Aksi Cepat Tanggap (ACT) Indonesia, a
professional philanthropic institution, to raise funds for the flood
victims in the Bekasi and Karawang areas of Indonesia. Funds
were raised with the willing participation of Giordano Indonesia’s
customers during a live event on Instagram. The entire 100% of
donations were used to purchase groceries, masks, hand sanitisers,
clothing and other necessities for the flood victims.

In 2021, Giordano South China established its official partnership
with Star Studios and Mobile Library. The first event organized under
the partnership was a charitable t-shirt auction involving artwork
designed by the village children, including special educational needs
children, printed onto Giordano Junior’s t-shirts using the Company’s
PTO (print-to-order) service, as well as a donation of books from
Giordano to Star Mobile Library.

Meanwhile, the North China Command Centre of Giordano
("Giordano North China”) commenced partnership with Peking
University's outdoor sports team and track racing team (the
“Teams”). Under the partnership, Giordano North China will supply
the Company’s G-Motion apparel to the Teams as part of their official
team uniform and performance competition wear.

In 2022, in order to further promote Giordano’s spirit of ‘World
Without Strangers’, Shanghai’s Giordano team joined hands with
Shanghai Zhang Zhiyong Public Welfare Service Association to carry
out a love donation activity on February 21, 2022.

Through this activity of donating surplus clothes, people in need
in society can receive help and care, and families in impoverished
mountainous areas can get the warmth brought by “Giordano”. The
Company hoped the small acts of kindness would bring great power.

The donated clothes were sorted and packed by colleagues, and

then donated to impoverished families in Yunnan, Xinjiang, and
Xishuangbanna Prefecture.

In December 2022, Giordano Taiwan cooperated with KPMG.
Through the assistance of the Company’s e-commerce team, it
provided high-quality children’s clothing and outerwear products for
KMPG's internal subscription. A total of 606 school children received
a pair of sports shoes, a warm jacket or a backpack as Christmas
gifts under the sponsorship of all KPMG colleagues, so that the
schoolchildren can feel the warmth and love when Christmas comes.
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In 2022, Giordano Taiwan cooperated with Taitung Food Bank to
carry out both internal donations and external donations, including
donation of used clothing.

In 2022, Giordano Mauritius participated in the 2nd Charity Golf
Trophy organized by the Order of Malta (Mauritius) (the “Order”) first
aid and volunteer service held at the Mont Choisy Le Golf on April.
The Order of Malta is a mission dedicated to the care and service
for the vulnerable and the sick, the forgotten or excluded members
of society. The Order of Malta works in over 120 countries through
the provision of medical and emergency humanitarian relief, social
assistance and a broad spectrum of charitable works.

Giordano Mauritus specifically chose to sponsor the ambulance
station displayed at the Golf Tournament to raise both funds and
awareness for the Order, so that they have the resources to acquire
further medical equipment and first aid accessories.

WWS Charitable Fund

The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund (the "WWS
Charitable Fund” or the “Fund”) has gone online in June 2021, with
the Fund’'s background information, mission, donation details and
monthly statements are available on the Company’s corporate website
at http://corp.giordano.com.hk/en/wws_charitable_fund.aspx. The
WWS Charitable Fund allocates funds raised to make a difference for
people in need. Past projects have ranged from primary education
initiatives involving the printing and distribution of educational
materials and stationery, helping remote villages in rural China to
achieve sustainable development, supporting local ethnic minority
students, meal tickets for the underprivileged, supporting orphans
and children with disabilities, all the way through to rapid response to
individuals who have found themselves in emergency financial crisis
for which other sources of help may not be available.

(i) In 2022, the WWS Charity Fund organized 5 employee self-
funded activities, including Charity Health Talks, Charity Bazaar
and Sample Sales, which raised a total of HK$35,790.

(i)  During the peak period of COVID-19 in February 2022, the WWS
Charity Fund sent warm clothes to the citizens who were waiting
outside the emergency department of Hong Kong hospitals in
severe cold weather for medical treatment.
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(iii) WWS Charity Fund participated in the Flag Day organized
by the Christian Family Center in November 2022 to support
children with special needs, poor families, subdivided housing
households, community development and caregiver services.
There were 21 employees in Hong Kong with their families
participated in the Flag Day.

(iv) In 2022, WWS Charity Fund donated:
° RAT Kits to Caritas Hong Kong.

e RAT Kits and SIM data cards to Share for Good, a city-wide
crowd donation platform for support youths with special
educational needs.

e  Clothing and toys to Refugee Union in Hong Kong and
carrying out an in-house charity bazaar to raise funds.

e Television sets to primary and secondary schools in Hong
Kong.

(16) Global Sports Programs

Giordano has traditionally chosen to work with sports organizations
in the markets it operates it, or aims to be in, engaging with local
communities and working together to make an actual difference.

Giordano's sponsorship of apparel represents a win-win situation
for all stakeholders involved: the Group can showcase its brand and
quality apparel to customers or future customers in those markets
through an authentic and practical medium, while allowing the
sporting bodies to free up resources to invest in coaching, player
welfare and development initiatives.

Over the past few years, Giordano has worked with Rugby,
Football, Hiking and Trail running teams from all over the world,
including China, Japan, Uganda, Egypt, Tunisia and Kazakhstan,
from grassroots level all the way through to elite national teams, in
children’s, women’s and men's sports.

Giordano is currently the title apparel sponsor for the Kazakhstan
men’s and women's national Rugby teams, the Tunisia men’s and
women's national Rugby teams, as well as the Malta Rugby League
men’s and women's national Rugby teams.
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Sample Sale — Internal fundraising campaign
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(iii)

(iv)

Charity Luncheon Gathering — Monthly program: Internal
fundraising campaign and for staff gathering

The Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund
Establishes Comprehensive Cooperation with the Manna
Grace Charitable Organization

The WWS Charitable Fund has commenced a
comprehensive cooperative relationship with Manna
Grace ("Manna”), a charitable organization providing
food assistance and community care services for
the underprivileged, with a view to uplifting the
neighbourhood by providing free clothing for the needy
and low-income families.

The WWS Charitable Fund will work with Manna Grace on
various levels. Understanding the plight of low-income
families who cannot afford new clothing, the Fund recently
purchased over 170 pieces of warm clothing and donated
them to Manna Grace for distribution to needy families and
children in Hong Kong.

Apart from donating clothing, the Fund will provide further
support through regular participation in its volunteer
workshops, regular purchases from its catering service, and
promoting Manna through Giordano's store network in
Hong Kong.
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(v) SPCA T-shirt fundraiser

The Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA)
of Hong Kong held the “Chill Waterfront Walk” pet-
friendly Christmas carnival at “Harbour Chill Waterfront
Leisure Station” in Wan Chai. The venue was equipped
with music performances, a pet supplies area, a festive
market, a dining area, and a pet’s discharge area, and
charity stalls.

Giordano specially sponsored a batch of T-shirts for
customized hand-painted T-shirt fundraising. All proceeds
from the booth will be used to support the medical and
daily expenses of the homeless animals.

CHILLE
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PET CHILL
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&hnnet one
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Giordano Malaysia

Giordano Malaysia team volunteered at the Taman Tugu
Jungle Nursery in Kuala Lumpur, which operates under the
Free Tree Society. The Free Tree Society is an environmental
organisation that spreads the environmental stewardship
message by giving away trees for free to green our Earth. They
also share knowledge and skills to empower people to live more
sustainably.

With 30 members of staff from different departments and
regions participating, the volunteers began the day by
engaging with the team from Free Tree Society, who conveyed
fundamental environmental knowledge, sustainable skills and
appreciation for nature in a hands-on manner to help drive
environmental change. The Giordano team then took part
in a Nursery Planting Workshop, followed by a Sustainable
Solutions Talk which focused on water conservation and waste,
and a Guided Jungle Walk where topics such as biodiversity
conservation and climate were discussed.

Giordano Saudi Arabia

With over 300 participants, Giordano’s 'Run-For-Fun’ event
kicked off at 3:00 p.m. at the expansive grounds of the King
Abdullah Stadium in Jeddah. Endorsed by the Ministry of
Sports and led by members of the Giordano team, the friendly
5- kilometre race produced 15 medalists and was viewed by
some 2,000 spectators. Surprise gifts and prizes heightened
the excitement and energy of the participating public and
spectators. With Giordano's logo emblazoned on all official
uniforms and memorabilia, the brand benefitted from extensive
advertising mileage via social media and television coverage.
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(e)

Cross-region community investment program

(i)

(i)

Joint Hong Kong and Malaysia school STEM team

In September 2023, Giordano became the official team
wear supplier to the Ozmost STEM Team, which comprises
students from the Ju Ching Chu Secondary School in Yuen
Long, Hong Kong and Smk Dato Undang Musa Al-haj
School in Malaysia. The team took part in the Aramco F1 in
Schools 2023 World Finals (“F1 in Schools”) held at Resorts
World Sentosa, Singapore.

The event involves teams from around the world
competing to create the best small-scale single-seater
race car and develop Science, Technology, Engineering
and Maths (STEM) skills along the way. It took place
between September 8th to 15th alongside the Formula
1 Singapore Airlines Grand Prix 2023. F1 in Schools aims
to improve educational opportunities in STEM subjects
globally, increase diversity in motorsport and promote the
importance of sustainability. A record 350+ students from
26 countries competed at the F1 in Schools World Finals
this year.

Giordano's support not only equipped the students with
their performance team uniforms, but also helped free up
funds which could be put towards their travel expenses to
see the world.

Kazakhstan women’s national Rugby team

In September 2023, the Giordano-sponsored Kazakhstan
Rugby women’s national team made their way to
Hangzhou, China, to participate in the Rugby Sevens
competition at the 19th Asian Games. The Kazakhstan
women, nicknamed the Nomads, are currently ranked 18th
in the world and were placed in Pool E together with hosts
China and Thailand. In the end, the Kazakhstan ladies
finished a very respectable 5th overall at the Asian Games,
narrowly missing the medals.

As official teamwear suppliers to the Nomads, not only has
Giordano equipped the athletes with on-the-move travel
essentials and performance-enhancing team uniforms, but
they have allowed funds to be redistributed to grassroots
Rugby programmes in Kazakhstan, improving access to
sports participation for both men and women and boys and
girls from all walks of life, including underprivileged youth
and marginalised communities.
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SHINEWING Sustainability Advisory Services Limited (“SHINEWING
Sustainability”) has been engaged by Giordano International Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 709) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Giordano”) to undertake an independent verification on Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2023 ("ESG Report”). The ESG Report
set out the environmental and social performance of the Giordano from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023. The scope of the verification
statement is limited to the data and information in the ESG Report. The
Giordano selected several specified performance information in the
ESG Report for the verification purpose, which included the Scope 1&2
greenhouse gases emission data’, electricity consumption? data and water
consumption data® (collectively referred to as “Specified Performance
Information”).

Reporting Criteria

The Specified Performance Information are presented in accordance with
the criteria set out under “Reporting Standard, Principles and Scope”
in the ESG Report (“Reporting Criteria”). Such Reporting Criteria are
specifically designed for the purpose of the preparation of the Specified
Performance Information included in the ESG Report and, as a result,
those Specified Performance Information may not be suitable for another
purpose.

Responsibilities of Giordano

Giordano is responsible for the data collection, calculation, making
estimates and preparation of the ESG Report. Giordano is also
responsible for implementing sound internal control procedures to ensure
the content and presentation of the ESG Report are free from material
errors.

Responsibilities of SHINEWING Sustainability

SHINEWING Sustainability is responsible to provide an independent
verification statement to stakeholders based on the scope and
methodology described. We do not assume responsibility or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Footnote:

! Refer to ESG Report Green Performance Graph 1: Data of Greenhouse Gas Emission

2 Refer to ESG Report Green Performance Graph 1: Data of Electricity Consumption

3 Refer to ESG Report Green Performance Graph 1: Data of Water Consumption
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Independence and Quality Control

SHINEWING Sustainability have maintained our independence with
reference to the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We have also taken
reference to Hong Kong Standard on Quality Management 1 (HKSQM 1),
Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial
Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services Engagements,
and maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including
documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical
requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. We have the required competencies and experienced to
conduct this engagement.

Inherent Limitation

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw
to evaluate and measure non-financial information allows for different,
but acceptable, measures and measurement techniques and can affect
comparability between entities. Further, greenhouse gas quantification
is subject to inherent uncertainty because of incomplete scientific
knowledge used to determine emissions factors and the values needed to
combine emissions of different gases.

Reporting Framework and Procedures Performed

We conducted our verification under limited assurance engagement
with reference to International Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information (“ISAE 3000 (Revised)”) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. The standard
require that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain limited
assurance about whether the Specified Performance Information is free
from material misstatement.

A limited assurance engagement undertaken with reference to ISAE 3000
(Revised) involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of the
Giordano’s use of applicable criteria as the basis for the preparation of
the Specified Performance Information, assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the Specified Performance Information whether due
to fraud or error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the
circumstances, and evaluating the overall presentation of the Specified
Performance Information. A limited assurance engagement is substantially
less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to both
the risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of internal
control, and the procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.
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Within the scope of our work, SHINEWING Sustainability performed
amongst others the following procedures:

Interview the managers responsible for sustainability performance
and data collection;

Review the preparation process of the Specified Performance
Information, including stakeholders engagement and materiality
assessment;

Verify the samples of the representative data and information
selected, including review on conversion data and calculation as well
as inspect the original data and supporting evidence of the data
selected during the verification process;

Perform analytical procedures over the Specified Performance
Information; and

Compare the definition as included in the Reporting Criteria against
the definitions used by the Giordano to prepare the Specified
Performance Information.

Conclusion

Based on the procedures that SHINEWING Sustainability has performed
and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the Specified Performance Information is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Reporting Criteria of
the ESG Report.

SHINEWING Sustainability
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

BE - —®EER
RN R
Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

A1 iR

A1 Emissions

it

Description

€20235F IR « ItE
REQERE)
2023 ESG Report

—MRIWE

General Disclosure

BRBERIOAEREIN - mkRIieES  AERESEENNEESH

(a) BE R

(b) ETHETABERZENHBMERRAMNE -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al

General Disclosure

A2.1

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
REREI DM EE R IMEEREREREE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

HRKEREE °

Water consumption in total and intensity.

R PTRT S B REIR(E FA e B IR R R S L B AR FT RN 288 o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

SR EGE KR £ R B EIRERE - SARPTET LA KRS B AR R 2 5E & B AR PSR ER A 2P 5% ©

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HXRBAABEMHOEERGEEBMES -

Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit produced.

A1.1 PR TE R RARR BB - A2[E1 Graph 1
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

A1.2 BHEEED REREZ(BE2)RERBHENERTE - A2[E1 Graph 1
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.

A1.3 FEABEREEMRERTE - A2 Graph 152
Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Note 2 of Graph 1

Al.4 FELBREEEVAERTE - A2[E1 Graph 1
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

A15 HRPTEI LN E B IR R RETE L B BEPIERIMA LR - A2
Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Al.6 HME IR B EREEEEYNTTE - RARPTRI L ARE B R R AEDIE L B RAREE S5 - A2
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A2 RiRfER

A2 Use of Resources

—RIRE BRERER(BIEEIR - KREMRMEL) BB o A2

A2[El1 Graph 1

A2[E1 Graph 1

A2

A2[81 Graph 1H{3E4
Note 4 of Graph 1

A2[E1 Graph 1

GIORDANO
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

A3 BIRR XAKEIR

it

Description

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

€2023FIRIE * itE
REREE)
2023 ESG Report

— M ER BIEBEITALHBRERRAABREKERZENECR - A3
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
A3.1 MR EBEBDEIREMRAERNEAVERCRNEEEMZENTH - A3
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.
A4 RIREIL
A4 Climate Change
— MR ER BRI REHEDERTREEHETAEEZENEARBRIEEETENECE - A4
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
A4 HMBERAREHBETAEEYENEARGHEBEE - REHITH - Ad
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
B1 &
B1 Employment
— MR ER BRFHERE  BEREA  TERE - R TSRS - 20l - RIEBRUREMSFEREF B1
General Disclosure f
(a) B &
(b) BFHBITABERVENBREERADNER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
B1.1 IR - EEEE - FiERIRREDNESLBE - B1EI2%3
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3
B1.2 IR - FEARIRICEBI DM EBRAKLE o B1E2K&3
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

B2 BRRHZRZ
B2 Health and Safety

it

Description

€2023FIRIE * itE

REREE)
2023 ESG Report

— R ERRHZE2TFREMREREMEBENEEN - B2
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) BTHBRITABERTENRBZEZZRADNER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
B2.1 BE= 5 (REERER)SEET RN ABRILE - B2(1)
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.
B2.2 ETIHBEARTIERS - B2(1)
Lost days due to work injury.
B2.3 SELFT SR AN B G SR 2 DA AR BT BB % - B2(1)
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B3 R Rl
B3 Development and Training
— R ERARAHE B BT TIFME AU AN R BB MO BUR o LB FINES) - B3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
B3.1 BURREEFRIEDOZIREB DL © B3
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
B3.2 BRI RERERIDS - SEREERENO TR - B3
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.
B4 H T #AI
B4 Labour Standards
— R BRAD LE T kiab|s5 T B4
General Disclosure (a) B &
o (b) ETHBETAFEAXENRMEERRMNER -
o .
- Information on:
g (a) the policies; and
ﬁ (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
% relating to preventing child and forced labour.
R B4.1 AR R E AN R ET RAHIET - B4
T
iw' Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
Za e . N N
B4.2 R EBER BN ERERB R R SR - B4
o Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
=
Eiy
&
=
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

B5 HtESEE

it

Description

BS5 Supply Chain Management

€2023FIRIE * itE
REREE)
2023 ESG Report

—RIE

General Disclosure

ERH RO RE M ERRBK o

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

BS

B5.1 ZiEE D HERHE - B5IE5 Graph 5
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.2 HMEREREAEEENIED - MENTERENNHEREE - URBEATRERTE - B5(1)&(2)
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.3 H BB AR ERGNIRR R ERBNES - LA RBRENITRERE B5(2)
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 M BRE MR R R 2 AIRRE M RRB G - AR RERTE © B5(1)&(2)
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B6 AR

B6 Product Responsibility

— R ERAMRHERNRBHEREZS BS  RERLEBFEARBRITED B6

General Disclosure (a) B R
(b) ETFHETABEAVENBRERRROINER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

B6.1 CEJCERERBBTAL 2 LRFEHMACKOETDL B6(2)
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.2 RPN E @ RIS EVIRAF BB AR S 7% o B6(1)
Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

B6.3 T3t B 4 5 R ARPE AN EE R R ARV B 01 - B6(2)
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.4 U S in e B ME mEAR T o B6(2)
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6.5 s B EERRE RALBEOR - AR RERFE - B6(4)

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPls

B7 R®i5
B7 Anti-corruption

it

Description

€2023FIRIE * itE
REREE)
2023 ESG Report

Resources contributed to the focus area.

—RIE BRAM LLRRRR - IR - EFEROE B - B7
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) ETHBETABEAZENRBEEENRPINER -
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

B7.1 RERPANETASEEEREIERENETHFARMTOHE RFDER - B7
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.2 Tt By &S e R B MR - LA RABBRIT R Bk - B7
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B7.3 Rt REE R B TRHEMREFTE - B7
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

B8 MERE

B8 Community Investment

— R BN RLSERTREENELRFEMRREEXEZDHSEBHLENEHBE B8

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B8.1 HERRIEE - B8
Focus areas of contribution.

B8.2 HEETHBERMBHMER - B8
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